          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3  CITY OF NEW YORK

             -------------------------------x

          4  THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          5            of the

          6  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

             (Held Jointly With)

          7  COMMITTEE ON MENTAL HEALTH, MENTAL

             RETARDATION, ALCOHOLISM, DRUG ABUSE

          8  And DISABILITY SERVICES

             (Held Jointly With)

          9  COMMITTEE ON STATE And FEDERAL

             LEGISLATION

         10  -------------------------------x

                            April 28, 2003

         11                 Start:  1:34 p.m.

                            Recess: 6:47 p.m.

         12

                            City Hall

         13                 Council Chamber

                            New York, New York

         14

         15       B E F O R E:

         16              CHRISTINE QUINN,

                               Chairperson, Health Committee

         17

                         MARGARITA LOPEZ,

         18                    Chairperson, Mental Health, Mental

                               Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug

         19                    Abuse And Disability Services

                               Committee

         20

                         JOEL RIVERA,

         21                    Chairperson, State And Federal

                               Legislation Committee

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             COUNCIL MEMBERS:

          4

             Yvette Clarke

          5  Helen Sears

             Kendall Stewart

          6  Albert Vann

             James Oddo

          7  Gale Brewer

             Eric Dilan

          8  James Gennaro

             Pedro Espada

          9  Vincent Gentile

             Michael McMahon

         10  Maria Baez

             Helen Sears

         11  Hiram Monserrate

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Thomas R. Frieden, M.D., M.P.H.

          4  Commissioner

             NYC Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

          5

             Benjamin K. Chu, M.D.

          6  President

             New York City Health and Hospitals Corporation

          7

             Bill Lienhard

          8  Mental Health Project

             Urban Justice Center

          9

             Judy Wessler

         10  Director

             Commissioner on the Public's Health System

         11

             Denise Soffel, Ph.D.

         12  Senior Policy Analyst

             Community Service Society of New York

         13

             Tara Sher

         14  Staff Associate, Health and Mental Health

             Citizens' Committee for Children

         15

             Barbara Barlow, M.D.

         16  Director, Surgery

             Harlem Hospital Center

         17

             James R. King, M.D.

         18  President, Medical Staff

             Harlem Hospital Center

         19

             Susan Dooha

         20  Director

             Center for Independence for the Disabled in New York

         21

             Rodwan Daoud

         22  Head, Client Assistance Program

             Center for Independence for the Disabled in New York

         23

             David Wunsch

         24  Director, Health Policy

             Gay Men's Health Crisis

         25

                                                            4

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Pamela Conford, CSW

          4  Executive Director

             The Epilepsy Institute

          5

             Amy Bittinger

          6  Director, Family Support Services

             United Cerebral Palsy of New York City

          7

             Suleika Cabrera Drinane

          8  Executive Director

             Institute of Puerto Rican and Hispanic Elderly

          9

             Catherine Abate

         10  President/CEO

             Community Healthcare Network

         11

             Srinivas Bonthu, M.D.

         12  Chief Resident, Department of Radiology

             Harlem Hospital

         13  Vice President, Committee of Interns and Residents

         14  Geoigina Falu

             Chair, Community Advisory Board

         15  Metropolitan Hospital

         16  Carol Pittman

             Economic and General Welfare Program

         17  New York State Nurses Association

         18  Carmen Charles

             President

         19  Local 420, DC 37

         20  Alice Berger

             Director, Health Care Planning

         21  Planned Parenthood New York City

         22  Renee Ross

             Director, Policy

         23  New York AIDS Coalition

         24  Robert Jaffe

             Deputy Director

         25  NARAL NY

                                                            5

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Good evening.

          3  This a joint Committee Hearing on Health Care with

          4  the Health Committee, the Mental Health Committee,

          5  and the State and Federal Legislation Committee.

          6                 To my immediate left we have the

          7  Chairperson from the Mental Health Committee,

          8  Margarita Lopez; to my immediate right we have the

          9  Chairperson for the Health Committee, Christine

         10  Quinn; and all the way to my right we have, from the

         11  great Borough of Staten Island, Mike McMahon; and we

         12  have from the Borough of the Bronx, Pedro Espada;

         13  and to my immediate, to the far left, we have

         14  Council Member Jim Gennaro; and Councilwoman Yvette

         15  Clarke.

         16                 Down in front we have Council Member

         17  Al Vann; Councilwoman Maria Baez; our Minority

         18  Leader, James Oddo.  And right in back of us, we

         19  have Council Member Eric Dilan.

         20                 Is there anybody that I missed?  No,

         21  that is all.

         22                 Today we have a joint hearing in

         23  regards to a very important issue to the City of New

         24  York, and that is the health care industry and how

         25  the State budget cuts adversely affect our City's
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          2  economy, due to the fact that health care industry

          3  is the largest industry within the City of New York,

          4  as well as in four of our five boroughs, and what

          5  those cuts actually mean to our City's economy.

          6                 At this point, I will give it to one

          7  of my Co-Chairs for today, to make a comment.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  As

          9  Chairperson Rivera mentioned, this is a hearing that

         10  is being convened by three Committees of the City

         11  Council.  And there are two important matters that

         12  we are looking at today, also two resolutions with

         13  that the Health Committee is going to vote on

         14  germane to the topic and a resolution which the

         15  Mental Health Committee is going to focus on.

         16                 Today's hearing, as was said, focuses

         17  on the impact that the State's budget will have as

         18  it relates to public health and health care in the

         19  City of New York.  With that regard we are looking

         20  at two items within the State's budget, the proposed

         21  cuts to Medicaid, which could literally, if those

         22  cuts go through intact result in a $200 million cut

         23  to our City's Health and Hospitals Corporation, and

         24  also the proposed, very, very drastic changes to

         25  Article VI, Public Health Matching Funds.
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          2                 The Council well knows that last year

          3  and the year before in the budget we had initiatives

          4  relating, for example, to infant mortality and

          5  HIV/AIDS in people of color communities.  With those

          6  initiatives the Council, for example, put in $2.5

          7  million for infant mortality, $2.5 million for

          8  HIV/AIDS prevention.  Those dollars were matched by

          9  the State of New York making each of those programs

         10  $5 million.  If we wanted to keep that commitment at

         11  $5 million this year, if the article six cuts go

         12  through, we would have to put in $3.5 million for

         13  each of those initiatives.  And the HIV/AIDS and

         14  infant mortality are just two examples of what

         15  Article VI pays for.  It pays for clinics throughout

         16  our City, it pays for staff at the Poison Control

         17  Center, it pays for people who do checking of

         18  radiological machinery, and it goes for really

         19  anything that you would think of as community- based

         20  health care in our City. We could end up with, you

         21  know, as close to $100 million worth of cuts to the

         22  Department of Health, if the Article VI cuts go

         23  through intact.

         24                 Those two proposals together, the

         25  Medicaid, which I really believe would decimate our
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          2  public hospital system, and have a massive impact on

          3  our private hospitals, as well, coupled with Article

          4  VI, put the City of New York in a position where the

          5  Governor's proposal is undercutting and eroding the

          6  entire public health infrastructure of this City,

          7  and leaving all New Yorkers at risk of not being

          8  able to get health care coverage and services, but

          9  particularly the uninsured, credibly vulnerable.

         10                 I hope that today's hearing coupled

         11  with the report that the Council released a couple

         12  of weeks ago, called, "In Defense of Medicaid,"

         13  which we have sent to all the State Legislators that

         14  these efforts, with those many others that are being

         15  done by advocates and by the Health and Hospital

         16  Corporation, and the Department of Health and Mental

         17  Hygiene, will be heard in Albany, and will force

         18  those in Albany not to move forward with these very,

         19  very ill- conceived and dangerous plans.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Good afternoon,

         21  my name is Margarita Lopez.  I am the Chair of the

         22  Committee on Mental Health, Mental Retardation,

         23  Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Disabilities Services. I

         24  would like to welcome everyone here to this joint

         25  hearing today that is together with the Committee on
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          2  Health, Chaired by my colleague Council Member

          3  Christine Quinn, the Committee on the State and

          4  Federal Legislation, Chaired by the Majority Leader,

          5  Council Member Joel Rivera, and me, the Chair of the

          6  Committee on Mental Health.

          7                 The emphasis of today's hearing will

          8  be on gathering information and discussion that

          9  impact on health and mental health services of the

         10  Governor's proposed cuts on Medicaid.  The Committee

         11  will also receive testimony on a Preconsidered

         12  Resolution sponsored by Council Member McMahon and

         13  myself, which oppose Governor Pataki's budget

         14  proposal for Fiscal Year 2003- 2004 to close the

         15  Institute for Basic Research located on Staten

         16  Island.

         17                 At our hearing on April 7, the

         18  Committee voted out Resolution No. 771, which

         19  condemned the Governor's proposal to close the Bronx

         20  Children's Psychiatric Center, the Bronx Psychiatric

         21  Center, and three others adult psychiatric centers

         22  that are located in Upstate New York.

         23                 Today, we are voting on a

         24  Preconsidered Resolution to specifically denounce

         25  the proposed closing of another Mental Health
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          2  Research facility located in New York City.  The

          3  Institute for Basic Research, a national, recognized

          4  leading facility where ground- breaking discoveries

          5  have been made that have helped to prevent

          6  effectively diagnosed and three disease of the mind

          7  in the areas of mental retardation, fatal alcohol

          8  syndrome, Alzheimer diseases and dementia.  The

          9  Institute for Basic Research on Staten Island proved

         10  valuable and extensive services, an educational

         11  program for children and adults with developmental

         12  disabilities and their families.

         13                 Today, we are looking in the impact

         14  of the Governor's proposed cuts to Medicaid,

         15  particularly, the potential affects on children and

         16  adults who suffer from serious and persistent mental

         17  illness, mental retardation, and developmental

         18  disabilities as well as psychiatric disabilities.

         19  This population is highly dependent on Medicaid to

         20  cover medically necessary services as many of these

         21  individuals are living on a low fixed income from

         22  Social Security Insurance benefits, known as SSI and

         23  Social Security Disability Insurance, known as SSD.

         24                 And even for those persons who are

         25  covered by Medicare, in many instances Medicaid
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          2  provide that coverage for those suffering from

          3  catastrophic disabling illnesses whose incomes

          4  cannot possibly cover their medical needs.

          5                 The delivery of competent services

          6  for people with disabilities, represent a critical

          7  public health concern throughout the City and the

          8  State.  Despite the enactment of the American with

          9  Disabilities Act in 1990, people with disabilities

         10  facing the need to health and mental health

         11  services, public accommodation, housing and

         12  employment.  For example, in New York, the

         13  employment rate for people with disabilities is

         14  approximately 70 percent.  One third of adults with

         15  disabilities live in a household that has an annual

         16  income or less than $15,000.  As a result, over 96

         17  percent of people with serious disabilities,

         18  including persons with serious and persistent mental

         19  illness, rely on Medicaid to cover the physical and

         20  mental health care needs.

         21                 They are told that the Governor had

         22  put into Medicaid is literally destroying the

         23  possibility of medical care for people with

         24  disabilities.  The City and the State of New York

         25  have the responsibility to serve children and adults
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          2  with disabilities through a complete, competent, and

          3  trained network of services provided.  And state and

          4  local government are responsible for providing

          5  comprehensive plan service that include the care,

          6  treatment, rehabilitation, and habitation of this

          7  vulnerable population.

          8                 In addition, government agencies are

          9  charged with providing services for the early

         10  detention and prevention of mental retardation and

         11  developmental disabilities through a State mandate

         12  program called, "The Early Intervention Program."

         13  This is a comprehensive, interagency program for

         14  infants and toddler up to two years of age.  In

         15  urban areas, researchers have documented the

         16  striking disparities in the delivery of mental

         17  health services for racial and ethnic minorities, as

         18  compared to whites.  Some of the problems for the

         19  communities of color, include persons of color have

         20  less access to private insurance coverage for mental

         21  health services.  Persons of color often fear

         22  treatment in the public health system, because of

         23  different approaches to communication and language

         24  barriers.  Persons of color also face racism and

         25  discriminations that they are under represented in
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          2  mental health research and the profession.  This

          3  often led to their receiving a pure, quality of

          4  mental health care.

          5                 This Committee is greatly concerned

          6  about the impact that Governor Pataki proposed

          7  Medicaid cuts will have on the delivery of services

          8  to children and adult with disabilities, and

          9  specifically to a rapidly growing population of

         10  racial and ethnic minorities in New York City.

         11                 Meeting the needs of this population

         12  require a commitment from the state and city

         13  government agencies, with regard to funding

         14  oversight and enforcement.  And I am going to repeat

         15  that.  They need the commitment of the State and

         16  City Government, not just the City.  Therefore, this

         17  hearing today is important to understand the FED of

         18  the Medicaid cut will have on the residents of New

         19  York City, including the disability community and

         20  communities of color.  And I want to remind the

         21  Governor that the citizens of the City of New York

         22  are citizens of this state also, and they deserve a

         23  Medicaid program that works and does not defund and

         24  bankrupt the health and hospital corporation of our

         25  City.  With that, I close my statement.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  All right, now

          3  we will hear testimony from the Commissioner of the

          4  Department of Health, Tom Frieden.  Welcome.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Thank you very

          6  much.  Good afternoon, I am Dr. --

          7                 MS. BOLANOS:  Good afternoon.  Could

          8  you please raise your right hand?  Thank you.  Do

          9  you each swear that the testimony you are about to

         10  provide before this Committee is the whole, and that

         11  you will answer Council members' questions

         12  truthfully?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  We do.  I

         14  think we are married now, too, so.

         15                 Good afternoon.  I am Dr. Tom

         16  Frieden, Commissioner of the Department of Health

         17  and Mental Hygiene.  I want to thank you for holding

         18  these hearings to discuss the impact of proposed

         19  cuts in state support in health care and public

         20  health.

         21                 As you know, public health is facing

         22  a great challenge.  Recent events, acts of bio-

         23  terrorism that brought us Anthrax, diseases such as

         24  West Nile Virus, and SARS or severe acute

         25  respiratory syndrome have highlighted the fact that
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          2  public health is critical for public safety.

          3                 Public health spending constitutes

          4  only a tiny fraction of total spending for medical

          5  care to cure illness, and yet these activities are

          6  critical to public safety and are essential to

          7  preventing disease and death.  And while was all

          8  understand that difficult, economic times, the City,

          9  State, and Nation are facing, I think we also need

         10  to remember the value that we received from our

         11  public health activities, which is far beyond its

         12  relative share of spending.

         13                 Proposals currently being considered

         14  in Albany would reduce the state's funding for local

         15  public health activities, under Article VI of State

         16  Public Health Law.  There are basically three

         17  changes that this state is proposing.

         18                 The first is the reduced matching for

         19  core expenditures from 36 percent to 30 percent,

         20  that would result in essentially a 17 percent

         21  reduction in the entire budget of the Department of

         22  Health and Mental Hygiene, or virtually the entire

         23  budget, or a reduction in non- core programs, and I

         24  will go into what those are from 30 percent to zero

         25  percent, and a cap on expenditures that would have a
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          2  retroactive effect.  And so- called non- core

          3  programs include poison control, radiation safety,

          4  group day care inspections, and dental care.  This

          5  reduction would have a devastating effect on this

          6  Department's ability to protect the public.

          7                 Our preliminary estimate of this

          8  impact is a reduction spending for public health of

          9  approximately $50 million in FY 2003 and FY 2004,

         10  and at least $35 million every year there after,

         11  which would result in about a 30 percent reduction

         12  in state support.  That is because of the

         13  combination of the 36, 30 to 0 and the cap.

         14                 These would be retroactive through

         15  January 1 of this year, and would have an immediate

         16  effect on services.  It would be the first time

         17  there would be a cap on statewide public health

         18  funding, and that could cause even greater

         19  reductions in the future.  If enacted these cuts

         20  would renege on New York State's commitment to match

         21  local support for public health.  To take these

         22  steps in normal times, would endanger public health

         23  and safety.  To consider them at a time when New

         24  York City has already experienced biological and

         25  terrorist attacks, and is a potential target for
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          2  future attacks, would be unconscionable.

          3                 I would like to give you just a few

          4  examples of how these cuts would affect the City's

          5  public health programs:

          6                 Dozens of community- based

          7  organizations that provide HIV/AIDS services,

          8  including HIV prevention, education, and referrals,

          9  would have to be defunded.  As many as 2,000 fewer

         10  people per month might be able to undergo HIV

         11  testing.

         12                 Funding for day care inspections

         13  would be reduced by 30 percent.  This would result

         14  in nearly 3,000 fewer early childhood educational

         15  consultant visits to day care centers annually.  In

         16  addition, the day care training institute would have

         17  to be closed, and support services for day care

         18  sites would be reduced or eliminated.  These would

         19  increase the risk of communicable disease outbreaks

         20  and other poor health outcomes at day care centers

         21  throughout the City.

         22                 Our Poison Control Center, which is

         23  the Departments Emergency Communication Unit, would

         24  be severely affected.  The Poison Control is

         25  internationally renowned and offers expertise to
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          2  hospitals, medical providers, and the public, 24

          3  hours a day, seven days a week, just called 212-

          4  poisons.  These cuts would reduce staff to levels

          5  that would endanger the Center's certification.  In

          6  addition, callers would experience a significant

          7  increase in the average wait- time for service,

          8  potentially resulting in an increase in fatal

          9  poisonings.

         10                 The more than 14 percent cut for

         11  radiation control services would undermine radiation

         12  hazard response and equipment monitoring services

         13  with hundred fewer inspections per year.

         14                 In the midst of an alarming increase

         15  in syphilis cases, a more than fourfold increase

         16  since 1998, our ability to control sexually

         17  transmitted diseases would be seriously compromised.

         18    With these cuts, the Department might not be able

         19  to continue to providing all of the free on- site

         20  treatment and medication, STD tests and Pap smears,

         21  which it currently offers.

         22                 The school health program would not

         23  be spared either, if it in the 36 to 30 percent

         24  reduction, that would result in close to $10 million

         25  in reduction - -  I am sorry, a significant
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          2  reduction in the school health budget, we can get

          3  you the exact amount in a moment.  There would be

          4  significant reductions in immunization activities,

          5  increasing the risk of measles, mumps, hepatitis and

          6  other vaccine- preventable diseases. The

          7  Department's free adult flu vaccination program

          8  would have to curtailed or eliminated with as many

          9  of 8,000 fewer low- income children and adults

         10  vaccinated in our clinics.

         11                 The budget cut would undermine our

         12  ability to control tuberculosis.  It would be

         13  increasingly difficult for us to find and treat

         14  patients with latent tuberculosis infection.  As a

         15  result, more tuberculosis cases would occur in the

         16  years to come. Our capacity to control rodents and

         17  other pests would be reduced leading to a rise in

         18  rodent population and public dissatisfaction with

         19  public health services.

         20                 Access to vital dental health

         21  services would also be reduced for the City's

         22  poorest children.  The reduction for State Aid for

         23  dental health would require the closure of all five

         24  health center dental clinics currently operating,

         25  resulting in at least 20,000 fewer visits per year.

                                                            20

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 In closing, I believe that the

          3  description of  these reductions speaks for itself.

          4  The withdrawal of support from the State could

          5  seriously compromise public health and safety for

          6  all New Yorkers.  We have reached a point where many

          7  important health indicators, including life

          8  expectancy and infant mortality have reached

          9  historical best.  The funding cuts proposed by the

         10  State endanger our recent gains.

         11                 Thank you for your support to public

         12  health.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay, at this

         14  point in time, we are going to have vote on the

         15  Committee of Mental Health.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes, I would like

         17  to, at this point, call for the vote on the

         18  resolution opposing the closing of the facility in

         19  Staten Island.  But before we go into that, Council

         20  Member McMahon, which has the district where this

         21  facility is located would like to make a statement,

         22  and it is greatly appreciated, particularly, because

         23  I have been receiving a lot of support from him on

         24  this issue.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you
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          2  very much, Council Member Lopez, and I will be

          3  brief, I know that there is much business going on

          4  before these three Committees today, and each and

          5  everyone is extremely important.  But certainly, to

          6  my heart, and I know to everyone from Staten Island,

          7  including Council Member Oddo who is here, the issue

          8  for the Institute for Basic Research is one that has

          9  come to the forefront on Staten Island because of

         10  the ill- sided or lack of vision, cuts proposed by

         11  the Governor.

         12                 As Council Member Lopez said, the

         13  Institute for Basic Research is a national leader in

         14  doing research for diseases of the brain, whether it

         15  is Alzheimer's Disease, Autism, Mental Retardation,

         16  and things of that nature.  And it sits on the

         17  ground, it is just, so that everybody understands

         18  it, it sits on the grounds where the former

         19  Willowbrook State School used to be located.  Think

         20  about that, 30 years ago, one generation ago, we

         21  were warehousing in terrible institutions the

         22  members of our society who suffered from mental

         23  illness, and now mostly those institutions are

         24  closed, but we still have not completed the work of

         25  finding cures, and that is what IBR does.  And it is
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          2  very important that we send this message to Albany

          3  that this closure should not happen.  There are also

          4  more than 200 jobs at stake there, it is a very

          5  important issue.

          6                 I have to, well, let me just say,

          7  according to Robert Kennedy, who said that the

          8  greatness of society is not measured by it's gross

          9  national product or the size of its armies, but how

         10  it treats its neediest.  And certainly, IBR speaks

         11  to the greatness of our society, and keeping it open

         12  will speak to the greatness of New York City, New

         13  York State, and our country.

         14                 I urge all of my colleagues on the

         15  Mental Health Committee to vote this resolution

         16  through.  And I thank, from the bottom of my heart,

         17  Council Member Lopez and her staff, especially

         18  Maritza, who allowed us to get this resolution in on

         19  time so that we could have it on the floor on

         20  Wednesday.  It is critically important, and we are

         21  grateful to your support, as well as Council Member

         22  Rivera and Council Member Quinn for allowing to do

         23  this today, and we thank you all very, very much.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  We have no more
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          2  comments, I would like to call for the vote on this

          3  resolution to the members of the Committee on Mental

          4  Health, Mental Retardation, Alcohol Substance Abuse.

          5

          6                 Just to make clear, again, this is

          7  one of many facilities that the Governor has

          8  proposed to close.  This one is located in Staten

          9  Island, and it serves populations that are affected

         10  by brain diseases.  But in particular, this

         11  particular facility is a research facility, and we

         12  cannot afford to lose it.

         13                 Therefore, I call for a vote at this

         14  point.  Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lopez.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I vote aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Brewer.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Aye.

         19  COUNCIL CLERK:  Dilan.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gennaro.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Espada.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA:  Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gentile.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 6 in the

          4  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no abstentions,

          5  the resolution is adopted. Council members, please

          6  sign the Committee report.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I want to thank

          8  all the members of the Committee, and we need to

          9  continue fighting these budget cuts that are coming

         10  Albany in ways that are totally irrational.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  At

         13  this point in time, I would also like to introduce

         14  Council member, the Council member that just walked

         15  in, Council Member Vinny Gentile from Brooklyn;

         16  Council Member Kendall Stewart; and Councilwoman

         17  Gale Brewer from Manhattan.

         18                 At this point, we will hear testimony

         19  from Dr. Chunk.

         20                 DR. CHU:  Thank you very much.  Good

         21  afternoon, Chairpersons Quinn, Lopez, and Rivera,

         22  and members of each of the respective Committees.  I

         23  am Dr. Benjamin K. Chu, President of the New York

         24  City Health and Hospitals Corporation.  I want to

         25  thank you for the opportunity to discuss how the
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          2  proposed state budget disproportionately effects

          3  HHC.  It is always my pleasure to come before the

          4  Committee, actually, I wish at some point that Dr.

          5  Frieden and I who have a lot of ideas about trying

          6  to do some major pieces of work for the City of New

          7  York, the Health Status of the City of New York,

          8  that we would have other opportunities to come here

          9  and talk to you about our positive ideas and

         10  programs, instead of talking always about the

         11  negative, fiscal impact, dire gloom and doom type of

         12  scenarios.

         13                 But we have an issue at hand right

         14  now.  And as you know, HHC's greatest financial

         15  challenge currently is the proposed New York State

         16  Executive Budget for Fiscal Year 2003, 2004.

         17                 The proposed State budget, if

         18  implemented, will reduce the Health and Hospitals

         19  Corporation Medicaid revenues, as Council Member

         20  Quinn says, by more than $200 million in Fiscal Year

         21  2004.  These proposed cuts affect HHC

         22  disproportionately when compared to other hospitals

         23  in New York City and around the State. For example,

         24  while the impact of the proposed Medicaid cuts to

         25  hospitals in New York City is slightly more than
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          2  $600 million, the $200 million reduction to HHC's

          3  Medicaid funding represents about one- third of the

          4  total cut, although the public hospitals comprise

          5  only one- fifth of the City's hospital beds.  As I

          6  stated at the Preliminary Budget hearing, HHC cannot

          7  absorb a Medicaid cut of this magnitude without

          8  workforce reductions and significant service

          9  changes.

         10                 Over the last several years, the

         11  Corporation has responsibly managed spending, so

         12  that our annual expense budget has remained nearly

         13  constant.  Just to give you an example, in Fiscal

         14  Year 1994, our Expense Budget, and this an Expense

         15  Budget that tries to compare apples to apples, was

         16  about 3.4, 3.5 billion dollars.  In Fiscal Year

         17  2004, 10 years later, our expense budget will be

         18  around 3.7, 3.8 billion dollars.  This represents an

         19  8 percent increase over 10 years.  When health care

         20  inflation has risen by approximately 6.9 percent

         21  each year.

         22                 Just to give you a sense, if we had

         23  grown simply at the rate of inflation over the last

         24  decade, our budget right now would be a little bit

         25  over $7 billion.  So this has been achieved in spite
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          2  of increasing demands for services at the public

          3  hospitals, health centers and nursing homes,

          4  unabating numbers of uninsured patients treated,

          5  increasing pharmaceutical costs, adjustments of tens

          6  of millions of dollars to labor contracts, and

          7  across the board growth in other expense areas.  We

          8  have held the line spending, and the quality of

          9  patient care has not been adversely affected.  In

         10  fact, our hospitals continue to achieve the highest

         11  accreditation ratings among all New York City

         12  hospitals surveyed by the Joint Commissioner on the

         13  Accreditation of Health Care Organizations or JCAHO

         14  for short.  But the proposed budget cuts would

         15  jeopardize some of the gains that we have made.

         16                 The State budget proposes cuts that

         17  includes significant reductions in various

         18  components of hospital inpatient, nursing home and

         19  home care Medicaid reimbursement rates, and

         20  institutes new provider assessments, otherwise known

         21  as taxes. Currently, HHC stands to lose:

         22                 Seventy- four point nine million

         23  dollars because of proposed changes in funding for

         24  indirect and graduate medical education payment.

         25  This is a very complicated area of the budget, but
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          2  suffice it to say that it is $75 million of support

          3  not only for the training of house staff, of

          4  residents, but really core support.  You know, in

          5  many instances, it is just a line item that provides

          6  us with core support.  More than 60 percent of the

          7  savings that would accrue to the State from this

          8  IME/GME changes will come from a $75 million funding

          9  cut to HHC.  Adhering to the State graduate medical

         10  education and financing policies, we actually reduce

         11  the numbers of our residents and interns and beds in

         12  the 1990s, something that the State seriously

         13  advocated for all of us to do.  And now, 10 years

         14  late, or within the last 10 years we are being

         15  penalized for acting in accordance with state

         16  policy.

         17                 Forty point seven million dollars

         18  will be cut as a result of the elimination of the

         19  yearly rate increases that hospitals receive to

         20  reflect increases in the cost of providing care.  As

         21  I stated before, HHC has managed to significantly

         22  limit spending increases.  For example, we have

         23  reduced double- digit pharmaceutical costs in prior

         24  years to a more manageable 5 percent increase from

         25  Fiscal Year 2001 to 2002.  In comparison, the
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          2  national average pharmaceutical cost increase was

          3  11.5 percent. However, small the 5 percent growth

          4  may seem, yearly increases still cost HHC millions

          5  of dollars.

          6                 There is a $22.5 million as a result

          7  of a 5 percent reduction in inpatient psychiatric

          8  and rehabilitation services reimbursement rates.

          9  This cut is significant.  HHC is the single largest

         10  provider of behavioral health service in New York

         11  City. Approximately 40 percent of our inpatient

         12  psychiatric costs are paid by Medicaid.  We provide

         13  about 40 percent of the psychiatric care for the

         14  City of New York, and 40 percent of our in- patient

         15  psychiatric costs are paid by Medicaid.

         16                 Eighteen point six million, as a

         17  result of adjustments to DRG rates.

         18                 Twelve point four million as the

         19  result of the elimination of volume adjustment

         20  payments.  Now this is a particularly difficult one

         21  to take, because, you know, in particular, some of

         22  our hospitals that have become more efficient, have

         23  actually, you know, also begun to service patients

         24  in the communities, and many instances communities

         25  that have actually grown in population.  But the
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          2  State formula calls for, you know, penalizing those

          3  hospitals that provide more services as a result of

          4  greater efficiency or more demand on their services

          5  by trying to eliminate the increases in payment for

          6  volume by reducing the DRG payment.

          7                 So hospitals receive funding to

          8  compensate for these changes, when they also have

          9  decreases in length of stay.  This funding is

         10  actually being proposed to be eliminated, and HHC

         11  would lose about $12 million as a result of this.

         12                 Twenty- four point nine million

         13  dollars in nursing rate home reductions.  Funding

         14  reductions in this area would be especially

         15  problematic.  This funding supports the extensive

         16  and high- quality services that we provide at our

         17  skilled nursing facilities.  These services are

         18  provided to all patients, regardless of their

         19  insurance status.  For example, HHC receives no

         20  reimbursement for the many undocumented immigrant

         21  patients who receive skilled nursing and

         22  rehabilitation treatment at our facilities.

         23                 There is a $19.7 million because of

         24  the institution of new assessment on our services.

         25                 And then, of course, as Councilwoman
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          2  Lopez stated, the closure of the Bronx Psychiatric

          3  Hospital and Bronx Children's Psychiatric Hospital

          4  Center, will not directly impact this on a budgetary

          5  basis, but will actually be a tremendous, have

          6  tremendous impacts, simply because we will not have

          7  a place to send the patients that come to our acute

          8  care institutions.

          9                 So the proposed State budget also

         10  includes provisions that scale back eligibility for

         11  Family Health Plus for about 150 percent of the

         12  federal poverty level to 133 percent of the federal

         13  poverty level.  And it proposes increases in EPIC

         14  and Medicaid beneficiary's co- pays for prescription

         15  drugs.  Often prescription drugs that can prevent

         16  rehospitalizations and other kinds of illnesses.

         17                 These changes, if implemented, will

         18  further erode HHC's ability to carry out our core

         19  mission.  And I just want to make a point about the

         20  Family Health Plus Reductions.  One of the reasons

         21  why we have been able to do as well as we have done

         22  this fiscal year and the end last fiscal year is

         23  because of the intensive enrollment that we have

         24  conducted at our HHC facilities.

         25                 As I was saying to Councilwoman Quinn
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          2  earlier, that in April we actually 160,000 members

          3  for our Metro Plus Health Plan, that is doubling the

          4  total number of enrollees in our health plan over

          5  the last year, which brought in enough premium

          6  revenues to help us balance our budget, and actually

          7  mitigate some of the deleterious effects of other

          8  budget cuts that we have endured over the last year

          9  and a half.  So this reduction in eligibility for

         10  Family Health Plus, reduced our ability to continue

         11  to do the right thing, getting people insured and

         12  finding other avenues of other sources of revenues

         13  to help shore up our finances.

         14                 So in closing, over the past several

         15  years, the Health and Hospitals Corporation has

         16  succeeded in becoming more efficient and more

         17  accountable to our patients and the communities

         18  which we serve.  Your advocacy and support in

         19  ensuring that that the State does not implement the

         20  proposed Medicare reductions, continues to be

         21  crucial.  I thank you all for your efforts to

         22  prevent these reductions, and I will be happy to

         23  answer any questions that you may have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         25  much.  At this point in time, I understand that Dr.
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          2  Chu has another engagement, so I will direct all

          3  questions from the Council member toward Dr. Chu in

          4  reference to Medicaid, and then after that we will

          5  talk to the Commissioner in reference to Article VI.

          6                 DR. CHU:  It does not really matter,

          7  you can, either one of us, because I am okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  You are okay.

          9                 DR. CHU:  I have readjusted my

         10  schedule.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay, so any

         12  questions? Councilwoman Yvette Clarke.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  First of all,

         14  good afternoon, to both gentlemen, and thank you

         15  for, I guess detailing for us the gruesome outcome

         16  of what would happen if these Medicaid cuts go into

         17  effect.  I was just commenting to Gale Brewer that,

         18  you know, it is to the point where you are ready to

         19  glaze over whenever you hear about what is taking

         20  place in health care, and where the priorities lie

         21  in terms of cutting back in health care, and what

         22  that means for the citizens of New York City and

         23  your agencies.

         24                 In the worst case scenario, which

         25  certainly, this Medicaid proposal represents, have
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          2  your agencies begun to look at how you would go

          3  about reorganizing, and if it is at all possible, to

          4  reorganize to mitigate the impact that these cuts

          5  would have? I mean, essentially what I am getting

          6  from what you are saying is that, you know, we are

          7  going to be extremely vulnerable where health care

          8  is concerned.  But I know both of you gentlemen, and

          9  that you would do everything within your power and

         10  within your means to try to protect and preserve

         11  what you can for the people of the City of New York.

         12    Has that process already begun?

         13  DR. FRIEDEN:  Well in terms of the Department of

         14  Mental Health and Mental Hygiene we remain hopeful

         15  that this will not come to pass. If it were to come

         16  to pass, we look separately at the programs that

         17  would be going from a 30 percent match to a 0

         18  percent match.  And those programs would have to

         19  either be reduced by 30 percent, or other programs

         20  in the Department would have to be reduced by more

         21  to make up for that reduction and state funding, and

         22  that includes poison control, radiation safety, day

         23  care, dental care and others, So that is a great

         24  concern.  And then in addition, virtually the entire

         25  Department would have a cut of, a cut of 36 to 30
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          2  percent, accounts for more than a 15 percent

          3  reduction.  And so, just to give you the number I

          4  mentioned before, it will be more than $5 million in

          5  school health, for example.  So we would really have

          6  to look at it program by program.  But it would be a

          7  devastating impact.

          8                 DR. CHU:  I guess the answer to your

          9  question is, you know, of course, it is often said

         10  that the necessity is the mother in vivid invention,

         11  right?  So, but I do not know whether we can invent

         12  quite as much as this point in time.

         13                 But what I will say is that, you

         14  know, we are looking at $200 million of state cuts,

         15  and I just want to remind the Council that if you

         16  actually look at our financial statements,

         17  particularly next year and the out years, there is a

         18  substantial, structural deficit that we actually

         19  have to do, as well.  So, we have been looking at

         20  anywhere between 150 to 200 million dollar plan to

         21  try to address some of that structural deficit, and

         22  perhaps mitigate some of the effects of whatever cut

         23  comes down from the State.  And a lot of it has to

         24  do with, you know, spending - - I mean, I tend to

         25  think about it in $50 million blocks overall, and
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          2  there are a lot of details that are still floating

          3  around.  But on block is looking at things that we

          4  would ordinarily spend on, you know, things like

          5  capital equipment, et cetera, and realizing that for

          6  the next couple of years, maybe we are not going to

          7  be able to afford those things.  So we have to

          8  figure out whether we can actually find $50 million

          9  of spending for things that we would already need as

         10  a normal course of business and prolonging that.

         11                 And as you know, that is what

         12  happened in the City in the seventies, and you do

         13  not like doing that as much.  But I think that we

         14  may be able to find up to $50 million of those kinds

         15  of spending, that we will definitely not move

         16  forward with, because it is not just prudent to go

         17  ahead and do that, in this economic time.

         18                 Then there are, there is an intense

         19  effort at revenue, looking at our revenues, and we

         20  have actually been doing that over the last year.

         21  And some of these revenue initiatives require

         22  consistent changes, so it takes a little while to

         23  mature, it requires participation from our doctors

         24  as well as a whole host of other settings.  And so I

         25  think that there are, you know, there is an intense
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          2  effort now, starting in July to figure out a way

          3  where we are going to get another 40, 50, 60 million

          4  dollars in revenues outside of trying to continue to

          5  add people to our Managed Care Plan.

          6                 I think that by the end of the year

          7  we will be close to 175,000 members in Metro Plus.

          8  And as long as the rules do not change on us too

          9  drastically, we are going to continue over the next

         10  year trying to enroll as many of the half million or

         11  so uninsured into the Metro Plus Plan.  So, there

         12  are some opportunities to continue to do some of the

         13  things that we are doing.

         14                 And then the next $50 million is some

         15  corporate- wide things that we are going to do to

         16  cut down on administrative costs, the cut down

         17  expenses that I do not think we will have major

         18  implications for services.  You know, there where I

         19  am fairly confident a little bit of efficiency here

         20  and there, trying to look through these things

         21  differently can actually get us to that 50.

         22                 And then the last 50 are some of the

         23  dire stuff that, you know, you probably can imagine,

         24  you know, things that we may have to do, because we

         25  just do not have the infrastructure support.
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          2                 Now, if the full $200 million cut

          3  comes down from the State, and we still have to deal

          4  with 100 to 150 million dollar structure deficit,

          5  then we will have to look, go back and look at the

          6  drawing board at this point in time.  But you know,

          7  my feeling is that, if there is anything that we can

          8  do to hold the line on the services, and in fact,

          9  expand some of the services that we want to do, by

         10  doing it a little more smartly, by trying to find

         11  other sources of revenue to pay for it, we are going

         12  to turn over that rock and try to do that in this

         13  plan at time.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  And just to

         15  add a little ray of sunshine to what is being

         16  discussed here today, I just want to inform my

         17  colleagues that Kings County hosted a prostate

         18  cancer screening on Saturday during the rainstorm

         19  within my district, and over 400 men showed up for

         20  prostate cancer screening, which I think is just

         21  outstanding.

         22                 I want to thank you, Dr. Chu, thank

         23  Jean Leone and the rest of the staff for being there

         24  for the most vulnerable in our communities and

         25  providing this screening.  And I hope that we can
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          2  continue to do these things.  And I have a challenge

          3  to the women, because I understand that some women's

          4  screenings will be coming up in the near future,

          5  that they are going to have to out do the men in the

          6  community.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

          9  much.  Next, we will hear from Co- Chair of this

         10  joint hearing, Christine Quinn.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Actually, I have

         12  questions for both of you, but Dr. Frieden, to start

         13  with you.  A lot of what you detailed in your

         14  testimony and what you referenced at our Preliminary

         15  Budget hearing on Article VI, I mean, are incredibly

         16  unthinkable scenarios.  Two of the ones which are

         17  the most jarring, in my opinion are the impact that

         18  would have on HIV/AIDS testing in the City, and on

         19  immunization.

         20                 And first, on the HIV/AIDS, if 2,000,

         21  I think is what you said, less people can get

         22  tested, given the fact that HIV/AIDS rates of

         23  infection, particularly against young, peak men of

         24  color in this City are going up at an alarming rate,

         25  the reality of people not being able to get tested,
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          2  completely runs counter to everything that everyone

          3  has been trying to do to urge people to, you know,

          4  safe sex, to take prevention, precautions, and to

          5  get tested on a very regular basis.

          6                 What impact do you think that will

          7  have on the HIV/AIDS epidemic in this City, and the

          8  HIV infection rates in this City?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  As you

         10  correctly point out, one of our major emphasis is to

         11  encourage HIV testing as a routine, and I would also

         12  draw your attention to the April 18th or 19th issue

         13  of CDC's morbidity or mortality we could report,

         14  which has ushered in a new era of thinking about HIV

         15  testing and HIV prevention.  Basically, we are

         16  saying everyone should be tested. We know that about

         17  half of the people in New York who are adults have

         18  not been tested, we are strongly encouraging folks

         19  to get tested as a routine.

         20                 The reduction, one of the reasons

         21  that it is so damaging, is because it is across the

         22  board.  So, it is every single program, and we are

         23  determined to increase testing, to increase the

         24  proportion of New York, because you know their

         25  status.             As you may also know, there is a
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          2  new rapid HIV test, and one of the challenges is to

          3  roll that out and places where a large number of

          4  people who do not already know their status can be

          5  tested including places like community

          6  organizations, correctional facilities, emergency

          7  departments, SDD clinics.  And so, we will do the

          8  best we can, but clearly, we need to increase, not

          9  decrease the number of people who are tested.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  But this seems to

         11  me, it is not too dramatic, it seems to me, to say

         12  that if these Article VI cuts go through, this could

         13  lead to an increased HIV infection rate in the City

         14  of New York.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  I cannot

         16  predict the future, but certainly in order to

         17  control the HIV/AIDS epidemic, one of the critical

         18  things to do is to ensure that all people have the

         19  opportunities to learn their own status, and are

         20  encouraged to do so.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Regarding the

         22  immunizations, I have two questions, will the cuts,

         23  the potential cuts in immunization have the impact

         24  that some children might not be able to start

         25  school?  Because if some of the immunizations, are
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          2  not they ones that children need to be able to begin

          3  school?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  We do school

          5  immunization clinics, these are some of the clinics

          6  that are funded with funds that are matched by the

          7  State, so it would be increasingly difficult for us

          8  to accommodate the school rush as well as the

          9  influenza immunization drive, as well as the

         10  Hepatitis B, influenza efforts, Hepatitis B

         11  vaccination efforts that we have.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So it sounds

         13  like, I mean, you cannot protect the future, but if

         14  there are, you know, X number of kids who came this

         15  year, and there was a number of nurses or doctors

         16  and vaccines that they needed to get to school, if

         17  that rate continues, and there are not those same

         18  number of people or vaccines, which cost money too,

         19  some of those kids probably would not have anywhere

         20  else to go, or may be at risk of not being able to

         21  go to school.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Well, as I

         23  said in my testimony, it would be that we estimate

         24  about 8,000 fewer vaccinations in our clinics.  Some

         25  of those might be able to be picked up, many of

                                                            43

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  those in some or many other providers, but some

          3  would not be, and that would represent possible,

          4  longer delays in getting schooling or longer, or

          5  possible spread of communicable disease.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  And on that

          7  immunization for flu shots, I would assume that a

          8  lot of the flu shots you give out are given to

          9  senior citizens.  And I know that you do a

         10  particular focus on trying to get seniors to get

         11  their shots.  If seniors do not get, the risk, it

         12  seems to me, if seniors do not get flu shots, they

         13  are at particular risk of, you know, losing their

         14  lives to the flu, given the impact it can have on

         15  seniors.  So, the cuts to flu shots could have a

         16  really life and death impact on our senior citizens.

         17    Is that true?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  That is

         19  correct.  New York City is only at about 63 percent

         20  influenza vaccination in senior citizens.  We would

         21  like to see that above 90 percent.

         22                 There was a recent study published on

         23  January 31st, in the New England Journal of Medicine

         24  that indicated that the failure to get vaccination

         25  was associated with close to doubling a substantial
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          2  improvement increase, doubling I will have to

          3  reconfirm, but a substantial increase in the risk

          4  not just of flu, and not just of hospitalization

          5  from flu, but also of death, of stroke and heart

          6  attack related to seniors even when you correct it

          7  for it other factors who did not get influenza

          8  vaccination.  So we really, it is something that we

          9  see as a primary priority is to get the vaccination

         10  rate above 90 percent again, as with HIV.  We want

         11  to see this increasing, not decreasing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And that will be

         13  hard, if not impossible to do, to get it above 90

         14  percent.  If you were at 63 with the resources you

         15  had this year, to go up, you know, - -

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  It would make

         17  it more difficult, for sure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  It seems like

         19  quite a New York City the Governor has in mind,

         20  rising HIV rates, kids not able to go to school, and

         21  seniors at risk of losing their lives to preventable

         22  conditions.

         23                 Doctor Chu, could you tell us a

         24  little bit more, one of the things I am very

         25  concerned about in the Medicaid proposal. Obviously,

                                                            45

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  I am concerned about the proposal in its entity, but

          3  there is a particular part of the Governor's

          4  Medicaid Plan that, as I understand it, would be

          5  most devastating to the New York City and to the

          6  Health and Hospitals Corporation, as opposed to some

          7  of the other cuts, which would be devastating to HHC

          8  and to the private hospitals, and that is the what

          9  has been dubbed as the "swap."  And I am a little

         10  concerned that, my fear is that that might get lost

         11  in the jogging in Albany, because it does not have

         12  as broad a base that it is impacting, so if you

         13  could just tell us about that.

         14                 DR. CHU:  The concept of the "swap"

         15  is related to the proposal to reduce the - -  Yes,

         16  actually what the Governor is proposing is that he

         17  will take over for all of the municipalities, the

         18  counties in the City, the cost of pharmaceuticals.

         19  Right, I think that is the "swap" from their end.

         20  Because pharmaceutical cost have been rising at

         21  anywhere from 15 to 17 percent per year, and it is

         22  one of the large, the fastest growing components of

         23  Medicaid.

         24                 So the counties, remember, have to

         25  bear 25 percent of the cost of Medicaid, so for
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          2  every dollar that is spent in Medicaid, on average,

          3  you know, at least for the acute care side, New York

          4  City and other counties have to chip in $.25.  So

          5  what the Governor is saying is that, look, I will

          6  take over all of the pharmaceutical costs, but you

          7  have to bear an increased proportion of the Medicaid

          8  dollar.  And I think it is 37.5 percent, he proposes

          9  a 12.5 percent increase.  And for many

         10  municipalities across the State, for many counties,

         11  this works out relatively well for them.

         12                 But for certain counties,

         13  particularly the large Metropolitan areas, like New

         14  York, the impact is somewhere in the order of $250

         15  million in the negative, roughly, give or take,

         16  whatever.  So the "swap" does not work for us,

         17  right?

         18                 And then of course, the other piece

         19  of that is that going forward every increase

         20  expenditure for Medicaid will then cost the City,

         21  instead of twenty- five cents more, for twelve and

         22  one- half cents more.  So I think that the "swap"

         23  all around is a very bad deal for New York City,

         24  unless we are made whole for the difference between

         25  what we would have paid for a pharmaceutical cost,
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          2  and what we will have to pay for the extra 12.5

          3  percent.

          4                 So that, I think, is very bad for New

          5  York City, no matter how you look at it.  You know,

          6  I just do not think it is a good thing for us, if we

          7  are just looking at it from the City side.

          8                 The other piece of your questions is,

          9  you know, the Medicaid cuts are crafted on the basis

         10  of several layers of proposal, because the - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I thought you

         12  were going to say a different word that started with

         13  C- R and had less letters.

         14                 DR. CHU:  Oh, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  But you would

         16  never say that because you are a much more dignified

         17  person.

         18                 DR. CHU:  Well you can read between

         19  the lines, Councilwoman.

         20                 But the two components of the cuts

         21  are, actually have and impact on us that is totally

         22  out of proportion to what it has on the rest of the

         23  voluntary sector.  The two that I talked about, the

         24  indirect medical education cut.  And you know, for

         25  all intents and purposes, it is not about program,
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          2  it is not about supporting residents or not

          3  supporting.  It is just a line item to get to the

          4  dollar figure of the cut.

          5                 But it turns out because we did the

          6  right thing by cutting down the number of residents,

          7  and also cutting our length of stay so we could take

          8  nearly 3,000 beds out of circulation.  The formula

          9  that they proposed hurts us on the tune of $75

         10  million, and it is 60 percent of the total medical

         11  education cut.

         12                 But just to give you a better sense,

         13  and I am sorry to go on with the gory details about

         14  this, but if it were the change of formula, you

         15  know, to reflect the conditions here in this, in

         16  2004, I would say okay.  But the formula is

         17  constructed so that it takes the parameters, the

         18  number of residents to the number of beds, between

         19  the number that is the lowest number of residents,

         20  either in 1991 or 2003, or whatever the years are,

         21  and the highest number of beds, between 1991 and

         22  2003.  So for us, it would be the number of beds in

         23  1991, and the number of residents in 2004, it makes

         24  no sense.  It is only constructed to get us a cut,

         25  that is all it is.
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          2                 So, you know, you would say it is a

          3  policy thing, and let's just pay you at a formula

          4  for what you are here in 2004, it might be a little

          5  bit easier to swallow.  But it is one of these, and

          6  I think I can say this, it is a Chinese menu option

          7  here, you know.  You know, one from Column A, one

          8  from Column B, all meant to screw you, basically,

          9  right, us, namely us, at HHC. That was not too, - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, that is good.

         11                 DR. CHU: - -  Okay, that is all

         12  right, okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I still have to

         14  keep with you the dignified Monica, even with that.

         15                 DR. CHU:  Right, that is right, all

         16  right.  And then the other one is the volume

         17  adjustment.  It is just one of these cuts that are

         18  totally, you know, just to give you an example in

         19  the Borough of Queens.  The Borough of Queens has

         20  seen quite a rise in population over the last

         21  decade, between 1990 and the Year 2000, it grew by

         22  three, four hundred thousand people.

         23                 So, Elmhurst Hospital, which is

         24  really hurt badly, and so, parts of the Bronx and

         25  Jacobi, you know where the population has increased,
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          2  they have done an incredible job cutting their

          3  length of stay so that we can handle more patients

          4  coming in.               There is a new hospital, so

          5  that people start to use Elmhurst more over the last

          6  decade then ever before, and Jacobi, I would expect

          7  with the new hospital will have the same.  Well,

          8  what happens is that, the volume naturally goes up.

          9  The more services you provide.  But the State says,

         10  no, no, no, well you have to pay with a certain

         11  average, so, instead of paying you the equivalent of

         12  $100, just say $100 per unit of service, because

         13  your volume went up to 150, we are going to cut your

         14  rate down to $90.  I mean, it just makes total, no

         15  sense at all, there is no real rhyme or reason at

         16  this point for that, except to, you know, as a way

         17  to get to a certain cut.

         18                 And those two alone account for about

         19  almost $90 million of our cuts, $90 million of the

         20  200 million.  So, you know, fundamentally, I

         21  understand that there are budgetary concerns, but

         22  when you really look at the details of where, how

         23  they constructed the cut, it is not fair to New York

         24  City.  The "swap" is not fair, and these particular

         25  cuts, the IME and the volume adjustments are
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          2  deleterious to the Corporation, selectively

          3  deleterious to the Corporation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you, I just

          5  want to say, you know, although this hearing is

          6  specifically on the State cuts, it is just important

          7  for all of us to remember that whatever we are not

          8  able to prevent in the State, and this proposal, and

          9  these proposals in their entirety do not then make

         10  it so HHC or the Department of Health and Mental

         11  Hygiene do not have City cuts.  So we are talking

         12  today about the State, which is our topic.  But it

         13  is just important for all of us to remember they are

         14  not, if they were in a vacuum and alone, that would

         15  be devastating, but they are not, and there is more

         16  that will unfortunately come in these areas.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next, we will

         19  hear from the other Co- Chair, Margarita Lopez.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you for

         21  both of you for being here.  I have a couple of

         22  questions that I would like to direct myself.  The

         23  first one, Dr. Chu, can you be very graphic about

         24  what would be the consequences if the psychiatric

         25  hospital in the Bronx gets closed in regard to the
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          2  repercussions to the Health and Hospital

          3  Corporation?

          4                 DR. CHU:  Well, you know, the

          5  psychiatric hospital in the Bronx takes many of our

          6  patients, particularly from Jacobi and North Central

          7  Bronx and Lincoln.  I mean, but it does take our

          8  patients from others.  And as you know, one of the

          9  biggest, I mean it is probably, to be most graphic

         10  about it, it is long- term services for children are

         11  the hardest to get, and one of the impact is that

         12  children in our in- patient psychiatric services,

         13  where it is just not the right choice to, they are

         14  not ready to go home. Would have no other choice but

         15  to stay in the acute care setting. So instead of a

         16  length of stay that is, you know, 30 days, or 28

         17  days, you know, until we can get them either

         18  stabilized enough to go home or to go into a long-

         19  term psychiatric setting, where they can actually

         20  get continued therapies, they would actually stay in

         21  the acute care hospital.  Which means that the

         22  longer you keep somebody, who could be going to a

         23  different setting in the hospital, the fewer beds

         24  you are going to have for other resources. And as

         25  you know, Margarita, there is such a shortage of
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          2  acute care beds for children, as well as adults.  I

          3  mean that I think there are some pockets of

          4  shortages throughout.

          5                 But it is just pure and simple.  If

          6  you keep people in longer, you do not have that

          7  availability for other clients and other patients to

          8  come in, because you cannot send them somewhere

          9  else, and there is just going to be a backlog.  It

         10  is just like a damn, you put something in a damn,

         11  and the water builds and builds and builds, and

         12  pretty soon you are flood levels, you know, and

         13  there is nowhere to get the patients that come

         14  through your emergency or through your psychiatric

         15  clinics for a care that is absolutely needed on the

         16  in- patient basis.  And you get overcrowding, our C-

         17  Pep units will get overcrowded, people will try to

         18  go on diversion to try to prevent overloading.

         19  Because you know your responsibility is to take care

         20  of patients when they come in, and you cannot just

         21  sort of let people go, if they are in acute crisis.

         22  And if you have no in- patient bed to send them to,

         23  and you have no capacity in the emergency room, it

         24  is really sort of a no win situated.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Have you
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          2  articulated a dollar amount in regard of, if the

          3  worse scenario is that that facility is closed, what

          4  will be the dollar amount impact on your facilities?DR

          5  . CHU:  You know, I do not think that I can give you

          6  a dollar amount, it is just not the right thing to

          7  do, not to have services available, and to stop

          8  people at the door, because you cannot take them

          9  anymore.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then what we are

         11  talking about here is even beyond the question of

         12  money, it is a question of health policy at the

         13  heart of it.

         14                 DR. CHU:  Exactly, exactly right.  It

         15  is just that if there are plenty of capacity, and we

         16  are closing one, a hospital, you know it is just

         17  excess capacity, you know, it is just excess

         18  capacity, that would be one thing, but we know that

         19  for in patient psychiatric, the long- term

         20  psychiatrics, particularly for children, that there

         21  is just not enough.  I mean, I am not just talking

         22  about just, you know, 5 percent, 10 percent not

         23  enough, there is a real shortage here.  You know

         24  there is desperate need for more in- patient, you

         25  know, children psychiatric services.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.  Dr.

          3  Frieden, let's talk a little bit about syphilis,

          4  immunization for children, free adult flu shot

          5  vaccination, tuberculosis, the kind that is high

          6  risk patients with latent tuberculosis, and we know

          7  who they are, usually the majority of them are

          8  people with mental illness, who are homeless, who

          9  are on the street.  And I know that you are an

         10  expert on this, because you developed the protocol

         11  to deal with the big crisis we have, and a long time

         12  ago here.

         13                 Let's talk about that a little bit in

         14  the context of, what does that mean, what that means

         15  to not have enough money to deal with people who may

         16  have had syphilis, become infective with syphilis.

         17  What it means not to have money, to conduct the

         18  immunization program in the way that made sense to

         19  prevent our children to get infected with all of the

         20  diseases that we know that incidentally one of the

         21  reasons why we are in war in Iraq, is to make sure

         22  that all of these diseases does not get spread all

         23  over. And let's talk about the vaccination

         24  immunization program for the flu, talking about what

         25  is happening right now all over the planet in regard
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          2  to this issue.

          3                 You sent a letter to the Chairman of

          4  the Committee of Health at the State level, talking

          5  about these issues, and how this particular things

          6  that I have mentioned will be impossible for the

          7  Department to conduct.  My question to you is, isn't

          8  this, the proposal of the Governor an attempt to

          9  destroy public health policy?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  I think, as

         11  you know, if you reduce funding for public health,

         12  you pay for it.  And this is one of the things we

         13  discovered from the tuberculosis epidemic of the

         14  early 1990s.  Tuberculosis funding was drastically

         15  reduced from the mid- seventies to around 1990, it

         16  was essentially dismantled.  As a result New York

         17  City and New York State had to contend with a very

         18  expensive outbreak of multi- drug resistance

         19  tuberculosis, and ended up paying more than a

         20  billion dollars in the care of that outbreak, not in

         21  disease control, that did not cost very much.  But

         22  actually in caring for patients who developed TB and

         23  multi- drug resistant TB as a result of the spread

         24  of disease.

         25                 I think challenge is to ensure that
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          2  the State's commitment to public health stay

          3  steadfast despite the very severe financial

          4  difficulties that both City and State are facing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But the reason I

          6  am asking you questions about this one, is because

          7  syphilis is a communicable disease.  They

          8  immunizations that we are asking to be in place and

          9  not be eliminated due to the budget cuts, had to

         10  with, again, communicable diseases.  And

         11  Tuberculosis same thing, and the vaccination for the

         12  flu shot, same thing.  And if we are in the business

         13  of preventing catastrophic epidemics in here, the

         14  budget cut that we are talking about, can you

         15  explain to me, if we allow this budget cut proposal

         16  that the Governor is putting in place, what is going

         17  to be the impact on syphilis?

         18                 You said in your letter that one of

         19  the consequences of this is that testing cannot be

         20  done, and that Pap Smear test cannot be done.  Then

         21  can you please be more specific about this?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  I cannot give

         23  you details I do not have a crystal ball.  What I

         24  can say is that a reduction of funding of tens of

         25  millions of dollars to public health will undermine
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          2  our ability to control all of these diseases, and we

          3  will have to figure out how we will manage best.

          4  But all of them, represent real threats to our

          5  ability to ensure public health and safety.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then we are

          7  playing a game here that is very dangerous, this is

          8  what they call, Russian Roulette, I guess, you know.

          9    And the reason that I am looking into that

         10  particular one is because communities of disabled

         11  characteristics, mentally ill people, people with

         12  disabilities, in general, will be more fragile

         13  population to get many of these problems to them.

         14                 And according to how I see the budget

         15  proposal of the Governor, the disabled community, in

         16  general, is going to be tremendously impacted by

         17  this proposal.  And when I look at the question of

         18  these particular diseases, now we are talking about

         19  epidemics.  And this is something that is

         20  unacceptable, I believe. Then I am bringing this to

         21  your attention for you to, as the head of the Health

         22  Department of the City of New York, to explain to

         23  New Yorkers here, the impact that this is going to

         24  have in these particular diseases.

         25                 And you know, forgive me for always
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          2  being interested in the disabled community, but that

          3  is where my heart goes for the most part of the

          4  time.  I am interested in knowing what is then, what

          5  are you going to do, if this money does not come

          6  through, what is the proposal from the City?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Again, as I

          8  said earlier we are hopeful that this reduction will

          9  not occur.  If it does occur, we will deal with it

         10  as best we can, but it will result in a substantial

         11  reduction and services.  Exactly how we would do

         12  that, you know, there is a moving target between the

         13  City's budget, federal support, the State budget,

         14  and so that is a fairly dynamic situation.  But

         15  clearly, what we have done consistently is to

         16  prioritized the communities most in need,

         17  prioritized interventions that are most likely to be

         18  successful in those communities, and to do what we

         19  can to work better, work smarter.  But we have

         20  clearly gone beyond doing more with less, and we are

         21  now thinking about how much less we are going to do

         22  with the less that, we are going to be receiving.

         23                 My last question for now, Dr. Chu,

         24  the impact on the hospital in regard of the changes

         25  of Medicaid in relationship to the indirect funding
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          2  for graduate medical education, can you explain a

          3  little bit about that because this issue go beyond

          4  health care, this issue is getting into the question

          5  of economic development, and it is impacting the

          6  capacity of the universities that put the graduate

          7  students, well, I mean, not call them that, they get

          8  offended, right?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Help me with the

         11  terminology, here?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Well they are

         13  residents in training.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  They are

         15  residents, thank you, thank you for refreshing my

         16  memory.  The question of the residents being housed

         17  in the hospital, how does this play in the question

         18  of the economy and the development of our economy

         19  that we desperately need to revive?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Right.  Well,

         21  you know, the issue of graduate medical education

         22  payment, and this is the Medicaid portion, right?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  As you know,

         25  Medicare actually pays a tremendous amount as an add
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          2  on to their payment rates for the hospital to

          3  support the training of residents.  There are, you

          4  know, to really understand the whole thing, and

          5  remember, this is 20 some odd years of this kind of

          6  support.  It is, in my mind, it is always easier to

          7  think of it this way.  You know, we provide a lot of

          8  training to residents.  We train about, in New York

          9  City, we train about 12,000 interns and residents a

         10  year.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Twelve thousand?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Twelve

         13  thousand a year, at any given time in New York, we

         14  are training them at different levels, because there

         15  are multi- year programs for the training.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Excused me,

         17  12,000 in the Health and Hospital Corporation?

         18  COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  No, no, in the City of New

         19  York.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  At HHC, we

         22  paid for somewhere around 2,000 FTE's, but that

         23  2,000 FTE's actually translates to many more

         24  individuals, because the training of new doctors

         25  often requires, you know, experiences in different
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          2  settings.  So in our affiliated hospitals with the

          3  medical schools, they rotate through the medical

          4  schools, as well as to the public hospital system.

          5                 So, you know, at any given time, you

          6  know, a different person might show up for three,

          7  six months at a spell. So the impact for us is that

          8  we actually, we expose many trainees to medical

          9  care, and we actually train a good deal of the

         10  doctors. In fact, 50 percent of the doctors across

         11  the country were actually trained at some point in

         12  New York City.  At least 50 percent, I am sorry, 50

         13  percent of the trainees in New York City go

         14  elsewhere to practice medicine.

         15                 So, but they also, while they are

         16  here, learning, they also provide a vital function,

         17  they provide an important care to the communities

         18  that we serve as well.  But the funding, so that is

         19  one piece of it.  The funding for that is a hodge

         20  podge, it is a hodge podge of funding.  There is

         21  direct funding for their salaries and for some, you

         22  know, supervising doctors, and to help support the

         23  hospital.  And then there is this indirect medical

         24  registration pool, which really goes to a lot more.

         25  You know, I think the easiest way to do it, I am
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          2  sorry to be belaboring the point, but --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No, no, this is

          4  important, because this particular one goes beyond

          5  health issues.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  It also impacts

          8  the economy, and the economy then come around and

          9  impact the health.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  That is right,

         11  it impacts the economy, it is actually also money

         12  that is used to treat uninsured populations, because

         13  very often, teaching hospitals take on, I mean,

         14  teaching hospitals actually take on disproportionate

         15  share of the uninsured.  Nationwide teaching

         16  hospitals are only 20 percent of the beds, but they

         17  take on between 50 and 60 percent of the

         18  uncompensated care.

         19                 So, the indirect medical education is

         20  a pool of dollars that support education.  It also

         21  supports, you know, some built- in inefficiencies

         22  that sometimes happens when you are training a lot

         23  of people, because you have to spend a lot of time

         24  teaching residents about how to take care of

         25  patients.  And also, really quite frankly, as a pool
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          2  of money to support the care of uninsured, plus a

          3  lot of the advanced procedures that actually

          4  happened in teaching hospitals.  And that is why the

          5  indirect medical education is always, the most ill

          6  understood of the kinds of payment streams.  But it

          7  does absolutely contribute to the economy of the

          8  hospitals, the economy of the teaching enterprises,

          9  the economy of the medical schools.  And, in fact,

         10  you know every dollar is spent in health care, there

         11  is a multiplier effect that, you know, depending on

         12  who you read, can be anywhere from four to seven

         13  times more than the actual dollar that is spent

         14  here.

         15                 So, I think that is a long- winded

         16  answer to your question, but it is all of the cuts

         17  actually have an economic repercussions, but in

         18  particularly, IME cuts are difficult, because you

         19  know it does support a lot of the efforts that we

         20  put in to take care of the uninsured, to train

         21  residents, all of the added burdens that are built-

         22  in.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         25  much.  Next, we will have questions from Council
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          2  Member Gale Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

          4  very much, thank you, both.  I had a couple of

          5  questions that I think are more about the revenue

          6  side, and I suppose they could be on any budget

          7  discussion, but I want to ask about food purchase.

          8  I Chair the Technology Committee in the City

          9  Council.  And we have had many discussions with some

         10  of the accenture (phonetic) and others look that

         11  look at ways of saving money for municipalities.

         12  And there are states around this country that are

         13  doing sort of the E- Bay version of purchasing,

         14  reverse auctions, et cetera.  And particularly HHC,

         15  is this a place where you have looked at buying in a

         16  food, in much more bulk fashion and saving money,

         17  obviously, not compromising on whatever we eat in

         18  the hospital?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But I just

         21  wanted to know if that is something that has come

         22  up?  Because apparently they do not think, it has.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Well, I

         24  suppose off line unit, we can talk about the

         25  details, but we actually do have a fair amount of
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          2  bulk purchasing.  We have a cook chill facility on

          3  the Kings County Campus that provides meals and bulk

          4  for a number of our facilities.  And certainly, I

          5  think we actually could do it, could run it more,

          6  and if we had the business overall.  We are actually

          7  looking at top to bottom ways to bulk purchase and

          8  to, you know, get better pricing all around.

          9  Sometimes our vendors are not particularly happy

         10  with us in the process, but we have been driving

         11  lots of bargains, particularly around pharmaceutical

         12  costs.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  They do it,

         14  and even on line?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  I mean, we

         16  are, -- somebody said yes, here.  So, we are

         17  actually in the process of actually converting our

         18  purchasing system to an on- line purchasing system.

         19  So, I cannot say yes, right now, but within the next

         20  year, we are going to be, you know, eliminating

         21  those paper purchase orders that are the brains of

         22  all of our existence and trying to do these things

         23  more on- line.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, next

         25  question, just in terms of money too, is the
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          2  Department of Defense.  Everyone of my colleagues

          3  are probably sick of my asking, but I never forget

          4  that Bella Abzug got her first breath cancer

          5  research dollar from the Department of Defense.  And

          6  I just wondered, and that we have this overseas

          7  issue, is that something that either Department has

          8  looked at in terms of funding in any of your health

          9  facilities?  There are lots of dollars there, is

         10  there any possibility of accessing them for us?

         11  COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  We have explored all

         12  possibility including a Defense and Home Land

         13  Security, particularly, where it relates to bio-

         14  terrorism, and we will continue to do so, we have

         15  yet, to identify resources.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

         17                 DR. CHU:  And we ask everybody.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  All right.

         19  And then the lobbying effort, Yvette Clarke and I

         20  were talking and listening, and of course, I think

         21  we feel like we are doing by supporting what you are

         22  doing in terms of efforts, but also going ourselves

         23  to Washington and Albany.  But it is a strange

         24  situation, because when you listen to some of these

         25  horrendous possibilities, you just wonder what kind
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          2  of lobbying is going on.  So, I did not just know,

          3  are you personally going to Albany making calls?  I

          4  know there was discussion from you, Dr. Chu, about

          5  the disproportional impact on HHC compared to other

          6  hospitals.  How are we approaching this?

          7                 DR. CHU:  Well I guess we have been,

          8  I have been   -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  We love you, but

         10  sometimes we do not think the Mayor screams enough.

         11  Go ahead.

         12                 DR. CHU:  Well, I have actually had

         13  numbers of discussions, both here in New York and in

         14  Albany about the impact of the budget cuts with key

         15  legislative leaders in both the Assembly and the

         16  Senate side.  We have also had, we reached out to

         17  the Governor's Office and talked about that.  And so

         18  we have, our Community Advisory Boards have been

         19  unbelievable in getting out there and talking to

         20  elected officials as well.  They probably have

         21  lobbied you guys too, about the State budget I am

         22  sure.  So you, we have actually been fairly,

         23  effectively up there.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  And I would

         25  reiterate that we also are in active communication
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          2  with parties in Albany, and we have been not shy

          3  about speaking with the media as well, about what

          4  the impact would be in the event of these

          5  reductions.

          6                 I am going to have leave shortly to

          7  go to deal with some of the issues relating to the

          8  SARS.  I think that perhaps there are not questions

          9  for the Health Department yet, but if there are,

         10  please, let us know, and we would be happy to answer

         11  them in writing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER:  Just quickly, on

         13  pest control, I know that there are many items that

         14  you listed.  What would be the actual impact with

         15  the cut that you described, if it should go through?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Well, again,

         17  it is about a 17 percent reduction in every program,

         18  although pest control, it would be close to a

         19  million dollars.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, thank

         21  you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Okay,

         23  Commissioner, before you leave, I know Christine

         24  Quinn has one last question to ask of you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  It is very quick,
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          2  but I want to thank you for coming to the hearing

          3  today.

          4                 On the immunization and the HIV

          5  testing, if you know, if great, if not, if you could

          6  provide it to us, the staff was actually wondering

          7  if the City was to try to keep the HIV testing level

          8  at what it presently is, if Article VI did not

          9  happen, or if we were to do the same thing for HIV

         10  and for childhood immunization and for flu

         11  immunization for seniors and others, how much would

         12  that cost the City?  If you don't know, it could be

         13  provided to us later, please.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  We can get

         15  back to you again. Our hope would be that it would

         16  not come to pass, if it does, it ends up being about

         17  a 17 percent of whatever the current CTL expenditure

         18  is.  So, we will get that to you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         21  much, Commissioner, for coming here today, and to

         22  present your testimony to the New York City Council.

         23                 Next, we will hear from Council

         24  Member Helen Sears.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chair, and thank you, Dr. Chu.  I often said that I

          3  think the HHC has to be held over as a model

          4  nationwide, if not in the world, and when you travel

          5  around, you see the size of HHC and what you do, and

          6  what we do, and what is done elsewhere.

          7                 And actually, my question is, I don't

          8  think anything you can be specific about, but

          9  mentioning Elmhurst and how the population has grown

         10  so enormously in Queens.  There has been a lot of

         11  talk back and forth about amnesty, and that still is

         12  an issue that dangles out there, and I think it is

         13  beginning to take some movement in the Congress.

         14                 The population that HHC serves

         15  really, do you think that the undocumented

         16  population that you provide the services to would

         17  avail themselves of amnesty?  There have to be ways

         18  of getting monies for the treatments of the

         19  undocumented, and most of them would be on Medicaid,

         20  at least, initially until they either had their

         21  training or worked and what have you?  Because the

         22  numbers are large, they are really very large.

         23                 DR. CHU:  Well, I certainly think

         24  that if we, if health insurance, the public

         25  insurance programs were more available to the
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          2  undocumented that we would be working with

          3  community- based organizations and others to try to

          4  get people signed up.  You know, we do get some

          5  health insurance for undocumented children, they

          6  have actually qualify for Medicaid and Child Health

          7  Plus.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Is that

          9  through the facilities themselves or through the

         10  schools?

         11                 DR. CHU:  No, it is through, you

         12  know, when they come through out doors, we try to

         13  get them the insurance coverage. Pregnant women are

         14  also, you know, a part of the category that actually

         15  can get covered, so we try to get as many people

         16  covered as possible.  It would be great if we could

         17  just, you know, not even bother to - -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Exactly.

         19                 DR. CHU: - -  examine people, whether

         20  they are documented or undocumented.  Nobody knows

         21  really how many undocumented there are, I mean there

         22  are mess mixed there, maybe half a million or more.

         23  So, that is a huge burden on our, and because we do

         24  not ask people whether they are documented or not

         25  when they come into the hospitals, I cannot give you
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          2  a liable statistic.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I know,

          4  because you do not do that.  But I know that you

          5  provide the same quality of care regardless of who

          6  comes through that door.  I think that is something

          7  that we have to look at.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I think the next

          9  question is from the Council Member Stewart.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

         11  Madam Chairperson Chair.  Dr. Chu, good afternoon.

         12  Post 9/11, the rules were somewhat for enrollment

         13  into Medicaid was somewhat relaxed. And it has since

         14  then changed, recently.  I am wondering how, with

         15  the reduction in the Medicaid funding, the proposed

         16  reduction, how are you going to handle the

         17  rectification?

         18                 DR. CHU:  Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And I can

         20  see now the tremendous problem you are going to have

         21  trying to recertify, those people who have had

         22  Medicaid already, based on the relaxed rules post-

         23  9/11, how are you intending to handle that?

         24                 DR. CHU:  Well, you know, Dr.

         25  Stewart, as you know, our strategy for financial
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          2  well being, or reasonable financial well being, I

          3  guess the sign is many of our uninsured patients

          4  into the public insurance program, and so we have

          5  been aggressively pursuing that.  Obviously, with

          6  disaster Medicaid and the one- page forum, with the,

          7  you know, presumptive eligibility going away, it is

          8  harder to get people on.  And I think you correctly

          9  pointing out that the rectification process, which

         10  was relaxed, meaning every six months to a year,

         11  somebody who was on the public insurance program has

         12  to recertify to get, to maintain their coverage.

         13  And it is sort of like for us, to have to, you know,

         14  we sign up for a health plan when we are employed,

         15  if we are employed for 10 years, we do not have to

         16  resign up.  But for the Medicaid patients and for

         17  people in Family Health Plus and Child Health Plus,

         18  anywhere from six months to a year, you have to go

         19  through the same process over again.  So that was

         20  relaxed after 9/11, and now it has been re

         21  implemented.

         22                 And just to give you an idea in raw

         23  numbers, in the month of, in the April

         24  reconciliation, we signed up a little over 13,000

         25  new members to Metro Plus Health Plan, but a little
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          2  over 5,000, you know, did not make it through the

          3  recertification process, or were what is called,

          4  involuntarily disenrolled, you know, not by their

          5  own choice, but for a variety of reasons they did

          6  not make it through the recertification process.

          7                 So the net increase for us, actually,

          8  the net increase for us was about 7,000 overall,

          9  because there was another thousand voluntary

         10  disenrollment.  But you could just quickly imagine

         11  that if we did not have that involuntary

         12  disenrollment, in other words, if the people on

         13  Medicaid and public health insurance kept the

         14  insurance for longer periods of time, or if, God

         15  forbid, if they kept the insurance like we did,

         16  until, you know, we changed jobs, it would make a

         17  huge difference.  I mean, if we are losing 5,000

         18  members a month, that is 60,000 a year, and I am

         19  doing the math right, 60,000 members a year that we

         20  eventually have to resign up, if they qualify, but

         21  who could actually continue this insurance.

         22                 So very quickly, you understand that

         23  it is really a two- way street.  We can increase the

         24  numbers of insured by increasing their enrollment,

         25  but we can do, probably almost as well, if we stop
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          2  the leakage, right?  And if we had a system that is

          3  more like the system of health care for us, as long

          4  as we are employed, as long as we are there, we do

          5  not have to go through a recertification process, I

          6  think we can make a huge dent on the uninsured.

          7                 And then, I know it is a budgetary

          8  impact on the State and the City, but it is actually

          9  the better thing to do. Because nothing more

         10  disruptive than, you know, getting on an insurance

         11  program, and then six months later rolling off.  It

         12  wrecks havoc on the health care system, enormously

         13  expensive, because it takes a lot of time and effort

         14  and money to pay for people to get signed up again,

         15  only to have them lose it, and having them signed up

         16  again.  And there is no way to build some continuity

         17  and care, you know, when you are worried about

         18  whether you actually have payment for care.

         19                 So it is just another one of those,

         20  almost idiotic things about our health care

         21  financing system that just does not make sense, it

         22  goes against the grain of sensibility, and actually,

         23  I think in the long run it costs us a lot more.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  The other

         25  question that I have is that, sometimes last year
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          2  around this time, you had a proposal to simplify the

          3  form, the applications form for applying. What can

          4  you tell me about that now?

          5                 DR. CHU:  I am still pursuing it,

          6  that is all I can say.  I mean, I have to say that

          7  Verna Eggleston at HRA have been very cooperative

          8  with us, you know, in helping us sign people up. I

          9  mean, where we would have to have cooperation in

         10  order to get the results that we have gotten over

         11  the last year or so.  But it is not dictated by the

         12  City at this point, it is really sort of the State

         13  process that we have to work with.  And there has

         14  not been any real traction on some of the real

         15  simplification that we would like to see.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  As always,

         17  it is always a pleasure hearing from you.  Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  Our

         20  final question is going to be from Council Member

         21  Gentile, following those questions, the Health

         22  Committee will vote on the two resolutions, and then

         23  we call up our first panel, which is just so folks

         24  can get ready, Judy Wessler, Denise Soffel, Tara

         25  Sher, Carmen Perez, Doctor Barbara Barlow, and
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          2  Michael Freedman, the Director of the Metro Center

          3  for Mental Health Policy and Advocacy.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  I understand

          5  that.  She may have said this, but for those who are

          6  not recertified for Medicaid, that treatment

          7  continues, correct?

          8                 DR. CHU:  Well if people continue to

          9  come to the hospitals, we treat them regardless of

         10  their insurance status, but it makes it much harder

         11  to, I mean, you know, it depends.  If somebody loses

         12  their insurance, are you more or less likely to go

         13  seek care?  I do not know the answer to that.  I

         14  mean, I think that people when they know they do not

         15  have insurance, sometimes they hesitate, and in

         16  fact, there is good data to show that people without

         17  insurance actually seek care much less then people.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Right.

         19                 DR. CHU:  But if they come to our

         20  hospitals, we take care of them regardless.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  What I am

         22  suggesting is those who started as Medicaid patients

         23  lose certification, and they are in the course of

         24  treatment, you will continue - -

         25                 DR. CHU:  We will continue to treat
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          2  them

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: - -  to treat

          4  them unreimbursed.

          5                 DR. CHU:  That is right.  We would do

          6  that, you know, assuming that they continue to come

          7  to us.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Right, okay.

          9    Just a quick question, something you said at the

         10  beginning, and I am not sure that I understand how

         11  this works.  You indicated in your testimony that

         12  the proposed increases in the EPIC and Medicaid

         13  beneficiary co- pays, has an effect on the service

         14  that you provide.  I am not sure how that effects

         15  your bottom line.

         16                 DR. CHU:  It just means, you know,

         17  pharmaceutical drugs, if you have gone to the doctor

         18  recently and gotten an antibiotic, - -

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Sure.

         20                 DR. CHU: - -  some medication, you

         21  will see sticker shock, right, when you go to the

         22  pharmacy and you have to pay for that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  One hundred

         24  and sixteen percent.

         25                 DR. CHU:  Right, it is unbelievable
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          2  how much these medications cost.  Well, you know,

          3  just think about it, to an elderly person who is on

          4  the EPIC program, because of their low income, or to

          5  somebody in the public insurance program where there

          6  is a co- pay, you know, a requirement, it is just an

          7  increase of how much out- of- pocket has to happen.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Right, it

          9  does not affect your ability, it affects the

         10  patient's ability to pay.

         11                 DR. CHU:  Yes.  But, I mean, if we

         12  help, you know our obligation is to try to help our

         13  patients get access to the medications.  And it is

         14  no good for me to write a prescription to something

         15  that I know somebody cannot buy or fill.  So it does

         16  impact us in that respect.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Absolutely.

         18  And I think, Commissioner Frieden said this before,

         19  which kind of sums this up here, and see if you

         20  agree.  He said that we are at this point now, we

         21  are beyond the point of doing more with less, we are

         22  at the point now of doing less with less.

         23                 DR. CHU:  Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Would you

         25  agree with that?
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          2                 DR. CHU:  I think we are fast

          3  approaching that point.  You know, obviously, we

          4  will try to do the best we can. And I am eternally

          5  optimistic, as you probably know.  I just, we will

          6  try do to everything we can to become much more

          7  efficient, but it is getting harder and harder and

          8  harder.  And I think the key is what I told you in

          9  the beginning that our budget for the last 10 years

         10  has essentially been flat, really essentially flat.

         11  And if we just had, had the normal health care

         12  inflation, which, you know, obviously, nobody has

         13  had total health inflation.   But at 6.9 percent a

         14  year, our budget would be $7 billion, instead of,

         15  you know, a little shy of $4 billion right now.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Right.

         17                 DR. CHU:  And that is the difference.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Well, thank

         19  you for your efforts, Doctor.  We are all hoping

         20  that the Governor does not abdicate his

         21  responsibilities here.

         22                 DR. CHU:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

         24  much, Dr. Chu. We appreciate your time and all the

         25  work of your staff.  Thank you very much.
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          2                 Next we are going to have the Health

          3  Committee vote on the two resolutions, one, is

          4  Proposed Reso. No. 106- A, resolution calling upon

          5  Governor Pataki to withdraw an FY 2003- 2004 budget

          6  proposal to amend Article VI of the Public Health

          7  Law, to limit State matching funds receive by cities

          8  and counties for eligible public health activities,

          9  and further calling upon the New York State

         10  Legislature to reject all FY 2003- 2004 budget

         11  proposals which limits State matching funds received

         12  by cities and counties for eligible public health

         13  activities.  This resolution have been introduced by

         14  myself, by the Speaker, by Council Members Lopez,

         15  Weprin, Baez, Brewer, Comrie, Davis, Dilan, Fidler,

         16  Foster, Gerson, Jackson, Liu, McMahon, Monserrate,

         17  Perkins, Rivera, Sanders, Sears, and Serrano.

         18                 And a Preconsidered Resolution

         19  calling upon Governor Pataki to withdraw the FY

         20  2003- 2004 budget proposal to cut Medicaid's funds

         21  received by cities and county, and further calling

         22  upon the New York State Legislature to reject all

         23  future FY 2003 2004 budget proposals that limit

         24  Medicaid funds received by cities and counties, that

         25  Preconsidered Resolution was introduced by the
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          2  Speaker, Gifford Miller, myself, Council Members

          3  Rivera, Lopez, and DeBlasio.

          4                 And if the Clerk could please call

          5  the roll?  Yes, with the two items coupled, please,

          6  yes.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Aye on both.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Clarke.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Madam Chair,

         11  I would like just ask if it is possible for my to

         12  sponsor these two pieces of legislation?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Absolutely, if

         14  the Clerk could please note it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  And I vote,

         16  aye on both.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Aye on both.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Stewart.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Madam Chair,

         22  may I add my name to that resolution?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, please.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And I vote

         25  aye on both. Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vann.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Yes, suddenly

          4  Madam Chair, I thought I did respond, perhaps my

          5  office did not get it to you timely, but I also

          6  would like to sponsor, and I vote aye on both.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Sure, I

          8  apologize, if we perhaps did not get it through in

          9  time.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Might be our

         11  fault.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Oddo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Madam Chair,

         15  may I be temporarily excused to explain my vote?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I was

         18  introduced to the phrase Hopson Choice back in the

         19  early nineties by my mentor then, Tom Ognibene, a

         20  former colleague.  And I think that we have lots of

         21  Hopson Choices as a body.  Clearly, I respect and

         22  understand the concerns articulated by you, and by

         23  some of our colleagues.  And clearly, I do not think

         24  that the swap is the Medicaid Reform that we need in

         25  this city and this state.  So where do you find

                                                            85

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  yourself on a vote like this?

          3                 I am going to abstain because I do

          4  not think that a yes vote or a no vote actually

          5  captures how I feel.  I think the bottom line is,

          6  and I do not think it was really focused on this

          7  hearing, you know, we still are the most benevolent

          8  state in this country, and we do have an out- of-

          9  control Medicaid system.  And I just call my

         10  colleagues attention back to last week, when the

         11  Mayor briefed us on the budget and said that if we

         12  get past this budget we are greeted with the prize

         13  on July 1st on having a $1 billion hole next year

         14  immediately, as a result of out- of- control

         15  Medicaid and Pension cost.

         16                 So simply saying restoring these

         17  cuts, to me, it does not frame the issue correctly.

         18  I do not criticize your attempt, or any attempts to

         19  do that.  I just think that for me, at least, we

         20  have to go beyond that, and you have to reign in

         21  what we don't control now, we will have to cut later

         22  on, in services that are important to all of our

         23  districts.

         24                 So with that said, I respectfully

         25  will abstain on both.

                                                            86

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 5 in the

          3  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and 1 abstention,

          4  both items are adopted.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  If

          6  the Council members could just sign the forms.  We

          7  are going to call up our next panel, which is a

          8  couple of changes, Judy Wessler from the

          9  Commissioner on the Public Health System, Denise

         10  Soffel of CSS, Tara Sher of the Assistance Committee

         11  for Children, Doctor Barbara Barlow, the Chief of

         12  Surgery at Harlem Hospital, Doctor James King also

         13  of Harlem Hospital, and Bill Lienhard, who is

         14  representing and testifying on behalf of Michael

         15  Freedman, the Director of the Metro Center for

         16  Mental Health Policy and Advocacy.

         17                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please raise your right

         18  hand?  Do you swear that the testimony that you are

         19  about to provide before this Committee is the whole

         20  truth, and that you will answer Council member

         21  questions truthfully?

         22                 ALL:  I do.

         23                 MS. BOLANOS:  Okay.  Please proceed

         24  in the order that you were called, thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  We may need to
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          2  have Mr. Lienhard go first, because I think he has

          3  some other appointment he had to be at.

          4                 MS. BOLANOS:  Yes, that is correct,

          5  thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So, aside from

          7  that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Very quickly

          9  before you start, we are going to be implementing

         10  the three- minute clock for the testimony that will

         11  be coming forward.

         12                 MR. LIENHARD:  Chairpersons Lopez,

         13  Quinn, and Rivera, and Committee members, thank you

         14  very much for your efforts on behalf of people of

         15  psychiatric disabilities in New York City, and thank

         16  you for giving me this opportunity to speak, on

         17  behalf of Michael Freedman.

         18                 My name is Bill Lienhard, I am from

         19  the Mental Health Project at the Urban Justice

         20  Center.  And what I am going to do is just hit some

         21  of the highlights of the Executive Budget Request

         22  for Mental Health, prepared by Michael Freedman, and

         23  then just add some of my own general comments at the

         24  end.

         25                 As has been mentioned the Executive
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          2  Budget would cause the closing of three State

          3  psychiatric centers Upstate, as well as two State

          4  psychiatric centers in the Bronx, it would also

          5  cause a reduction of 23 percent of the State- funded

          6  research positions.  It would cause a reduction of

          7  90 adult in- patient beds in State psychiatric

          8  centers, a reduction of 812 staff for adult

          9  services, a reduction of 950 OMH staff in total.

         10  And on local services there would be no cost of

         11  living adjustments for 2003 to 2004.  And perhaps,

         12  most importantly, there will be no Community

         13  Reinvestment Funding until Fiscal Year 2005, when it

         14  would be used for creating Supportive Housing beds

         15  and also for other purposes.

         16                 As has been mentioned previously

         17  there will be a 5 percent cut to in- patient

         18  psychiatric units in general hospitals, and access

         19  to medications covered by Medicaid would be limited,

         20  although it is possible, and we are hoping for this

         21  that antidepressants and the atypical psychotics

         22  would be exempt from that.  Perhaps worse, children

         23  in families over 100 percent of the poverty level

         24  will lose Medicaid and be switched to Child Health

         25  Plus, which provides less mental health coverage.
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          2                 All right, State payments to

          3  localities for Medicaid overburdened would be

          4  capped, resulting in increase local costs for

          5  Medicaid for people with serious and persistent

          6  mental illness.

          7                 Finally, I wanted to add that my

          8  program, the Mental Health Project works with,

          9  specifically with very poor people with psychiatric

         10  disabilities.  And the system as it is, is already

         11  ailing.  We, in our clinics, we have got a Time

         12  Square Clinic and a clinic in Queens for

         13  specifically for Spanish- speakers with mental

         14  illness.

         15                 We see people cycling through

         16  Riker's, the City jails, the acute care hospital

         17  psychiatric wards, homeless shelters and the street.

         18    So, that instead of, even now as it is, instead of

         19  receiving care, and getting mental health treatment,

         20  people are, and being housed and supportive housing,

         21  they are receiving their care from emergency rooms,

         22  which is much more expensive, and they are receiving

         23  their housing from Riker's.  And I think if this

         24  budget goes through, we are going to see an ailing

         25  system crippled and come to its knees.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you.  From

          4  now on, we will proceed in the normal order.

          5                 MS. WESSLER:  First, thanks for

          6  holding this hearing, and thanks for the leadership

          7  of the Council on the issue of Medicaid.  The

          8  Commission on the Public Health System, I am Judy

          9  Wessler, we supported the Council's in defense of

         10  Medicaid, and we are also a member of the New York

         11  State Medicaid Defense Group.  I think you will hear

         12  from a lot of us today.

         13                 I am not going to talk about

         14  Medicaid, because I figured a lot of people were

         15  going to.  I was going to raise the issue of the

         16  discrimination against the Health and Hospitals

         17  Corporation based on the Governor's proposals.  Dr.

         18  Chu did that very well.  So I do not need to add to

         19  it.  I have one difference with what he said, but I

         20  do not want to waste my time on it, my very short

         21  time.

         22                 I am going to talk about Article VI

         23  funding stream, and just hammer away at some of the

         24  points.  One is that less than 1 percent of any

         25  funding and health care goes for prevention, yet, we
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          2  know that keeping people healthy, preventing worse

          3  illness, actually, not only helps people, but also

          4  saves money.  And yet, this is one, probably the

          5  only funding stream from the State that provides

          6  funds for prevention and it is being cut back,

          7  seriously, and we go back to the theme we have used

          8  in the past, penny- wise and pound foolish, and this

          9  is beyond foolish.  I will clean up my language and

         10  not say what I want to say about it.

         11                 City Health Commissioner you heard

         12  from today, and so he gave the details, I am not

         13  going to go into that, except to say that his

         14  concerns, unfortunately are very limited.  He raised

         15  a couple of items that will be hurt by the Article

         16  VI funding change.  He left out a whole list of very

         17  critical services in the City that will also be hurt

         18  by Article VI, which he did not touch on.  And I

         19  want to talk about those.

         20                 Child Health Clinics get Article VI

         21  funding.  He is proposing to close 12 of them, there

         22  are three others that were closed, they are supposed

         23  to be renovated and reopened, they will not be, so

         24  that is 15 Child Health Clinics that will lose.

         25  Those are major services for children with, you
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          2  know, asthma out of control as it is, to eliminate

          3  these services is worse than an outrage.  And he did

          4  not even mention it.

          5                 So that is another issue to add to

          6  the list.  The asthma initiative is being cut, I

          7  believe they get Article VI dollars, and at a time

          8  when, you know, the Harlem Hospital and Harlem

          9  Childrens Zone Study, which was the first one to do

         10  an intensive look at children, not just count how

         11  many children get hospitalized for asthma, but to

         12  look at what is happening with children, showed that

         13  25 percent of the children in Harlem have asthma.

         14  If you went to the Bronx, you would find the same

         15  thing, you went to parts of Brooklyn, you would find

         16  the same thing.  So doing any kind of cuts in asthma

         17  programs is disgraceful.  Okay?

         18                 The $5 million infant mortality

         19  initiative, the Commissioner keeps touting that

         20  infant mortality has gone down, it has.  But it has

         21  not gone down in Black African- American and Latino

         22  communities.  I is still intolerably high.  The

         23  Council had funded a $5 million program for outreach

         24  and education in communities of color, that money

         25  has what we think will be left, if everything goes
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          2  through as proposed, will be about $700,000 out of

          3  the $5 million.   We will have an increase again in

          4  infant mortality, as well as an increase in low

          5  birth weights, and, you know, that is just not

          6  acceptable.

          7                 Another program, definitely know that

          8  Article VI funding matches is to pay for waivers of

          9  the administrative outpatient fee for uninsured

         10  patients in the Health and Hospitals Corporation.  I

         11  just want you to think about having diabetes, and

         12  not having access to insulin, think about being

         13  hypotensive, and not having needed medication.

         14  Think about an asthmatic, not having access to

         15  medication, and that is what you will have, and yet,

         16  the Commissioner did not even mention this critical

         17  program for which we need Article VI and City money.

         18    So, you know, again, it is amazing.

         19                 The final one is the smoking

         20  cessation program, which the Council, unfortunately,

         21  did not fund accept for a very small part.  There

         22  again, you know, we have punitive measures of

         23  raising tobacco tax, and limiting where people can

         24  smoke, which is appropriate, but then you should

         25  have a comprehensive program and have funding for
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          2  smoking cessation.  That is out of the budget, that

          3  got some Article VI funding as well, and should be

          4  restored, and that money should be there, if we are

          5  serious about helping people to stop smoking.

          6                 There are other examples that the

          7  Commission could cited, but my time is well out.

          8  The point is made that we spend billions on trying

          9  to make people better after they get sick.  At the

         10  same time, the Governor is proposing to reduce the

         11  already inadequate, public health funding stream for

         12  localities, which undoubtedly has the most serious

         13  impact in New York City.

         14                 We urge the City Council to work with

         15  us and others, we are working to change the

         16  Governor's proposed budget, and we know that you

         17  are, and we really, really, do appreciate it.

         18  Article VI funding should be increased to address

         19  serious public health problems.  We did not talk

         20  about SARS yet, you know, which I am sure we are not

         21  prepared for.  So, and whatever else is coming down

         22  the pike, and the funding should not be reduced in

         23  this discriminatory way.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Judy, thank you
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          2  very much.  I just want to let you know, we just

          3  checked, going through the list of the other items

          4  you mentioned, which I am glad you did, because not,

          5  it was not the full list at all.  We just doubled

          6  checked it, outpatient medication waivers do not get

          7  Article VI, so that is the least, - -

          8                 MS. WESSLER:  They did get, there was

          9  matching, because it was 1.7, the rest came from the

         10  State.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Maybe if you

         12  could talk to the Finance folks?

         13                 MS. WESSLER:  Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Because our

         15  understanding, through our Finance folks and through

         16  HHC is that is not the case, so we were assuming

         17  that was an Article VI --

         18                 MS. WESSLER:  Well I remember, I do

         19  not know about now, I know when we first got that

         20  program through, what with Victor Robles on it, - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

         22                 MS. WESSLER: - -  and it was

         23  absolutely matched by Article VI funds.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  But last year's

         25  initiative was not.
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          2                 MS. WESSLER:  I do not know the

          3  answer to that one.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  But that is what

          5  I have just been --

          6                 MS. WESSLER:  But it should be.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well, but the

          8  reality is just as it relates to things that we

          9  could lose, which the list is long if this happens,

         10  the way outpatient medication waivers were funded in

         11  the budget that we are in, they were not, I cannot

         12  tell you why, but they did not receive Article Vi.

         13  So in the odd way that is a good thing, at this

         14  moment in time, because they would not be affected

         15  by the cut.

         16                 MS. WESSLER:  No, but they are being

         17  cut in the November budget it was cut.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right, but they

         19  are not being cut by the Article VI thing.  So I

         20  just wanted you to know for your future

         21  communication with other advocates that last year,

         22  the year we are in, the outpatient medication money

         23  was not funded with Article VI matches, so that is

         24  not impacted by that.

         25  As I said to Doctors Chu and Frieden, these cuts are
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          2  not in a vacuum, there are other cuts, so that is

          3  the case in this.  So I just wanted to make sure

          4  that was clear.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MS. WESSLER:  Okay, thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Next we will

          8  hear from Denise Soffel, from Community Service

          9  Society.

         10                 MS. SOFFEL:  Hi, my name is Denise

         11  Soffel, and I am the Senior Policy Analyst for

         12  Health at the Community Service Society.  I am sure

         13  that is an organization that is familiar to many of

         14  you.  And David Jones, our President, was very

         15  pleased to stand with Council Member Quinn and other

         16  members of the Council last week when the "In

         17  Defense of Medicaid Report,"  was released.

         18                 CSS is also a founding member of the

         19  New York State Medicaid Defense Group, which I will

         20  talk about in a minute.  I am, unlike Judy, who

         21  decided not to talk about Medicaid, I am going to

         22  talk about Medicaid.  And at a time when poverty is

         23  increasing in New York, at a time when unemployment

         24  is at a 10- year high, assuring that our most

         25  vulnerable residents can maintain access to health
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          2  benefits becomes more and more critical.  The

          3  economy in New York is stagnating and it does not

          4  look like it is going to be turning around as

          5  quickly as most of us would have hoped.

          6                 The number of people without job-

          7  related health insurance, already high in New York

          8  State is going to increase. Medicaid becomes more

          9  important than ever in this kind of an economic

         10  environment.

         11                 The topic of today's hearing was

         12  Medicaid's being fair to New York City.  I would

         13  like to remind all of us in this room, that New York

         14  State's Medicaid's program has never been fair to

         15  New York City.  New York is one of 20 states that

         16  has any local share requirement at all.  And even

         17  among other states that do have local share, the

         18  amounts are dramatically lower than that required

         19  here in New York.

         20                 In California, for instance, local

         21  share is limited to two components of the Medicaid

         22  program, Personal Care Services and one Mental

         23  Health program.  Illinois only requires local share

         24  for county- owned nursing homes and providers.  In

         25  New Jersey, local share is limited to county
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          2  psychiatric and nursing home facilities. In

          3  Pennsylvania, to county- owned nursing homes.  That

          4  is to say that in most states that do impose a

          5  county share, it is for a discrete set of services.

          6                 One estimate prepared by the US

          7  Advisory Commission on Intergovernmental Relations,

          8  indicated that New York's counties pay over 80

          9  percent of all Medicaid funding generated from local

         10  share, nationwide.  And New York City pays the bulk

         11  of the county share here within New York State.

         12  Governor Pataki's proposed cuts to Medicaid

         13  exacerbate the disproportionate burden the City

         14  bears, and disproportionately hurt New York City.

         15  The swap, which has been talked about already is

         16  deliberately targeted to shift Medicaid cost to the

         17  City and its surrounding communities.

         18                 But New York City gets hurt in

         19  another way, City residents are more likely to be

         20  poor, and more likely to rely on public insurance

         21  programs.  While 42 percent of the State population

         22  lives in New York City, almost 60 percent of the

         23  State's uninsured, and two- thirds of those

         24  receiving Medicaid, live in New York City.  When

         25  public insurance programs were cut, the impact is
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          2  felt more profoundly here in the City, then in other

          3  parts of the State.

          4                 Medicaid matters, almost two million

          5  New York City residents rely on Medicaid to maintain

          6  access to health care.  Many of them, close to 70

          7  percent are low- income families, moms and kids who

          8  rely on Medicaid because of they are unemployed, or

          9  because they work in jobs that do not offer

         10  insurance.  This includes getting kids access to

         11  EPSTD, it includes PCAP, which allows pregnant women

         12  access to prenatal care.  But it is really important

         13  to remember that Medicaid is more than that.  It

         14  fills many other gaps in our health care system,

         15  gaps that would not be filled, if Medicaid were

         16  withdrawn.

         17                 Medicaid is the primary public source

         18  of funding for long- term services and supports for

         19  people with disabilities.               Medicaid is

         20  the largest funder of the State and local spending

         21  on mental health services.

         22                 For low- income seniors covered by

         23  Medicare, Medicaid is often the only source of

         24  access to prescription drug coverage.

         25                 For people with cognitive and other
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          2  disabilities, Medicaid is the only source of funds

          3  for them to live in the community where they belong,

          4  instead of being inappropriately warehoused.

          5                 Medicaid matters in another way as

          6  well.  Health care providers in low- income

          7  communities rely heavily on Medicaid as a major

          8  source of revenue.  If Medicaid is cut, safety net

          9  providers are threatened.  Physicians practicing in

         10  low- income neighborhoods do not have a wealthy,

         11  well- insured set of clients to offset inadequate

         12  Medicaid payments.  In fact, quite the obverse is

         13  true, in many of these communities, if people do not

         14  have Medicaid, they are likely to be uninsured.

         15  Several years ago, CSS conducted a survey in nine

         16  low- income neighborhoods looking at primary care

         17  availability.  In places like Bed- Sty, Fort Greene,

         18  Mott Haven, Morris Heights and Harlem, the shortage

         19  of primary care physicians was pervasive.  The

         20  providers who are there in community health centers,

         21  in private practice, and at community- based sites,

         22  cannot survive without Medicaid.  Neighborhoods

         23  already medically under served are at risk of

         24  becoming health care wastelands.

         25                 Attacks on Medicaid, such as those
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          2  proposed by the Governor, would result in many

          3  extremely vulnerable people left no place to turn.

          4  Medicaid serves a large number of people who would

          5  otherwise be uninsured, and a smaller number of

          6  people whose very lives depend on Medicaid.  In

          7  response to Governor Pataki's proposed cuts, and in

          8  recognition of the size and breath of these

          9  populations, the New York State Medicaid defense

         10  group was formed. This is a rapidly growing

         11  coalition of consumers, consumer advocates and

         12  community health care providers that serve them.  In

         13  less than eight weeks, over 80 organizations have

         14  come together to collectively raise our voices, and

         15  say, Medicaid is good for New Yorkers, Medicaid is

         16  good for New York.

         17                 We really appreciate the support the

         18  Council has shown on this issue, and especially the

         19  leadership of Councilwoman Quinn.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you for all

         22  your help.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Next, we will hear from Tara Sher, from CCC.

         25                 MS. SHER:  Good afternoon.  My name
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          2  is Tara Sher, and I am the Staff Associate for

          3  Health and Mental Health at the Citizens Committee

          4  for Children of New York.  Thank you for convening

          5  this hearing, and for you leadership in the effort

          6  to protect vital public health and mental health

          7  services for New York City children, adults and

          8  families.  CCC is a 59- year- old independent,

          9  multi- issue child advocacy organization, and we are

         10  also a member of the Medicaid Defense Group.

         11                 The State Executive Budget poses

         12  grave risks to New York's children and to New York

         13  City's children in particular.  It not only

         14  threatens educational opportunities for young

         15  children, but also proposes to create savings by

         16  diminishing the access that children have to health,

         17  mental health, and early intervention services.

         18                 For New York City children these

         19  program reductions are compounded by deep City

         20  budget cuts, and less revenue than the City needs to

         21  balance its budget this year.  An estimated $1.2

         22  billion in cuts to City agencies serving children

         23  has been proposed by the Mayor for the coming fiscal

         24  year.

         25                 My testimony today focuses on the
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          2  impact of the State proposals on Children's Health

          3  Services.  I apologize, but I was unaware that the

          4  hearing also covered mental health services. But I

          5  am happy to try to answer any questions you may have

          6  about children's mental health, or follow- up with

          7  you afterwards.

          8                 New York State has established itself

          9  as a national leader for increasing insurance

         10  coverage for children.  Examples of recent

         11  achievements include the creation and expansion of

         12  Child Health Plus, the expansion of Medicaid

         13  eligibility for 6- to 19 year- olds with incomes of

         14  up to 133 percent of the federal poverty level, and

         15  last year's adoption of administrative and statutory

         16  changes that have simplified the enrollment and

         17  recertification processes and has moved New York

         18  closer to the goal of creating a seamless health

         19  insurance system for children.

         20                 The State Executive budget proposal

         21  to shift to 6- to 19- year- olds with incomes

         22  between 100 and 133 percent of the federal poverty

         23  level from Child Health Plus A or Medicaid to Child

         24  Health Plus B threatens to undo this progress.

         25                 First and most importantly, the
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          2  system is not equipped to manager the movement of

          3  large numbers of children from one insurance program

          4  to the other.  Experience has shown that despite

          5  best efforts, children are lost in the transition,

          6  and once again, become uninsured.

          7                 Second, if the proposal is adopted,

          8  it will create confusion, perhaps, distrust among

          9  those families, who as a result of the eligibility

         10  expansion to 133 percent of the federal poverty

         11  level that took effect in April of 2002, enrolled

         12  their children in CHP A during the last 18 months.

         13                 The State will also continue to share

         14  35 percent of the cost of CHP B coverage with the

         15  federal government for children targeted by the

         16  proposal.  This means that the savings to the State

         17  from this transfer are negligible unless they are

         18  intended to come from the reduction and the number

         19  of children now enrolled who get lost in the

         20  transition.  This would be an appalling result for a

         21  state that leads the nation in improving health

         22  insurance coverage for children.

         23                 New York State's early intervention

         24  program has also received national recognition.

         25  These services meet the needs of infants and
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          2  toddlers with developmental delays, and are

          3  available to families at no cost.  The State

          4  Executive budget proposal to reduce the cost of EI

          5  service to the State, by imposing it on insurance

          6  companies, parents, and providers.  Although the

          7  reliance on reimbursement from insurance companies

          8  is allowable under federal guidelines, we have

          9  serious concerns about shifting the cost to low-

         10  income and working families.  We are also concerned

         11  that the proposal of financially burdened providers,

         12  many of whom are simply not equipped to assume the

         13  responsibility for insurance and parent fee

         14  collection.

         15                 The State Executive Budget proposal

         16  to assess hospitals also poses a real danger for

         17  children.  As Dr. Chu stated earlier, hospitals now

         18  play an important role in providing inpatient and

         19  outpatient, health and mental health services to

         20  children.  Yet the proposed assessment on hospital

         21  services likely to reduce capacity.

         22                 Finally, the State Executive Budget

         23  proposal to reduce Article VI met the Article VI

         24  match for public health programs threatens to reduce

         25  State funding for school- based health programs,
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          2  infant mortality initiative, the Child Health

          3  Clinics, the asthma initiative, the lead poison

          4  prevention programs, and other programs serving

          5  children.  The Mayor's Executive and Contingency

          6  Budgets similarly threatened to reduce or eliminate

          7  funding for a number of these programs.

          8                 In sum, the State Executive Budget,

          9  Health and Medicaid proposals present serious risks

         10  for particularly low income and immigrant children

         11  who will have drastically reduced access to health

         12  and mental health services.  Added to this dire

         13  situation is the possibility that the Mayor's

         14  proposed health cuts will also move forward.  The

         15  accumulative effect of these circumstances will be

         16  the virtual extension of many of New York City's

         17  community- based children's public health services.

         18                 We applaud your leadership in

         19  challenging the Governor's Medicaid and Health

         20  proposals.  And thank you, again, for this

         21  opportunity to testify.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         23  much.  Next, we will hear from Doctor Barbara

         24  Barlow.

         25                 DR. BARLOW:  Hello, I am Doctor
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          2  Barbara Barlow.  I am Director of Surgery at Harlem

          3  Hospital, and I arrived at Harlem Hospital in 1975

          4  during another City budget crunch.  So, I saw the

          5  results of cutting health care dollars during that

          6  time.  We have waiting lists of hundreds of children

          7  for years, who could not get into the system to have

          8  their surgery done.

          9                 We had, what you read about in the

         10  New England Journal, the male population of Central

         11  Harlem had a less of a life expectancy then men

         12  growing up in Bangladesh, which is such a poor

         13  country and has such poor health care.  Yes, 25

         14  percent of our children have asthma.  Women

         15  presented with breast cancer in Stage III and IV, so

         16  breast cancers could not be cured, and they were

         17  condemned to die without any preservative surgery at

         18  all.  Colon cancers and prostate cancers occurred

         19  too, at such late stages, that the patients could

         20  not be helped.

         21                 We have struggled with a small

         22  dedicated group of physicians who are dedicated to

         23  eliminating disparities in health care, and who are

         24  dedicated to increasing access to health care to

         25  poorly insured or uninsured.  We have struggled
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          2  these many years. We have now reduced the stage of

          3  presentation of women with breast cancer to 0 to 1,

          4  we are working on colon cancer now, because the

          5  Commissioner has told us that only one- third of our

          6  patients are getting screened for colon cancer.  We

          7  are also working on prostate cancer.

          8                 My staff is a very small, surgical

          9  staff.  How can I reduce 9 percent of the staff when

         10  I have 7 General Surgeons who cover trauma 24 hours

         11  a day, and seven days a week, with two on call?

         12  When I have three plastic surgeons that do

         13  reconstructive and burn surgery, and give plastic

         14  surgery to a whole community of people who could

         15  never get it in the private sector.  I have a small

         16  group of barriatric (phonetic) surgeons that provide

         17  weight reducing surgery, which eliminates diabetes

         18  and hypertension in the morbidly obese.  We have

         19  neurosurgeons now, which we did not have before,

         20  that are giving spinal surgery.  So that patients,

         21  instead of ending up in wheelchair and in chronic

         22  pain, can have an opportunity to have the same type

         23  of surgery that is seen in the private sector, but

         24  is very expensive and the patients would never get.

         25                 We recently surveyed the community

                                                            110

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  and found out that only 21 percent of the patients

          3  in our communities, which have spinal problems

          4  documented, have had the access to surgical care. If

          5  you cut the budget for us with our small department,

          6  there is no way that we can do free screening or any

          7  kind of screening for breast cancer, for colon

          8  cancer, for prostate cancer, we will have a hard

          9  time responding to a terrorist attack, we now have

         10  four teams that responded on 9/11.

         11                 We will have a very hard time helping

         12  to treat the burns.  We have one of the two

         13  certified burn centers in the City, covered by three

         14  surgeons.

         15                 We simply cannot survive this kind of

         16  budget cut. We cannot provide care to our

         17  communities, and we will ruin our progress that we

         18  have made to increase the health of people in the

         19  community.  All of us at Harlem Hospital feel that

         20  health care is a right, it is not a privilege.  And

         21  so we need your help to fight for us, to care for

         22  the most fragile among us.  Our society is only as

         23  strong as the health care that we provide to those

         24  who can least afford it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very
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          2  much.  Next, we will hear from Doctor James King of

          3  Harlem Hospital, as well.

          4                 DR. KING:  Thank you.  Good

          5  afternoon, Chairpersons Quinn, Lopez, Rivera and

          6  members of the respective Committees.  I am Doctor

          7  James R. King, President of the Medical Staff of

          8  Harlem Hospital Center.  I represent the Physicians

          9  of Harlem Hospital. I speak today in keeping with

         10  the responsibility to provide proper care to our

         11  patients.  I also speak for our patients

         12  collectively, the Harlem community and in a broader

         13  sense for similar communities.

         14                 They are the historical perspective

         15  for our concerns.  We know too well,  the

         16  particularly poor health status of the Harlem

         17  Community and the efforts being made by so many

         18  including Harlem Hospital Center to better the

         19  situation.  Any rational discussion of finances for

         20  health care at Harlem should be directed at

         21  increasing resources to help dissolve the

         22  disparities in health status that exists.  Yet, we

         23  are faced with proposed budget policies, which would

         24  negatively affect the ability of the hospital to

         25  address this situation.

                                                            112

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2                 Our concerns today relate to two

          3  developments.  On the federal level, the

          4  Administration's proposed budget policy would loosen

          5  federal requirements for Medicaid so that the states

          6  could change eligibility levels, charge higher co-

          7  payments, and reduce benefits, thereby reducing

          8  availability and access, as well as the scope of

          9  services.  This would tend to relegated Medicaid to

         10  a block grant allocation for the states giving them

         11  a great deal more flexibility in what they do with

         12  the funding.  Medicaid would become less of the

         13  entitlement it is intended to be.  Such a federal

         14  policy would set the stage for narrowed programs in

         15  New York State, where Medicaid is a major part of

         16  the State's Health Care Delivery Program.

         17                 But even more immediate concerns

         18  exist.  Beyond the federal proposals, examination

         19  have the pronouncements of the Governor's budget,

         20  which reduced the Medicaid expenditure about 1.1

         21  billion with the direct effects on nursing homes,

         22  home care programs, and reduction of 600 million in

         23  funding for hospitals.             The New York City

         24  Health and Hospitals Corporation will suffer more

         25  than 200 million in Medicaid cuts, as a part of the
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          2  proposed State budget.  The Governor's proposed

          3  budget affects hospital funding in many was.  The

          4  Health and Hospital Corporation will be

          5  disproportionately affected by drastic changes in

          6  funding for graduate medical education.  In the

          7  past, HHC in accordance with the State's policy,

          8  reduced its number of residents in post graduate

          9  training.  In return, and in recognition of the

         10  roles of the lost residents in providing care, the

         11  State funding was provided for non- physicians

         12  providers, such as physician assistance and medical

         13  technologies.  Now such funding would be withdrawn

         14  leaving hospitals without support for such necessary

         15  personnel. These GME reductions would account of 75

         16  million in funding cuts for Health and Hospitals

         17  Corporation, 8 million which would come from Harlem

         18  Hospital Center directly.  Presently, hospitals

         19  receive a yearly increase of funding to reflect

         20  increased cost in providing care.  These trend

         21  factors would be eliminated resulting in the loss of

         22  2.7 million, for Harlem Hospital Center.

         23                 Reimbursement for psychiatric and

         24  rehabilitative services will be cut by 5 percent,

         25  resulting in almost 700,000 losses to Harlem
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          2  Hospital.

          3                 The longstanding funding provided to

          4  compensate hospitals for their reimbursement losses

          5  that are experienced when hospitals reduce lengths

          6  of stay of patient's would be eliminated. This would

          7  cause a reduction in funding of #300,000 to Harlem

          8  Hospital.

          9                 Beyond these reductions, Harlem

         10  Hospital would suffer a particularly

         11  disproportionate and unfair loss of funding as a

         12  result of decreased overall Medicaid payments.

         13  Harlem Hospital Center would be subjected to an 8.27

         14  percent reduction in its budget, the second highest

         15  percentage reduction in all of the Health and

         16  Hospitals Corporation.  Whatever the reason for such

         17  a formula and result, it is obviously unfair to the

         18  City's sickest and most health- needy community.  A

         19  community where 1 in 4 children suffer from asthma,

         20  a community where the population suffers

         21  disproportionately poor outcome in health care in

         22  areas such as cancer.  And an area that specialty

         23  meets dentistry, this would also be devastating, and

         24  decreasing us from being able to screen the things

         25  such as oral cancer, which are very devastating
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          2  disease and has a 50 percent mortality rate.

          3                 So in conclusion, thus the result of

          4  the Governor's proposed budget would be a 20.9

          5  million decrease in the Harlem Hospital funding.

          6  Against the background of all the difficulties

          7  hospitals are having in providing care, and

          8  attending to responsibilities in the current health

          9  care delivery environment, for Harlem Hospital such

         10  challenges include the hospital's extraordinary role

         11  is a safety net institution, particularly its

         12  attention to thousands of uninsured people.  Harlem

         13  Hospital has a challenge to be prepared for

         14  disasters and threats of terrorism of a different

         15  order, magnitude and potential than ever before.

         16  That the hospital is to maintain preparedness and

         17  readiness on behalf of its community will

         18  significantly reduce funding is beyond our

         19  comprehension.

         20                 It is unfortunate that health care

         21  financing, policy decisions are made by those, or

         22  who the consequences would have very little personal

         23  impact.  There is no question that Harlem Hospital's

         24  projected share of the proposed budget reduction

         25  $20.9 million cannot be accomplished without serious
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          2  reductions in staff and other resources.  There is

          3  just no other was to accomplish a cut of this

          4  magnitude, even with the maximum effort to tap

          5  available resources.

          6  Translation of the proposed budget reductions into

          7  specific personnel reductions has not been

          8  described, but as physicians, we know only too well,

          9  what it would mean.  We know that the loss of health

         10  resources means disease, injury and disability as

         11  well as the inability to provide prevention services

         12  and modern care.  We recognize and feel strongly

         13  about our oath bearing responsibility to speak for

         14  our patients and for the community we serve.  We

         15  applaud the Council and its efforts to influence

         16  federal and state health care financing policy on

         17  behalf of the poor and vulnerable residents of New

         18  York City.  Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         20  much.  I would also like to thank all of you for

         21  coming up here, and I want to reiterate our support

         22  towards the health care industry within the City of

         23  New York.  We all understand that these devastating

         24  cuts coming down from the Governor is something that

         25  the City cannot, especially at this point in time

                                                            117

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  deal with, so we confirm our support for these

          3  programs for the City.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just want to

          5  also, thank you all for coming today.  Thank those

          6  of you who are incredibly helpful on writing and

          7  editing and rewriting in defense in Medicaid.  And

          8  thank you for, through the work you do as advocates,

          9  and through the work you do as physicians, the

         10  important role that you are playing in all of our

         11  efforts to beat back these ill conceived cuts and

         12  proposals, and to make sure that health care can be

         13  delivered in all of its facets, whether it is

         14  plastic surgery or emergency rooms to all New

         15  Yorkers regardless of where they live or what

         16  insurance they do or do not have.  And I really

         17  think the Council and this panel today, and the

         18  other panels we will hear from are really great

         19  example of the community, the diverse community in

         20  New York City that is seeking to make sure that all

         21  people get well and stay well.

         22                 And to Harlem, Congratulations on

         23  your terrific JACO (phonetic) score.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I just, Doctor, I

         25  am concerned about a letter that the Commissioner
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          2  wrote to the Chairman of the Health Committee in

          3  Albany, and in there he mentioned a series of

          4  things, but three things are of concern to me.  And

          5  I just wanted to know if in the hospital where you

          6  are, do you have a clinic for testing of sexual

          7  transmitting disease in there or not?

          8                 DR. BARLOW:  The OB/GYN Department

          9  test for sexually transmitted diseases.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ;  Then that means

         11  that according to his letter, the funding that takes

         12  care of that will be effected.  That means that that

         13  clinic and your place will be effected?

         14                 DR. BARLOW:  Well we would still have

         15  to maintain an OB/GYN clinic.  But, see, as you

         16  start to cut staff the waiting times to get seen

         17  increase.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then the clinic

         19  will continue, but the amount of time in which

         20  people can be seen, and the amount of people you can

         21  see, will be compromised?

         22                 DR. BARLOW:  When it comes to things

         23  like sexually transmitted diseases, of course you

         24  don't want to wait, you want to treat it right away.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes, and the more
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          2  you wait, the worse it is.

          3                 DR. KING:  I think the letter that

          4  you are referring to is referring to the Department

          5  of Health Clinics, and that, you know, is not, we

          6  are a Health and Hospitals Corporation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, and the

          8  reason I asked a question, I also want to go a

          9  little deeper in regard of the PAP Smear Test.  What

         10  will be the consequence on that?

         11                 DR. BARLOW:  Within the hospital, it

         12  is the same thing, we give routine PAP Smear tests,

         13  but again, if you cut staff the waiting time will go

         14  up months.  It is the same issue.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then I see - -

         16                 DR. BARLOW:  We run the clinics, but

         17  if you have fewer staff members, the waiting time to

         18  get an appointment and to be seen, increases.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And time is of

         20  the essence on those cases.

         21                 DR. BARLOW:  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then the other

         23  thing is, he also mentioned in this letter that

         24  recent hepatitis vaccination prevention diseases the

         25  activity on increase of the risk of measles, mumps,
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          2  and the immunization activity in total.  Do you have

          3  that in the hospital over there.

          4                 DR. BARLOW:  Pardon?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Do you have a

          6  program for immunization over there, in Harlem

          7  Hospital?

          8                 DR. BARLOW:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You do.  Then

         10  that means that it would go through the same route,

         11  same story that you told me before on that.

         12                 DR. BARLOW:  No, evidently not.

         13  Evidently, it is a different funding stream.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes.

         15                 DR. KING:  This refers to the

         16  Department of Health Clinics, and that is separate

         17  from us.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I understand that

         19  it is separate from you, but I want to know, if you

         20  have those kind of programs in the hospital, and if

         21  they would be effected or not?

         22                 MS. BROWN:  LaRay Brown.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes.

         24                 MS. BROWN:  Just for the record,

         25  because I have not identified myself.  The letter
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          2  that you are referring to was written by the

          3  Commissioner of Health and Mental Hygiene, and is

          4  specific to the Article VI funds that the Governor's

          5  budget proposes to reduce, as you have heard.

          6                 However, HHC, as Dr. Barlow

          7  mentioned, HHC's hospitals through their OB/GYN

          8  Departments do provide those services.  But at this

          9  point in time, the proposed Medicaid reductions will

         10  not affect the Hepatitis C or the Pap Smear

         11  Programs, or the STD tests that the HHC hospitals

         12  provide.  I say at this point in time, and in terms

         13  of not directly.  There are no proposals, specific

         14  Medicaid reductions - -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.

         16                 MS. BROWN: - -  being proposed for

         17  those services.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, that is

         19  where I am being confused.  But where this will be

         20  effected is if personnel is cut, reduction of

         21  personnel occur, the waiting time for all of these

         22  services will be much, much longer?

         23                 MS. BROWN:  Well, I think there are

         24  two things.  If, in fact, the capacity of the City

         25  Department of Health's STD Clinic, for example, is
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          2  reduced because of the lack of Article VI fundings,

          3  then there will be a greater demand for those

          4  services that are provided to public hospitals, so

          5  there will be a shift in patients, more patients

          6  coming to a Harlem Hospital, for example, so that

          7  these two able physicians, their services will have

          8  a greater demand for their services at a time when

          9  the hospital overall will have a $20 million

         10  reduction in its total budget.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you, that

         12  helped me, thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Thank you very

         14  much.  We will now call upon the next panel to come

         15  forward, is Susan Dooha from the Center of

         16  Independent Disabled New Yorkers, I apologize of my

         17  pronunciation of your last name, Rodwan Daoud,

         18  Director of Client Assistance Program from CID- NY,

         19  David Wunsch from GMHC, Pamela Conford, the

         20  Executive Director of Epilepsy Institute, and Amy

         21  Bittinger, Director of Family Support Services,

         22  United Cerebral Palsy, New York City, and Carmen

         23  Perez from the Institute for Puerto Rican and

         24  Hispanic Elderly.

         25                 Okay you may begin, just say your
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          2  name into the microphone for the record.

          3                 MS. BOLANOS:  Would you please raise

          4  your right hands?  I just need to swear you in,

          5  thank you.  Do you swear that the testimony you are

          6  about to provide before this Committee is the whole

          7  truth, and that you will answer Council member

          8  questions truthfully?

          9                 ALL:  I do.

         10                 MS. BOLANOS:  Thank you, please,

         11  proceed.

         12                 MS. DOOHA:  Thank you to the Chairs

         13  of this hearing, and of the Committees that called

         14  the hearing, for this very, very important and

         15  instructive discussion today.

         16                 My name is Susan Dooha, and I am the

         17  Executive Director of Center for Independence of the

         18  Disabled in New York. For nearly 25 years, the

         19  Center has been a leader in crafting and

         20  implementing policies that eliminate barriers to

         21  full integration of people with disabilities into

         22  the community.  We currently serve nearly 10,000

         23  people with disabilities in New York.

         24                 We are also a founder of the New York

         25  State Medicaid Defense Group and want to talk a
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          2  little bit today about the next fight that is upon

          3  us, at the federal level, even as we suffer under

          4  the weight of potential cuts at the State level.  I

          5  understand that even now they may be printing the

          6  health bill in Albany, and we are all waiting with

          7  great, great anxiety to hear what it is that the

          8  Senate and Assembly have done about the drastic cuts

          9  that have been proposed.

         10                 As you know, in 2002, New York State

         11  made great strides towards the goal of economic

         12  self- sufficiency, and full integration for people

         13  with disabilities.  This progress was reflected in

         14  the passage of the Medicaid Buy- In program, which

         15  would allow people with disabilities to work, and

         16  retain their Medicaid coverage, reducing barriers to

         17  entering the workforce for people with disabilities,

         18  some 70 percent of whom are currently unemployed.

         19                 We also made enormous progress in the

         20  continuing the institutionalization of people with

         21  disabilities, which have not been finished, it is an

         22  unfinished job here in New York.  We still have

         23  people living in nursing homes who could be living

         24  in the community and integrated in the community

         25  with their families.  We have adult homes that are
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          2  warehouses for people with disabilities, and other

          3  institutional settings.

          4                 These great strides are now

          5  threatened by the Governor's Executive Budget that

          6  would increase bureaucratic barriers to health care

          7  and coverage, and it would significantly reduce

          8  access to care for people with disabilities.  As you

          9  know, it would roll back health coverage of adults

         10  and children with disabilities, it would create

         11  inequitable out- of- pocket costs imposing barriers

         12  that would impede access to prescription drugs,

         13  particularly, crucial for people with all kinds of

         14  disabilities. For example, I have a traumatic brain

         15  injury, and people who have traumatic brain injuries

         16  often need anti- seizure medications, and need

         17  prescription drug medications to treat depression,

         18  and these medications enable folks with traumatic

         19  brain injuries to function and to maximize their

         20  cognitive abilities.

         21                 The new prescription drug barriers in

         22  the form of a preferred drug list in the form of

         23  prescription drug co- pays, is a particularly toxic

         24  combination that would really prevent people from

         25  being able to pursue treatment regimens that keep
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          2  them stable, functioning, and fully integrated into

          3  their families and their communities into the

          4  workplace.

          5                 Another cut that I particularly want

          6  to point to, another set of cuts are the home care

          7  cuts that were proposed, not only in the form of

          8  direct cuts, but in the form increased utilization

          9  review, increased bureaucratic, red tape, that will

         10  slow down access to an appropriate level of home and

         11  community based care services.  Most recently, I

         12  have heard that this would be applied across the

         13  board to all kinds of services that allow people to

         14  be maintained in the community, home care personal

         15  care attendant services.  Everything is threatened,

         16  particularly, those with higher needs or more

         17  complex conditions are at greatest risk of losing

         18  access to an appropriate array of services, and

         19  thus, being institutionalized.  And so the

         20  Governor's budget appears to be driving in two

         21  directions at once.

         22                 Here we have a set of changes last

         23  year that seem to say, people with disabilities

         24  should be integrated into our community, should be

         25  part of the workforce, should be deinstitutionalized
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          2  taken from the addicts of our warehouses, and now we

          3  have a budget, and I guess that is where the rubber

          4  really meets the road, isn't it, that tells us

          5  exactly what the Governor thinks of people with

          6  disabilities, that they should suffer in silence,

          7  alone in an institution or in an apartment without

          8  the care that they need, unable to go out and work,

          9  unable to participate in the community, unable to

         10  prevent the next seizure, unable to prevent

         11  hospitalization for preventable conditions.  I guess

         12  that is what the Governor is thinking about people

         13  with disabilities in this budget.

         14                 We, at the Center, know that it has

         15  been a hard year for the City and the State, and we

         16  know that policy- makers face very difficult

         17  decisions.  It has been a hard year for people with

         18  disabilities too.  And still, we want policy- makers

         19  to remain committed to improving the lives of people

         20  with disabilities, even when the economic times get

         21  tough.  And especially where there is an alternative

         22  to draconian cuts.  We do not yet have to begin

         23  throwing people out of the lifeboat because of their

         24  disability. We can still get resources into the

         25  lifeboat.  We have supported proposals that the City

                                                            128

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  Council has articulated so beautifully in its report

          3  on, "In Defense of the Medicaid Program."  We

          4  believe there should be a temporary tax on people

          5  with family incomes above 100,000, the corporate tax

          6  loopholes could be closed.  We think that we are

          7  going to be going directly from here to advocate for

          8  a change in the F- Map funding formula so that we

          9  get more funds flowing into our lifeboat from the

         10  federal government, it is really critical that we do

         11  that now.

         12                 We also think that the State can

         13  maximize existing revenue sources and maximize

         14  savings and existing programs, for example, the

         15  Medicaid Drug Rebate program.  And it should, of

         16  course, take over the burden for local governments.

         17                 We are very deeply concerned that the

         18  problems that we are facing in this Governor's

         19  budget are not a blip on the radar screen.  We are

         20  seeing a long- term assault that is deepening the

         21  health care safety net that people with disabilities

         22  rely on to survive.  We are profoundly worried about

         23  proposals to block grant the Medicaid program, to

         24  starve the states, to force states to choose between

         25  services to one population and another, which we
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          2  find utterly unacceptable.

          3                 We are hoping that you will be

          4  circulating your report in defense of Medicaid to

          5  New York's Congressional delegation, and we

          6  certainly hope that you will be supporting our

          7  efforts to get a Congressional delegation focus on

          8  protecting the Medicaid program at a federal level,

          9  we need pressure on our Mayor, pressure on our

         10  Governor, and pressure on our Congressional

         11  delegation to become leaders and advocates for the

         12  Medicaid program.  We simply cannot survive without

         13  it.

         14                 I want to thank you very much for

         15  listening, and thank you for the excellent report

         16  that you have done.  This is such crucial work for

         17  the Council to do.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA:  Go ahead.

         19                 MR. DAOUD:  Thank you.  As you heard

         20  from Susan, the news does not get any better, and

         21  unfortunately, my testimony today will show how

         22  directly Medicaid may impact a person with a

         23  disability, like myself, if the cutbacks are

         24  enacted.

         25                 Good afternoon.  My name is Rodwan
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          2  Doud.  I am a 29 year- old New Yorker.  I am

          3  currently working on my Master's degree, and I work

          4  at the Center for Independence for the Disabled,

          5  CID- NY, where I am head of the Client Assistance

          6  Program.  I am here today to urge you to protect

          7  Medicaid.

          8                 My personal history is like that of

          9  many people with disabilities who rely on Medicaid.

         10  I was diagnosed with Muscular Dystrophy when I was

         11  seven.  My parents, with seven other children and a

         12  small business applied for Medicaid to help take

         13  care of me. Medicaid covered my doctors visits,

         14  laboratory expenses, diagnostics, surgery and

         15  therapies.

         16                 I now need a wheelchair and a

         17  personal assistant, who helps me with my daily

         18  necessities, services that are paid for by Medicaid.

         19    I never have to rely on my family for personal

         20  issues, such as cooking, dressing, et cetera.  It

         21  gives them a peace of mind that I have the services

         22  that I need.  And it is important to me because it

         23  gives me, because it means that I can pursue my

         24  academic and professional goals.

         25                 In my job, I see people every day who
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          2  need Medicaid. Medicaid covers their prescription

          3  drugs, long- term care services, home care services,

          4  ongoing medical treatment and all the equipment.

          5  Some of these services can be partially covered by

          6  other insurance, but the cost is so high that the

          7  people that I see cannot afford it.  As a result,

          8  they would rather forego employment, rather than

          9  lose Medicaid.

         10                 Many people with disabilities can and

         11  want to be productive and active citizens who

         12  contribute to society.  With Medicaid, we can

         13  contribute our talent and skills to our communities.

         14                 With the Medicaid Buy- In, I can keep

         15  my job and my Medicaid.  I will be able to accept

         16  promotions at work, I will be able to earn and save

         17  more money so that I can think about buying a house

         18  and starting a family.

         19                 If the proposed cuts and changes to

         20  Medicaid are is enacted, I would not be able to

         21  afford my prescription drugs, and that would

         22  compromise my health.  I would also lose my personal

         23  care assistant, and therefore, my independence.  I

         24  would not be able to go to work or go to school.

         25  Medicaid is literally an insurance that keeps people

                                                            132

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  alive and functioning.  For some it is life or

          3  death.  There is some comfort knowing that there is

          4  something out there, that I can rely on.  Medicaid

          5  can help people set up institutions, remain

          6  independent and lead productive lives.

          7                 These are just some of the reasons

          8  why Medicaid is a vital program that needs to be

          9  protected.  Thank you for your time and your

         10  attention.

         11                 MR. WUNSCH:  Chairpersons Quinn,

         12  Lopez, and Rivera, and other distinguished members

         13  of the City Council, I thank you for the opportunity

         14  to testify today.  I am David Wunsch, Director of

         15  Health Policy, at Gay Men's Health Crisis.  GMHC is

         16  also a supporter of the New York State Medicaid

         17  Defense Group, New York's leading consumer voice

         18  against Medicaid cuts at the State and federal

         19  level.

         20                 On behalf of GMHC and our clients, I

         21  would like to thank the City Council for holding the

         22  line against Medicaid cuts that hurt people with HIV

         23  and AIDS in New York City.  Medicaid matters deeply

         24  for people living with HIV/AIDS, and the City

         25  Council's leadership on this issue should be
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          2  heartedly acknowledged.

          3                 Why does Medicaid matter so much for

          4  the 50,000 New Yorkers living with HIV/AIDS?  New

          5  York City continues to be the epicenter, I think as

          6  we all know, of the HIV/AIDS epidemic in the United

          7  States.  According to the New York State Department

          8  of Health, almost 77,000 men, women and children

          9  with HIV/AIDS live in New York City.  Medicaid pays

         10  for health services for all of about 25,000 of them.

         11    That is 50,000 people.  The face of Medicaid for

         12  people living with HIV/AIDS is also the face of a

         13  growing epidemic: A disproportionate number of these

         14  Medicaid enrollees are women and people of color.

         15                 Medicaid is also the backbone of the

         16  HIV/AIDS care infrastructure in New York.  Each year

         17  New York spends approximately $1.82 billion on

         18  HIV/AIDS care.

         19                 About 80 percent of the 14,000

         20  clients that walked through the doors of Gay Men's

         21  Health Crisis each year use Medicaid, it helps them

         22  to go see doctors, to go to the dentist, for case

         23  management, for prescription drugs, for HIV, as well

         24  as for many other health conditions that our clients

         25  have.  In other words, it helps them stay alive.
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          2                 So what would Governor Pataki's cuts

          3  do to people living with HIV/AIDS?  Simply it would

          4  be devastating.  Not to repeat what other panelists

          5  have already highlighted, including the changes to

          6  the preferred drug program, which are being done

          7  without strong consumer protections, decreasing

          8  eligibility for Family Health Plus, all of these

          9  cuts are going to push people onto other programs.

         10  For example, these cuts will push people into the

         11  ADAP program which is a capped program, and this

         12  program is already stretched to its limits.

         13                 Finally, the Governor's proposal to

         14  reduce State matching funds to New York City Article

         15  VI Public Health programs will severely impact

         16  community- based HIV prevention and education

         17  programs.  The proposal to cut reimbursement rates

         18  from 36 percent to 30 percent retroactively to

         19  January 1 of this year, will mean significant less

         20  money for vital public health programs, including

         21  HIV prevention, education, referrals and testing,

         22  day care, poison control, STD testing, immunization

         23  programs, TB, and the list goes on.

         24                 New York City cannot be asked to

         25  handle the crisis of Medicaid funding on its own.
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          2  It is a well- known fact that the federal government

          3  was very slow to respond to the HIV/AIDS epidemic.

          4  That Ryan White Care Act did not become law until

          5  1990, nearly 10 years after the first reports of HIV

          6  and AIDS.  Denial and the slow response cause much

          7  ground to be lost in battling this pandemic.  In the

          8  same way, it may take Washington a while to wake up

          9  to the Medicaid funding crisis states like New York

         10  are facing. We cannot allow this to happen.  We will

         11  not sit idly by, while the HIV/AIDS care

         12  infrastructure is dismantled piece by piece.

         13                 The community of consumer advocates

         14  is joining its voice to your own by asking Governor

         15  Pataki and Mayor Bloomberg to exemplify leadership

         16  in time of a Medicaid funding crisis.  In a loud and

         17  firm voice, only they can ask Washington for

         18  immediate fiscal relief for New York's Medicaid

         19  program.  We hope that they would also choose to set

         20  aside the false promise of Medicaid reform proposed

         21  by Secretary Thompson last January.  A Medicaid

         22  block grant that asked New York to dismantle its

         23  Medicaid program, is the wrong medicine for New

         24  Yorkers living with HIV/AIDS.

         25                 Thank you and GMHC looks forward to
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          2  working with you on this agenda.

          3                 MS. CONFORD:  Committed Chairwomen

          4  Lopez and Quinn, Chairman Rivera, and members of the

          5  Committees, thank you for the opportunity to testify

          6  today on the importance of maintaining Medicaid for

          7  people with epilepsy and their family members.

          8                 Since 1967, the Epilepsy Institute

          9  has pursued its mission of improving the quality of

         10  life for people with epilepsy and their families.

         11  Through the years, we have responded to the

         12  psychosocial needs of this often invisible

         13  population who may reflect up to 5 percent of the

         14  population in low- income urban areas, by developing

         15  New York City's only licensed counseling clinic and

         16  vocational programs exclusively serving this

         17  population.

         18                 Our counseling clinic and vocational

         19  programs, along with a range of other services,

         20  including education and information reach 8,000

         21  people or more annually compounded by many more,

         22  including people's family, friends and co- workers.

         23  We provide these services on a very limited budget

         24  of $1.2 million of federal, City and State funds.

         25  None of these efforts would be possible without the
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          2  longstanding financial support by the Department of

          3  Health and Mental Hygiene for which we are extremely

          4  grateful, as it permits us to leverage these dollars

          5  to access additional funds. Despite this leverage

          6  however, I should add that many of the contracts

          7  that we have received have remained basically flat

          8  for 10 years or more, which means small community

          9  agencies are stretched to he limits.

         10                 As a social service agency

         11  incorporating that model, we have always respected

         12  the maximum, from case to cause, not only to develop

         13  the programs necessary for people with epilepsy to

         14  live the most independent and productive lives

         15  possible, but to advocate for those issues that

         16  directly impact on quality of life.

         17                 As in many other complicated medical

         18  conditions, a person with epilepsy wants most is,

         19  please, make the seizure go away.  And if you cannot

         20  make the seizures go away, can you please reduce the

         21  frequency or severity, and if you cannot do that, or

         22  while you are doing that, can you please help me get

         23  the type of medication that is going to have the

         24  least amount of side effects. Therefore, supported

         25  timely access to quality medical care has always
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          2  been an Epilepsy Institute policy priority.  And it

          3  is our fear that the proposed cuts and savings to be

          4  shortly discussed will result in an adverse impact

          5  on treatment and increase in seizures, and will

          6  ultimately cost shift presumed savings to the

          7  additional directed and direct cost of seizures.

          8  Not only does these cost include ambulance rides,

          9  emergency room visits, and hospitalizations, there

         10  are additional costs such as the lost of work time

         11  for the individual and often the family member,

         12  greater challenges for an individual who may seek

         13  work and may wish to sustain employment.  The cost

         14  of family stress and our care giving, and ultimately

         15  the increase needs for government benefits and

         16  supports as people are not able to work.

         17                 Even as a provider, we will feel the

         18  impacts somewhat, to the degree that people have

         19  seizures or other health related concerns that

         20  prevent them from going to a program, and as much as

         21  our resources is based on Medicaid or soon to be

         22  Medicaid waiver, if a person does not show up at a

         23  program, we will not be paid.  Again, significantly

         24  squeezing an already stressed community- based

         25  organization.
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          2                 The epilepsy institute has long

          3  opposed restrictive formularies or any other

          4  barriers that may prevent an individual from

          5  immediately receiving the most effective medications

          6  with the least side effects possible.  Although, not

          7  true for all medications, particularly for anti-

          8  seizure medication, people are titrated on very

          9  specific dosage, and any kind of change from brand

         10  to generic, generic to brand, or even generic to

         11  generic can result in breakthrough seizures with

         12  accordingly increased costs. Additionally, many

         13  people with epilepsy will not gain total seizure

         14  control, and they would have to take one, two, or

         15  even three medications.  Each medication compounds

         16  side effects and risk adverse interaction.  That in

         17  turn for anyone who has taken medication that is

         18  unpleasant, increases the possibility for

         19  noncompliance.  Therefore, it is our contention that

         20  preferred drug lists or any other restriction upon

         21  their doctor's ability to select the medication that

         22  is optimal for that individual will ultimately

         23  result in increased seizures and all of the

         24  corresponding costs.

         25                 The increase in co- payments for
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          2  these critical medications may also present

          3  additional barriers.  So many of the people that we

          4  see at the institute are living on just dollars a

          5  day, and with all these other increases that people

          6  are going to be experiencing in their day- to- day

          7  living, people may decide to economize by stretching

          8  the budget, cutting medications in half, not

          9  renewing instantly, not even being aware that a

         10  person could experience life- threatening status

         11  epileptic seizures, if medication is discontinued

         12  abruptly.

         13                 Furthermore, we are concerned about

         14  reductions to medical institutions, as it will

         15  ultimately, it will effect doctor/patient ratios and

         16  could likely result in less time per patient in

         17  clinics.  Now particularly with epilepsy, adequate

         18  time for diagnosis is critical, as besides the

         19  typical grand Mal, tonic/clonic seizure, which

         20  people are familiar, there are many other types of

         21  seizures that go undetected and that may involve

         22  rapid heart, funny feelings, walking around, and

         23  that if you have adequate time to identify, you

         24  could better identify the type of treatment, and it

         25  is not at all unusual that at the Institute after
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          2  extensive conversation, we have been able to

          3  identify a person that is having another seizure

          4  other than what they have been treated for by

          5  alerting the physician the seizure type, it can then

          6  often be controlled.  Now this is going to be

          7  particularly important in public facilities where

          8  people may not have this kind of information, or

          9  with new immigrant populations who may need even

         10  additional time to discuss their concerns and

         11  health- related concerns.

         12                 Further, the proposed co- payments in

         13  early intervention are a concern for us as well.

         14  Especially in the developing brain of a child, the

         15  philosophy is the faster you get seizure control,

         16  the less likelihood that the surrounding brain

         17  tissue is going to be impacted.  Therefore, any kind

         18  of financial barrier that may stand in the way and

         19  prevent an already overwhelmed parent from accessing

         20  the kind of service and supports they need to obtain

         21  and sustain ongoing quality neurological care to

         22  gain the best possible seizure control, the results

         23  could be the lifelong cost associated with even

         24  greater functional deficits and increased family

         25  stress.
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          2                 We certainly recognize that New York

          3  is not alone in the national fiscal crisis facing

          4  states and municipalities, and know that hard

          5  choices and shared sacrifices are ahead for us all.

          6  However, health is the most precious commodity and

          7  resource that any individual has, and it is the

          8  opinion of the Epilepsy Institute that pursuing

          9  alternatives to these proposed Medicaid reductions,

         10  such as the wonderful proposals by this Council is

         11  not only a recognition of our value, but also makes

         12  good financial sense.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 MS. BITTINGER:  Good afternoon.  My

         15  name is Amy Bittinger, and I am here today

         16  representing the interest and concerns of

         17  individuals with Cerebral Palsy and other related

         18  developmental disabilities, and their families

         19  served by United Cerebral Palsy of New York City and

         20  their colleague agencies.

         21                 In the year 2000, more than 3.4

         22  million New York residents received services through

         23  Medicaid including 674,000 individuals with

         24  disabilities.  There are several areas in Governor

         25  Pataki's budget that are concern to our families,
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          2  and they include the following areas, the issues of

          3  the future of the early intervention program, the

          4  concern around Medicaid funding of durable medical

          5  equipment, and also the future and availability of

          6  universal pre- K for our families.  To begin the

          7  early intervention program, which is Part C of the

          8  federal IDEA is an entitlement program, which

          9  provides services to infants and toddlers with

         10  developmental disabilities and delays from birth to

         11  age 3.  In 1992, New York State enacted the early

         12  intervention program and companion legislation

         13  enacting the reimbursement system for providers that

         14  went into effect in April of 1994.  Cost for the

         15  program are born equally by the State and by the

         16  County 50/50.

         17                 Unfortunately, the Governor's early

         18  intervention proposal fails to address the core

         19  programmatic, fiscal issues identified as

         20  problematic, and these issues have been identified

         21  as problematic of all the stakeholders.  Rather, it

         22  simply shifts costs and administrative

         23  responsibilities to parents, providers, and

         24  insurers.

         25                 If the Governor's proposal is enacted
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          2  as planned, the impact on families in New York City

          3  will devastating.  Only those families living under

          4  the poverty level, and those families that are very

          5  affluent, will be able to receive early intervention

          6  services.  However, everyone in between will not be

          7  able to access services, so that they are going to

          8  have to make difficult decisions like working

          9  families are going to have to decide between putting

         10  food on their table verses, somehow figuring out how

         11  to purchase these critical, early intervention

         12  services.

         13                 Provider agencies lack the capacity

         14  to become collection agencies for the EIVs and will

         15  no longer be able to provide this service.  Without

         16  a plan that addresses this need, provider agencies

         17  will simply have to walk away from providing these

         18  critical services at a time which, as my colleagues

         19  have alls shared, so critical in the life of a

         20  developing child.

         21                 We urge the City Council to inform

         22  the New York State Legislation to consider reforms

         23  that will address these concerns regarding both

         24  fiscal and programmatic integrity of the EI program

         25  so that we hope that we can save this very important

                                                            145

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  program.

          3                 Secondly, durable medical equipment

          4  for individuals with disabilities.  Traditionally,

          5  individuals with developmental disabilities have

          6  accessed necessary, durable, medical equipment

          7  through Medicaid funding.  More and more of these

          8  individuals are becoming dually eligible for

          9  Medicaid and Medicare, due to their parents Medicare

         10  eligibility and the automatic extension of the

         11  Medicaid eligibility to the adult child with the

         12  developmental disability.

         13                 Because Medicaid defers to Medicare

         14  approval and funding criteria, dually eligible

         15  individuals are being denied their entitlement to

         16  appropriate Medicaid durable medical equipment,

         17  which they may have otherwise received if they were

         18  only a Medicaid- only recipient.  To correct this

         19  injustice procedures must include a Medicaid prior

         20  approval process, which will provide for full-

         21  payment for a medical approved device after Medicare

         22  has been deducted.  Without this action, people with

         23  Cerebral Palsy and other physical disabilities will

         24  not be able to get access to essential medical

         25  equipment, such as wheelchairs, walkers,
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          2  communication devices, and other issues around

          3  assistant technology.

          4                 And finally, the issue of universal

          5  pre- K.  Chapter 474 of the laws of 1997 established

          6  the universal pre- K program here in New York.  The

          7  Governor's proposal for the 2004 school year

          8  completely eliminates funding for universal pre- K.

          9  The special education system for three- and four-

         10  year- olds, also known as 4410, has come to rely on

         11  the universal pre- K program to further the State's

         12  formal policy that children with disabilities must

         13  be educated in the least restrictive environment and

         14  an integrated settings with their non- disabled

         15  peers.

         16                 UCP New York City and our other

         17  colleague provider agencies have come to rely on the

         18  universal pre- K program to integrate children in

         19  their Special Education classes with their non-

         20  disabled peers.  Without the universal pre- K

         21  program and its unique, integration opportunities,

         22  the pre- school education system in New York City is

         23  going to lose its ability to integrate children with

         24  their non- disabled peers.

         25                 New York State and counties will,
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          2  once again, have to bear the increased cost of more

          3  self- contained settings.  The continuation of

          4  universal pre- K is critical in meeting the early

          5  education needs of all young children, including

          6  those both with and without disabilities.

          7                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          8  address you today, and thank you all for your

          9  leadership and commitment of all of New York City's

         10  citizens particularly on my behalf of the citizens

         11  of developmental disabilities.

         12                 MS. CABRERA- DRINANE Hello.  After

         13  all the presentations here and after you have heard,

         14  I just have to ditto everything because it impacts

         15  on all of us as a community.  And I feel that is why

         16  it is so important, I almost decided just to not

         17  even testify, because of, but I decided, you know,

         18  listening to everybody's testimony that I think that

         19  the impact that of all these cuts these days, it is

         20  really just not one cut, it is the multiplicity of

         21  cuts.  And that it impacts on all of us, and with

         22  senior population - -  My name is, I should say who

         23  I am, my name is Suleika Cabrera Drinane, and I am

         24  the Executive Director of the Institute for Puerto

         25  Rican and Hispanic Elderly.  We serve over 140,000
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          2  seniors and their families directly and indirectly.

          3  At what is important is the care, empowerment, and

          4  assisting, we have been improving, our overall goal

          5  is improving the quality of life for the New York's

          6  minority elderly, and all elderly and their

          7  families.  You know, that is my personal concern and

          8  mantra.

          9                 I am glad that you are having this

         10  hearing, and I just want to reiterate what everybody

         11  else has said in terms of your leadership.  And you

         12  said it all in your report, you know, prevention,

         13  access, quality of life.  We are talking about the

         14  poor, the most vulnerable, people that are not able

         15  to express themselves, the importance of us really

         16  advocating for those that cannot express.  And with

         17  all these changes it goes across the lines,

         18  especially Medicaid.  And we have always been giving

         19  attention to health, because I think that itself is

         20  not just the elderly, but the population of senior

         21  citizens growing and tripling, we are going to have

         22  an age in society, which we already have these days

         23  throughout the country.

         24                 I am going to say a few words here,

         25  which statistics, I think that when we look at the

                                                            149

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  elderly population, and you look at the issue of

          3  poverty, and the income, and you look at that

          4  elderly women account for 60 percent of all the

          5  older New Yorker's and 80 percent of the frail

          6  elderly population.

          7                 Elderly women, overall, out number

          8  elderly men by three to two.  This ratio increases

          9  from 5 to 2, among persons 85 and over.  And elderly

         10  women are more likely to have functional

         11  impairments, which require long- term care and also

         12  limit their quality of life and independence.

         13                 When we look at women in terms of

         14  their income, social security, and SSI is the major

         15  one, and it is not much, and in particular, the

         16  minority as well as the 85 and over, more receive

         17  the supplemental security income, which Medicaid

         18  comes with it.  That means that they are below the

         19  10 percent below the poverty level.  When you look

         20  at some of the incomes, when you look the average of

         21  social security payment, and I am putting it to the

         22  minority seniors, it is roughly $9,000 a year, which

         23  is hardly enough to live a decent life in New York

         24  City.

         25                 And also, Social Security, Supplement
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          2  to Security Income, which I know we are not talking

          3  about it, but I think it is very crucial, it is

          4  being cut, the cost of living increase is not even

          5  passed on.  So, and that is like 1.5 percent or so,

          6  and I think that is very important that we advocate

          7  for the people who are in the lowest of the low, and

          8  that is first for the elderly and the disabled.

          9                 So when we are talking about Medicaid

         10  and the demantling of what existed to what we are

         11  going to, then that means that less people are going

         12  to be, we are going to have a crisis in our hand.  I

         13  think we have already have it, and that means that

         14  people are going to get served less.

         15                 I was, the Medicaid Defense Fund

         16  already spoken, I agree totally with all of their

         17  issues and what you have been seeing in this panel,

         18  so I am just going to just jump a little bit. But

         19  the SSI is so important because that impacts on the

         20  life of the person.  The person has to choose

         21  between medication, between rent, and you have an

         22  aerate about 613, or I might by wrong in the figures

         23  right now, but it is something like that.

         24                 And we are, where they have from that

         25  is over $600, they have to pay their medication.
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          2  Well Medicaid comes with it, but then, now that we

          3  are saying that it is going to be changing, we

          4  really have to fight for what is there.  So, when we

          5  are talking about also the other area is EPIC.  EPIC

          6  is a prescription drug for older adults, that we

          7  fought for many years.  We could not get anything

          8  passed about 20, 30 years ago when I started to get

          9  prescription drugs for older adults.  Those were

         10  people just above the Medicaid level.  And we are

         11  talking about right now, cutting $1.5 million and

         12  having all these stipulations.  And those are for

         13  people over the Medicaid guidelines, and then it

         14  amounted, and it also, we strengthened it to include

         15  other people, and that is EPIC drug for 65 years and

         16  older.  And we were trying to get the disabled to be

         17  served under that, and we still have not been able.

         18  And now they are talking about, more the raising of

         19  the fees.  The 10 percent deductible.  And then the

         20  cuts by reducing pharmacy reimbursements and cutting

         21  deals with manufacturers, and the seniors do not get

         22  adequate medication that they deserve.  So when we

         23  are talking about Medicaid and the importance of

         24  Medicaid, is that, we have to make sure to maintain

         25  it the way it is and not be making it worse because
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          2  the vulnerable are the ones, you know, we are

          3  talking about so many people that are uninsured and

          4  the under insured.

          5                 I am going to go back to my

          6  presentation so I do not go over.  EPIC is another

          7  program from which we made extra efforts in bringing

          8  our population prescription drug charges whether

          9  they are brand name or generic, is a main concern

         10  for the seniors. Especially for those seniors who do

         11  not qualify for Medicaid or are not sufficiently

         12  covered.

         13                 The Governor's proposal of cutting

         14  1.5 million in the EPIC program, and replacing these

         15  funds by raising fees by 10 percent in deductibles

         16  and further cuts, by reducing pharmacy

         17  reimbursement, and cutting deals with manufacturer

         18  not at the end give the adequate medications they

         19  deserve.  So when we talk about Medicaid, the

         20  further threatened cuts in public health services,

         21  such as cuts to public hospitals, child health

         22  centers, and preventative care, will drastically

         23  impact the under- and uninsured.

         24                 So as the result of the multiplicity

         25  of cuts in every area, the health and lives of
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          2  seniors and minority seniors are placed at higher

          3  risk.  And we are talking about the cuts here in the

          4  City in terms of the threatened cuts of centers that

          5  are being closed, which the lunches, they are the

          6  only meal for the seniors for the whole day, and

          7  sometimes, not all centers have breakfast, but also

          8  the breakfast.  So when you talk and you see people

          9  taking food home so that some food from their lunch,

         10  so that they could have some for dinner.

         11                 So it is a lot of cuts, their rent is

         12  being raised, your Medicaid is being cut, and what

         13  is going to happen to those seniors in terms of

         14  going?  Right now, even with the benefit of

         15  Medicaid, right now they are not even receiving the

         16  adequate because of all the HMOs and the changes

         17  here and there, and we have to do advocacy, a lot of

         18  the seniors come to us.  So that the threatened cuts

         19  in all these areas really put people at higher risk.

         20    So we know that all levels of government is

         21  currently in debt, the likes of which we have not

         22  seen in decades, and as a result programs are being

         23  severely cut to respond to the fiscal crisis.

         24                 In these times of significant service

         25  cuts, accompanied by rising costs, increasing
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          2  seniors and other minority groups have to dig into

          3  their own purses and determine if their limited

          4  funds will cover rent increases, rising food costs,

          5  prescription drug, and skyrocketing medical costs.

          6  Obviously, the way things are going, soon health

          7  care will be too expensive to become something of a

          8  luxury that only the high tax bracket rich can

          9  afford.  Living mostly on fixed income, heavily

         10  dependent on Social Security, the greater of

         11  minority seniors have no room to maneuver in this

         12  drastic economy.  Should the budget pass as proposed

         13  by both the federal and State Legislature, as well

         14  as the City, with all the cuts that they are

         15  talking, I am filled with trepidation for the lives

         16  of the City's 600,000 persons 60 and over and the

         17  community at large.

         18                 I want to commend the Council for

         19  their really fantastic paper and your stand and

         20  leadership on the Defense of Medicaid.  I stand

         21  wholeheartedly with you.

         22                 The Governor's proposal, if passed,

         23  will harm the over three million New Yorkers who

         24  rely on Medicaid for their health care.   The

         25  Medicaid program used for any number of health
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          2  related services, and they were mentioned before as

          3  primary and preventative care, mental health

          4  services, prescription drugs, home health care, and

          5  nursing home care, if cut, would force many New

          6  Yorkers, especially the elderly to go without vital

          7  preventative health services.

          8                 As the person that spoke before us,

          9  that if you have the home health care, and you are

         10  not going to be able to have that person come to

         11  your house, be able to work with you, then where are

         12  they going to go?  They are going to be pushed, it

         13  is going to be costly, because they are going to be

         14  pushed into the nursing homes. So we are saying that

         15  we would like to maintain the independence and the

         16  persons living in the home.

         17                 So these cuts would force many New

         18  Yorkers, especially the elderly to go without

         19  preventative health services resulting in untreated

         20  illnesses and unnecessary deaths that will further

         21  burden the already over burdened hospitals.  To

         22  reduce Medicaid's budget by $1 billion to the State

         23  funding, would be devastating costing New York's

         24  Medicaid program to lose an additional $1 million in

         25  matching fund, we keep forgetting that. And our cuts
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          2  and hacking of this safety net cannot be the next

          3  wave for Medicaid.

          4                 Getting to the heart of the matter,

          5  if the City is forced to reduce, eliminate health

          6  services, in particular, then we are staring at a

          7  disaster reduction in nursing, mental health

          8  services, and public health facilities, and services

          9  like the community clinics, HIV/AIDS.  For example,

         10  when you look at AIDS and the elderly, there is an

         11  increasing number of elderly that are being affected

         12  by AIDS.  And the overall elimination of already

         13  limited services, well, I will jump and just say

         14  that, if this happens, who picks up the pieces?  We,

         15  the service providers do. The real question is, how

         16  can we continue to help those in need, and do so

         17  with less and less?  What do we tell Ms. Rodriguez,

         18  who cannot afford to feed herself because she has to

         19  pay for extra for her heart medication, or Mr.

         20  Centrone who was blinded by diabetes and does not

         21  qualify for home health aid, what do we tell the

         22  thousand of seniors that we served daily with a

         23  variety of medical health issues, oh, I am sorry,

         24  but I cannot help you.  This is unacceptable.

         25                 I will end by saying that we cannot
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          2  place the burden of balancing the budget on the

          3  shoulders of New York's sickest and poorest health

          4  consumers, young and old, who can least afford it.

          5  State policy- makers have an obligations to restore

          6  the Governor's proposed Medicaid and other health

          7  cuts aimed at the most vulnerable, and explore the

          8  options for raising additional revenues in ways that

          9  share the burden in an equitable and humane manner'

         10                 Thank you for allowing me to speak,

         11  and I look forward to a fiscal future that, at

         12  least, would allow us to exhale.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I just want to

         14  thank this panel for a comprehensive and how clear

         15  each and everyone of you have articulated the

         16  consequences of this cut for the disabled community

         17  at large.  And I am very impressed with the whole

         18  presentation that each and everyone of you made.

         19                 But I want to make a particular

         20  comment about the issue epilepsy.  There is very

         21  little we know about this particular illness and

         22  your presentation was really superb.  And I want to

         23  call the attention of your presentation in regard of

         24  the question of the medication.  And how medications

         25  can contribute to seizures, when the medications are
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          2  there to prevent the seizure, and it is a perfect

          3  closing of this panel to go back to that.

          4                 Because illnesses that effect the

          5  functioning of the brain are very particular kind of

          6  illnesses, and they are very delicate and it is very

          7  difficult to deal with them, and very difficult to

          8  sterilize people.  And that is precisely the reason

          9  why the State have making certain exclusion for

         10  people with mental illness and mental disorder, or

         11  mental retardation, or brain damage.  Then saying

         12  that, will the panel agree that the impact of these

         13  proposed cuts from the State is beyond detrimental

         14  to the disabled community in particular, when you

         15  compare to the rest of the population because, and I

         16  am asking the question because when you look at the

         17  whole cut, it effects every single one of the

         18  services that the community need.  And when you

         19  mentioned the people with retardation, it never

         20  occurred to me about the equipment, if it was

         21  because you mentioned it, you know it did not click.

         22                 Then would the panel agree that this

         23  is really the most incredible cut ever in the way of

         24  impacting these particular communities of

         25  disabilities in general?
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          2                 MS. CONFORD:  It is certainly

          3  devastating, and just to give you an anecdotal

          4  follow- up, I was speaking to a nurse at a

          5  Comprehensive Epilepsy Center who was saying that

          6  even with generic medications, you know, that there

          7  are many different manufacturers of these

          8  medications, and a lot of the people who on Medicaid

          9  already have a certain amount of confusion, or they

         10  are overwhelmed, and now they are in the position,

         11  very often you used to tell people, well you take

         12  this color pill X times a day.  But now what is

         13  happening is they have several different type of

         14  color pills, people are getting confused.  They are

         15  actually taking too much.   And she was discussing

         16  the increase of admissions for live toxicity as a

         17  result of this type of confusion.

         18                 So, again, especially with medication

         19  and with health care, every time people talk about

         20  savings, I really would like to see what happens on

         21  the back end.

         22                 MS. DOOHA:  There have been studies

         23  in other states of what happens at the back end, and

         24  that is adverse consequences is what they call it,

         25  people get hospitalized.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then it means

          3  more money.

          4                 MS. DOOHA:  And then have emergency

          5  service needs because they were not treated in a

          6  proper way.

          7                 You asked a couple of things.   There

          8  has been some provision to exempt certain drugs from

          9  the new red tape snarling proposals, but not anti-

         10  seizure medications.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  That is not being

         12  part of that?

         13  MS. DOOHA: No, that is not be considered for

         14  exemption, even though people are very medically

         15  fragile when they need anti- seizure drugs.  There

         16  is no real public health rationale for what they

         17  chose to exempt and what they chose to let in.

         18                 But even if you were to exempt those

         19  drugs, people with seizure disorders need other

         20  kinds of medications.  Because you have, a seizure

         21  disorder does not mean you do not have depression,

         22  hypertension, or diabetes.  And so, if all of those

         23  other drugs are not exempted too, you have someone

         24  who can become very confused about all of their

         25  other medicines and destabilize that way.
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          2                 It is a very brutal budget for people

          3  with disabilities across the board, in the schools,

          4  in the cutting of SST income, in the Medicaid

          5  budget, everywhere across the board, it is really a

          6  brutal attack.

          7                 But I want to turn the puzzle and

          8  offer you another way of looking at it, too, which

          9  is it effects everyone.  Everyone, at any time in

         10  their life, everyone can have a disability in a

         11  moment, like that, you can become a person with a

         12  disability.  And all of us, at some point in our

         13  lives, because of accident or genetic reason or

         14  disease, or the process of aging is going to have

         15  some sort of disability.  So people with

         16  disabilities really are important for us to look at,

         17  it is important for us to look at their experience

         18  in the system and how they are affected, because it

         19  can happen to any of us.

         20                 And there is another reason, which is

         21  that people with disabilities are like the canary

         22  and the coal mine.  You know when you send a canary

         23  down to test to see if the mine is safe for

         24  everybody else.  In the health care system, people

         25  with disabilities are like the canary of the coal
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          2  mine of the health care system.  In the sense that

          3  for people who are temporarily able, they are not

          4  going to know what bad things are going to happen to

          5  them down the road because they did not get

          6  preventive care that they needed, they did not get

          7  immunization, they did not get, you know, prenatal

          8  care, all of the terrible things that can happen to

          9  people when they are seemingly well.

         10                 It will take a long time to see some

         11  of those effects.  When you dismantle a health care

         12  system, you see the impact of it right away, on a

         13  vulnerable population like people with disabilities,

         14  or pregnant women, or children, the elderly. You

         15  really, you can see very quickly just how

         16  devastating something can be, when you look at the

         17  experience of people with disabilities.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Can you give me

         19  an example of equipment that cannot be acquired by

         20  parents with children of mental retardation or

         21  developmental disabilities, for example, just give

         22  me two examples?

         23                 MS. CONFORD:  A walker or an

         24  assertive technology speaking device, and a

         25  liberator, any kind of speaking device.  It would be
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          2  only if the person had both Medicaid and Medicare.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  That they can

          4  acquire it.

          5                 MS. CONFORD:  That they would not

          6  have difficulty getting the prior Medicaid prior

          7  approval.  So it is when, as the parents, have had

          8  been able to as a benefit, the child with the

          9  disability gets Medicare, but actually in this case,

         10  and I am looking at Susan because no one knows this

         11  better than she, in terms of regulation.  In this

         12  case, they would be denied access to very, very

         13  critical pieces of equipment.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, I do not

         15  have no other comments or questions.  I just want

         16  you to know that I have been screaming and yelling

         17  on the issue of pre- K, precisely because I

         18  understand that the elimination of pre- K will

         19  impair the lesion restrictive setting for children's

         20  with disabilities.  And I have been talking about

         21  this from the moment that I learned about the pre- K

         22  and how it will kill children with mental

         23  retardation and developmental disabilities, that

         24  this is totally unacceptable..

         25                 I thank every one of you, and thank
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          2  you for coming today here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just want to

          4  say thank you for your help today, and on all of our

          5  efforts with the report, and its release and other

          6  things, in Albany, as well.  So thank you.

          7                 Next and last panel is going to be

          8  Catherine Abated of the Community Health Care

          9  Network, Dr. Bonthu of the Committed on Interns and

         10  Residents, Carol Pittman of the New York State

         11  Nurses Association, Geoigina Falu, sorry, if I am

         12  mispronouncing that, Metropolitan Hospital Community

         13  Advisory Board, and Carmen Charles of Local 420.

         14  And then we have four folks who have signed slips,

         15  after that, Alice Berger, Peter Slokom, Renee Ross,

         16  and Robert Jaffe those are the only folks who signed

         17  up to testify after this panel.

         18                 Thank you, and just before they start

         19  I want to thank on behalf of the Committee Catherine

         20  Abated, who generously the Friday before Easter gave

         21  her and her staff at her clinic on West 115th Street

         22  seriously gave up a big chunk of their time, and it

         23  was very, very busy there that day, to work with

         24  myself and the Health Committee staff at New York

         25  One to do a story, kind of profiling a community-

                                                            165

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  based clinic and how it would be impacted by the

          3  cuts of Article VI.  And I know that that story was

          4  one of the things that tweaked Channel 4's interest,

          5  and then they did a fairly hard- hitting interview

          6  with the Commissioner.  So, it was very helpful in

          7  getting the press, Article VI rolling.  So thank

          8  you.

          9                 And why don't you start in the order

         10  that you were called?  Oh, the Committee swears, my

         11  Committee doesn't, but the Mental Health Committee

         12  swears witnesses in, so go ahead, do your thing.

         13  Don't you do your thing?

         14                 MS. BOLANOS:  Oh, I am sorry.  Pardon

         15  me, I apologize.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  It is late, don't

         17  worry about it.

         18                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please raise your right

         19  hands?  Do you swear that the testimony you are

         20  about to provide before this Committee is the whole

         21  truth, and that you answer Council member questions,

         22  truthfully?

         23                 ALL:  Yes.

         24                 MS. BOLANOS:  Thank you, please,

         25  proceed.
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          2                 MS. ABATE:  I thank - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  You need the

          4  light to be off, for the mic to be on, it is totally

          5  backwards.

          6                 MS. ABATE:  Oh, yes, thank you.  I

          7  want to thank the City Council for its leadership,

          8  and in particular, Council Member Chris Quinn, and

          9  Margarita Lopez, not just because they are the last

         10  two people standing, but Chris, I would like to

         11  thank you, in particular, because you have taken an

         12  enormous amount of time to understand the complex

         13  issues facing the health care industry, so to-

         14  speak, and the impact that these cuts will have on

         15  our patients and our clients.

         16                 So I speak today for Community Health

         17  Care Network and the 65,000 individuals we serve.

         18  There Medicaid cuts, as well as the Article VI

         19  funding public health cuts, will be devastating and

         20  have a devastating impact on the health of the

         21  people we serve.

         22                 I would like to spend just a moment

         23  to describe the face of the communities.  We have

         24  been talking about some of the poorest communities,

         25  but where are they?  We service communities in Red
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          2  Hook and Bushwick, and East New York, and Crown

          3  Heights, and Lower East Side, Washington Heights,

          4  Harlem, South Bronx, Jamaica Queens, and if you look

          5  at the face of these communities, these are the

          6  areas of where the percentage of births to women

          7  less than 20 years- old is significantly higher than

          8  New York City.  The number of persons living in

          9  poverty is significantly higher.  The number of

         10  linguistically isolated households are higher,

         11  higher low- birth rates, the death rate from HIV,

         12  diabetes, hypertension is higher. I can go on and

         13  on, whether it is asthma, influenza, pneumonia,

         14  diabetes, these communities are the very communities

         15  that are disproportionately impacted and yet they

         16  are the sickest communities, from all the health

         17  indicators.  I invite you, and I brought a list of

         18  all the health indicators from all these

         19  communities, you can get it on the Internet, but I

         20  ran a hard copy, and I will hand it over to the

         21  Committee for anyone who might want to look at it.

         22                 But I speak for Community Health Care

         23  Network, but I also speak for so many community

         24  providers, that this funding, in particular, will

         25  cut our Family Planning Services, where we serve
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          2  high- risk women, our disease management programs,

          3  whether that be diabetes or hyperlipidemia, which is

          4  diagnosis high levels of cholesterol, which leads to

          5  coronary heart disease.  It will also cut our

          6  infant- mortality program.  And what these programs

          7  have in common is that there is a great emphasis on

          8  outreach and health education, behavioral change,

          9  teaching, young people, as well as seniors, changes

         10  in nutrition, exercise, counseling, screening

         11  prevention, whether it is HIV counseling and

         12  testing, all these programs involve not only

         13  outreach and health education, but workshops.

         14  Helping give patients the tools to change their

         15  lives, to manage their disease, and the potential

         16  that they may have for future diseases.

         17                 So the Medicaid cuts, in addition to

         18  the Title VI cuts will mean more uninsured, with

         19  Family Health Plus, reducing the eligibility, it is

         20  clear there will be a growing number of uninsured.

         21  That means, and it is debatable, every study has

         22  shown, if you are uninsured, that individual is less

         23  likely to get care. And these are the individuals

         24  that need the care the most.

         25                 Increasing co- payments for
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          2  prescription drugs will also have a devastating

          3  effect on our patients.  We see already people who

          4  come for care that cannot afford their prescription

          5  drugs.  So what is a physical examination, a

          6  diagnosis, where the doctor says or the provider

          7  says to the patient, you need to take this

          8  prescription to treat your symptoms, and you do not

          9  do that, where are going to see with more co- pays

         10  adherence go further reduced.

         11                 Already community providers, such as

         12  ourselves, are serving a huge number of uninsured.

         13  We now serve 42 percent of our patients are

         14  uninsured.  Now this is the wrong time, and this is

         15  the last point, because I know there are many people

         16  who want to speak, this is the wrong time to

         17  destabilize health care delivery. We saw after 9/11,

         18  more and more of our patients and clients coming to

         19  us from mental health issues.  A huge percentage

         20  increase with threats of bio- terrorism, with SARS,

         21  and what else that made face us in the future.  To

         22  weaken the healthcare network at a time when our

         23  patients are becoming sicker and their needs are

         24  even greater, and to forecast what will be the

         25  inevitable.  We will end up spending more dollars in
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          2  the future, and New Yorkers will become sicker,

          3  unnecessarily sick, if these cuts become a reality.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Just before you

          6  speak, Dr. Bonthu, I just want to note for the

          7  record that we were joined earlier by Dr. Barry

          8  Liebowitz of the Doctors' Council who has also

          9  submitted testimony, for the record.  So just in

         10  addition to the Committee on Residents and Interns.

         11                 DR. BONTHU:  Good afternoon.  My name

         12  is Doctor Srinivas Bonthu, Chief Resident in the

         13  Department of Radiology at Harlem Hospital.  I am

         14  also the Vice President that representing the

         15  Committee of Interns and Residents.  On behalf of

         16  CIR, I extend my thanks to Councilwoman Quinn and

         17  members of the Health Committee for convening this

         18  session.

         19                 We commend the City Council for your

         20  document responding to Governor Pataki's proposed

         21  budget cuts for this year.

         22                 CIR wholeheartedly agrees that

         23  Governor Pataki's plan to balance the budget by

         24  cutting Medicaid would be disastrous to the health

         25  of our City and patients.  It is a life- threatening
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          2  plan.  It will jeopardize the overall quality of

          3  care in our City's hospitals, particularly the

          4  public hospitals, which are largely responsible for

          5  providing care to the poor and indigent.  I mean

          6  they are all uninsured, most of them are.

          7                 A major part of the planned cuts to

          8  Medicaid will come from drastic reductions in

          9  funding to Graduate Medical education, the money is

         10  intended to offset the cost of providing education

         11  to our interns and residents.  We are particularly

         12  alarmed that this may mean a reduction in the number

         13  of funded residents in the HHC hospitals.

         14                 If the number of residents are cut,

         15  the physician to patient ratio declines.  I think,

         16  if I remember correctly, Dr. Chu was pointing that

         17  out too, earlier on.  It is hard to imagine

         18  reductions of any staff at our hospitals.  The cuts

         19  of the last few years have resulted in residents

         20  functioning as nurses on the wards, or as

         21  respiratory technicians and therapists.  Residents

         22  often must function as patient transporters in order

         23  to that certain procedures are performed in a timely

         24  manner.   As a result, valuable time is being taken

         25  away from some other patients, who actually need the
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          2  doctor's attention at that time.

          3                 The Governor's budget will only

          4  worsen the situation.  If the proper cuts are

          5  implemented, hospital emergency rooms will become

          6  the primary care facility for many who will have no

          7  other alternative.  Health care of those that rely

          8  on public hospitals will deteriorate forcing greater

          9  inpatient loads.

         10                 CIR will not stand by quietly and let

         11  patient care deteriorate as a result of budget cuts

         12  that do not need to happen. Other revenue sources

         13  must be found.  The people of the City of New York

         14  deserve better than these budget cuts.

         15                 Thank you for hearing our concerns

         16  today.

         17                 DR. FALU:  Good afternoon,

         18  Chairpersons Chris Quinn, Lopez, and other members

         19  of these Committees.  I am Doctor Geoigina Falu,

         20  Chair of the Community Advisory Board of

         21  Metropolitan Hospital.  And I am here to testify,

         22  and first to thank you for the opportunity to

         23  discuss how the proposed State budget is very

         24  damaging to Metropolitan Hospital Center.

         25                 Over the past several years,
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          2  Metropolitan Hospital Center have achieved in

          3  comparable gains in accountability, efficiency, and

          4  cost- effectiveness, while providing state- of- the

          5  art health care to the people of El Barrio, East

          6  Harlem, and other areas of the City, regardless of

          7  their ability to pay.  More than 200,000 New Yorkers

          8  were treated at Metropolitan Hospital last year.

          9  For these patients and our community, who live close

         10  to Metropolitan Hospital the services are essential.

         11

         12                 The proposed New York State Executive

         13  Budget will have a disproportionate, damaging impact

         14  on the hospital's culpability to render those

         15  services.  The State proposals will cut more than

         16  $16 million in funding from Metropolitan Hospital.

         17  This could mean a loss of over 320 jobs at this

         18  hospital without going to the deterioration of the

         19  possible quality of the services.  A cut of this

         20  magnitude would undermine, definitely, the recent

         21  gains made by our hospital.  Like the rest of New

         22  York, health care industry, our facility has also

         23  experienced declining the federal funding and

         24  increasing costs.

         25                 The proposed New York State Executive
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          2  Budget combined with these forces will drastically

          3  effect the services we provide to our patients, the

          4  community we support, the 3,000- member workforce

          5  that we employ at Metropolitan Hospital.  The

          6  greatest financial threat right now is this proposed

          7  New York State Executive Budget for Fiscal Year

          8  2003- 2004.  We can not definitely absorb the

          9  magnitude of the proposed cuts with our workforce

         10  reductions and significant service changes and

         11  configuration.  In spite of expanding controls, the

         12  quality of patient care has not been adversely

         13  affected.  The proposed budget cuts would jeopardize

         14  the gains achieved so far.

         15                 For example, in the proposed State

         16  budget, it includes significant reduction in various

         17  components at our Hospital Medicaid funding.

         18  Currently, Metropolitan Hospital stand to lose 10.4

         19  million because of proposed changes in funding for

         20  indirect and Graduate Medical Education.  In

         21  addition, $3 million as the result of the

         22  elimination of the yearly rate increases, the

         23  hospital received to reflect increases in the cost

         24  of providing care.  Metropolitan Hospital has

         25  managed to significantly limit spending increases.

                                                            175

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  Still, these cuts will affect adversely the

          3  services.

          4                 Nine hundred thousand dollars, as a

          5  result of a 5 percent reduction in, in- patient

          6  psychiatric and rehabilitation services

          7  reimbursement rates.  This is a substantial cut, and

          8  Metropolitan Hospital is one of the single, largest

          9  provider of behavioral health services in El Barrio.

         10    Approximately 40 percent of our in- patient

         11  psychiatric costs are paid by Medicaid.

         12                 Ninety- six thousand dollars, as a

         13  result of adjustment and reduce Medicaid payment for

         14  all diagnostic- related groups.

         15                 Metropolitan also stands to lose

         16  $340,000, as a result operating elimination of

         17  volume adjustment payments. Metropolitan Hospital

         18  receive funding to compensate for changes in volume

         19  when the hospital also have decreases in the length

         20  of stay. This funding is proposed to be eliminated,

         21  and metropolitan would lose those $340,000, and

         22  again, it is being penalized for doing the right

         23  thing and complying with State policy that is

         24  reducing in patient length of stay.

         25                 The proposed State budget also
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          2  includes provision to scale back eligibility for

          3  Family Health Plus from 150 percent of the federal

          4  poverty level to 133 percent of the federal poverty

          5  level, and it is proposing increases in EPIC and

          6  Medicaid beneficiaries co- pays for prescription

          7  drugs.  This change, if implemented, with further

          8  erode Metropolitan's ability to carry out our core

          9  mission.  People will delay getting care, they will

         10  not come to the hospital, if they are not insured.

         11  And right now throughout this years our Advisory

         12  Board has been struggling in the community to

         13  convene the people to come to the hospital because

         14  the increase of bilingual, and I mean, some cases

         15  are people who yet don't speak English has been

         16  increasing in El Barrio, and definitely these cuts

         17  will make this reality much worse than what it is.

         18                 I really thank you for the

         19  opportunity that I have been given to make this

         20  presentation, and especially the Council Committee

         21  for the leadership and the hard work in defense of

         22  preserving the services, the health services to our

         23  community.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 MS. PITTMAN:  My name is Carol
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          2  Pittman, and I am here representing the Economic and

          3  General Welfare Program of the New York State Nurses

          4  Association.  Good afternoon, Chairpersons Quinn and

          5  Lopez, and Council staffers, and members of the

          6  public. The New York State Nurses Association

          7  represents 34,000 registered nurses statewide.  Of

          8  that number 26,000 work in public and private

          9  hospitals and clinics here in the five boroughs.

         10  That includes the 7,000 RN's who work at HHC and in

         11  the mayoral agencies, that is the same 7,000

         12  Registered Nurses who aid in the care for the 1.2

         13  million patients seen yearly at HHC facilities.  We

         14  are colleagues to Doctors' Council, Doctors' CIR,

         15  and ASCME Local 420.

         16                 We are basically here, I am here to

         17  voice NYSNA's very strong support for the Council

         18  Resolution 806- A and the Resolution on Medicaid.

         19                 There have been a lot of people here

         20  today who have spoken very eloquently here on the

         21  serious, actually outrageous cuts being proposed by

         22  the Governor in Health Care funding.  We share

         23  everyone's alarm.  NYSNA has for many years been a

         24  proponent of quality, comprehensive, affordable

         25  health care for all.  That is preventive, primary,
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          2  long- term care and end of life care, including

          3  medications and medical supplies.  We support all

          4  efforts to eliminate barriers to health care

          5  services for all people.  In this era of potential,

          6  biological threats we also advocate for emergency

          7  preparedness for all, including access to

          8  immunization when necessary.  We need a health care

          9  system that promotes health and prevents disease and

         10  injury with dignity.  People should not have to

         11  struggle to get the care they need for themselves

         12  and for their loved ones.  Our nation should be

         13  getting closer and not further away from these

         14  goals.

         15                 The Governor's Executive Budget would

         16  eliminate even the most basic health care safety net

         17  for the people of our City. Given the proposed cuts,

         18  who would treat the poor or uninsured, those

         19  affected by the HIV epidemic, the homeless, those

         20  who need long- term care and mental health care, the

         21  disabled, the elderly and our children.  The

         22  societal ripple effects of the Governor's cuts in

         23  such programs as infant mortality education and

         24  outreach, STD treatment, Poison Control and day care

         25  inspection will impact on every one of us, and
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          2  render our City less livable and much less safe.

          3                 And so we are with you in these

          4  resolutions, and we urge the Governor and the State

          5  Legislature, and we urge you to urge them, to also

          6  look to alternative sources of revenue to close the

          7  budget deficit instead of cutting basic services to

          8  the neediest people in New York City.

          9                 We can start by closing corporate tax

         10  loopholes and temporarily raising taxes on those in

         11  the higher income brackets.

         12                 Thank you very much for your

         13  initiative and leadership on this issue, and for the

         14  opportunity to testify.                 MS. CHARLES:

         15    Good afternoon, Councilwoman Quinn, Councilwoman

         16  Lopez, and other members of the Committee.  My name

         17  is Carmen Charles, and I represent members that work

         18  with HHC, 9,000 strong.  I am not only the

         19  spokesperson for my members, but I am also speaking

         20  on behalf those New Yorkers who are uninsured, and

         21  who are the poor, and who feel that they have no one

         22  to speak for them.

         23                 This afternoon I am here to tell you

         24  members of the panel that we believe that Governor

         25  Pataki proposed budget would cost an estimated
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          2  38,000 jobs statewide at public hospitals, nursing

          3  homes, and community clinics.  But the burden of the

          4  Governor's budget will be unfairly shouldered by HHC

          5  hospitals, which receive 60 percent of their revenue

          6  from Medicaid and treat nearly two- thirds of all

          7  New York City uninsured.

          8                 Medicaid revenue for HHC would be

          9  slashed by $200 million and could mean 4,000 jobs.

         10  Now I am not a statistician, I can only speak on the

         11  part of labor.  Four thousand jobs at HHC would mean

         12  devastation in quality patient care.  And if we are

         13  talking about caring for all of New York, how do you

         14  proposed to cut health care that is so beneficial,

         15  and is so vital to all of New York City?

         16                 Mayor Bloomberg's proposal, even his

         17  best case budget would have devastating consequences

         18  for our cities, low income and uninsured population.

         19    He is calling for almost half of the children's

         20  health clinics to be closed.  This, at a time,  when

         21  private hospitals are eliminating and scaling back

         22  on community clinics.

         23                 HHC is the safety net for these New

         24  Yorkers, and even without these budget cuts, HHC is

         25  under enormous financial pressures.  The HHC
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          2  provides health services for over half a million

          3  uninsured patient each year.  During the first half

          4  of the Fiscal Year 2003, almost 40 percent of HHC

          5  adult outpatients were uninsured, and that does not

          6  include emergency visits.

          7                 It is our obligation to preserve

          8  quality care for all New Yorkers, and for the people

          9  that is working HHC, many of whom I am speaking for

         10  today, they do it, because the care about the

         11  patients that they take care of, because they are

         12  not millionaires, they do not make a lot of money,

         13  so they do it just because they love what they do.

         14  And members of the panel, I am just here to ask you,

         15  in fact, I am begging you, on behalf of those

         16  people, who feel that their voiceless, and no one is

         17  listening to them, we cannot allow, we must not

         18  allow the Governor's proposed budget cuts to go

         19  through.

         20                 Increased taxes, we are asking to

         21  increase taxes for the wealthiest New Yorkers.  If

         22  anyone makes more than $100,000 a year, let them pay

         23  their fair share of taxes.  And people who make more

         24  than $200,000 pay a little more than that.  The

         25  State could collect $3 billion per year.
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          2                 We are asking also to close corporate

          3  tax loopholes. New York State can raise an

          4  additional $1.6 billion a year. Corporate taxes

          5  provide only 4 percent of New York's revenue, down

          6  from 10 percent in 1977.  New York borders agree

          7  that 75 percent of New Yorkers support increase in

          8  taxes on the wealthiest New Yorkers, and large

          9  corporations.

         10                 Our position as a Union President is,

         11  we are always, always asked to sacrifice, and we

         12  have sacrificed and we have sacrificed, and now we

         13  are asking those people that have reaped the benefit

         14  of the surplus of New York State and New York City

         15  to make their sacrifice.  Ladies and gentlemen of

         16  the panel, I beg you, on behalf of the New Yorkers,

         17  who depend on Medicare, and my members who if they

         18  are laid off becomes the uninsured.

         19                 Please, do not let these testimonies

         20  fall on deaf ears.  Anything that you can do, and we

         21  stand shoulder to shoulder. I am sure that everyone

         22  who has testified here today is committed to finding

         23  alternatives to the Governor's proposed budget.

         24  Because we care about health care.  I am coming out

         25  of Coler- Goldwater Hospital, which is a long- term
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          2  institution, and I know for a fact that those

          3  patients at Coler- Goldwater, and any other public

          4  institution, no matter where they are, they depend

          5  on Medicaid for their survival.  HHC depends on

          6  Medicare for its survival.  HHC cannot survive

          7  without Medicaid revenues.  And I beg you, I beg

          8  you, I cannot beg you more.  We need you, the

          9  members of HHC population, the people that needs it

         10  the most need you, and anything that this local can

         11  do, just call us, we will be there shoulder to

         12  shoulder, and I hope to see you tomorrow.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Ms. Charles, call

         15  my attention to the number of jobs, for the last 10

         16  years you said that HHC has lost 10,000 less

         17  employees.

         18                 MS. CHARLES:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And those 10,000,

         20  what are they about, do you know?

         21                 MS. CHARLES:  Some were lost to

         22  attrition, the early incentive buy- out, others

         23  were, you know, retirement, that kind of thing.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But the lines,

         25  what I am trying to figure - -
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          2                 MS. CHARLES:  Some of them were not

          3  replaced.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  They are not

          5  replaced.

          6                 MS. CHARLES:  No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then are we

          8  talking about 10,000 jobs that used to exist

          9  occupied by people.  They are not occupied by

         10  people, but the responsibilities of those jobs,

         11  continue to exist.

         12                 MS. CHARLES:  Are still there, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And then who does

         14  that?

         15                 MS. CHARLES:  The people that are

         16  left.  That is why this budget proposal is going to

         17  be so devastating, because health care is already at

         18  a crisis.  We are already, and I am sure that

         19  Councilwoman Quinn knows this, there are hospitals

         20  right now that where people are working double and

         21  triple overtime, just to provide care for the

         22  patients that need it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, then, in

         24  top of the 10,000 will be the 4,000?

         25                 MS. CHARLES:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  That will be a

          3  loss of jobs in the Health and Hospital Corporation

          4  for the 10 years, if this will go through?

          5                 MS. CHARLES:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, thank you.

          7  And just one clarification, these numbers surprise

          8  me, the 26,000 nurses.  I thought it was more.

          9                 MS. PITTMAN:  There are more nurses

         10  in New York City, we represent for collective

         11  bargaining 26,000 in the five boroughs.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Oh, okay.  I got

         13  confused, that was the reason.

         14                 Then, Doctor Falu, like always, you

         15  are a gem.  I mean you are a lady of character.

         16                 DR. FALU:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Every time that I

         18  see you, I have to say to you, you are incredible.

         19                 DR. FALU:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you for

         21  being here testifying today.

         22                 DR. FALU:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Catherine, I just

         24  want to understand, the Medicaid impact in your

         25  particular agency, will create unemployment?
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          2                 MS. ABATE:  Yes, when these cuts, the

          3  cuts that I talked about, those three programs add

          4  up to about $850,000.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And that will be?

          6                 MS. ABATE:  And some of it will mean,

          7  certainly, a diminution of services, and some of it

          8  will be, may be laying off some people.  I am hoping

          9  to prevent that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No, I understand,

         11  but in practical terms.

         12                 MS. ABATE:  And we will try to find

         13  other ways to providing the care but it certainly

         14  will mean fewer, the services that are so critical

         15  to the population are:  Health Education, the work

         16  that nurses do, the work that our social workers

         17  will do.  Now can we afford to layoff, because we

         18  have so few staff now, a nurse or a social worker?

         19  It may mean they are going to be asked to do more,

         20  but I do not know how that will happen.  Or they are

         21  going to have to, maybe not have time to do the

         22  Health Education they do now, and the counseling

         23  they do, and the nutrition.

         24                 So we may have the same bodies, but

         25  who will lose in this, it will be our patients.
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          2  Because they are not going to get access to the

          3  services they so critically need.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The reason I am

          5  asking this question is because when we talk about

          6  the care and the quality of the care, that is one

          7  aspect of this problem.  But the reason I keep

          8  asking everyone that come about the impact on the

          9  economy, and I keep asking layoff, unemployment, the

         10  reason I ask that is because this will further

         11  create a bigger problem in the budget for the

         12  following year, when less people will be paying

         13  taxes.

         14                 MS. ABATE:  Right, right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And that is the

         16  reason I keep asking every one of you what kind of

         17  unemployment projections are we talking about here.

         18                 MS. ABATE:  And it may not, - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And I understand

         20  that - -

         21                 MS. ABATE:  Right, it may not be

         22  layoffs - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: - -  your agency -

         24   -

         25                 MS. ABATE: - -  but it may not be the
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          2  ability to fill certain positions when they become

          3  vacant.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.

          5                 MS. ABATE:  And that is really very

          6  critical.  But I am so concerned that these

          7  services, and that is why I detailed the health

          8  indicators in the communities we serve, we are

          9  talking about just the rest of the City's here, and

         10  the communities, the under- served communities they

         11  are into health indicators, they are so

         12  devastatingly poor in comparison.  So when we cut

         13  these services, it will mean the life and death for

         14  so many other people we serve.  There is no way of

         15  getting around that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ;  And my final

         17  comment, and this is for all of you, why is it that

         18  none of the people who have come to testify at this

         19  table, has said clearly, that people are going to

         20  die?  I mean why we don't face that fact?  Because

         21  cutting services, cutting quality of care, cutting

         22  the amount of time that people, no, increasing the

         23  amount of time that people have to wait for tests

         24  and care, this comes directly to one thing and one

         25  thing only, and it is the increment of people die.
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          2  Why is it that no one mentioned this.

          3                 MS. ABATE:  Well I will leave it to

          4  the medical, I mean, I can respond to that, but

          5  perhaps the doctor wants to respond.

          6                 DR. BONTHU:  You are right, that

          7  could happen.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then?

          9                 DR. BONTHU:  I guess we are all in

         10  denial, and we are hoping for the best to happen.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Well do you

         12  know, I am saying this because, with this I close my

         13  comment.  We need to tell New Yorkers that the

         14  bottom line on this proposed budget, if people get

         15  syphilis because they were not tested, because the

         16  clinic where they tested is close, people are going

         17  to die.

         18                 DR. BONTHU:  Sure, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  And we need to

         20  begin talking about that clear and square.  People

         21  are going to die because there is not medical care

         22  provisional services, not because it does not exist

         23  the way of curing people, but because we choose to

         24  spend the money on something else.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you all
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          2  very much for coming today, and for all your work.

          3  And as I said after the first panel, but I think

          4  this panel really illustrates it too, you know, we

          5  have a panel of community health care provider, a

          6  Chief Resident, a Community Advisory Board Chair,

          7  two labor Leaders, you know, it really is, I think,

          8  an example of how broad the commitment is to health

          9  care in the City, how diverse it is, how it touches

         10  people's lives in so many ways, and how there are so

         11  many people fighting to make sure this system stays

         12  in place.  And I think that that is just a very, in

         13  the face of also this negative information from

         14  Albany and from City Hall, just a really important

         15  and positive statement about New York City and our

         16  commitment as New Yorkers to each other.  So thank

         17  you all very much.

         18                 We are now going to call up Alice

         19  Berger, Peter Slokom, Renee Ross, and Robert Jaffe,

         20  and those are our final four witnesses.

         21                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please raise your right

         22  hand?  Do you swear that the testimony you are about

         23  to provide before this Committee is the whole truth,

         24  and that you will answer Council member questions

         25  truthfully?
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          2                 ALL:  Yes.

          3                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please proceed.

          4                 MS. BERGER:  Okay, good afternoon, I

          5  guess we are still in the afternoon, it is not the

          6  evening yet, right?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank goodness

          8  for daylight savings.

          9                 MS. BERGER:  Thank goodness for

         10  daylight savings, absolutely.

         11                 Well, first of all, again, thank you

         12  to Council Members Quinn, Rivera, or in his absence,

         13  and Lopez, for really convening this public hearing.

         14    I am Alice Berger and I am the Director of Health

         15  Care Planning of Planned Parenthood of New York

         16  City.  And really to try to not reiterate anything

         17  that has been said before, I will speak very

         18  specifically from PPNYC's perspective as a

         19  representative of low- income women of reproductive

         20  age, and as a community- based provider.

         21                 Planned Parenthood has been a leader

         22  in reproductive health care for more than 80 years

         23  here in New York City, and is one of New York's

         24  oldest community- based safety net providers.  We

         25  provide reproductive health care to those who are
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          2  most in need.

          3                 In 2002, we served nearly 40,000

          4  individual clients from all five boroughs, equally

          5  more than 73,000 visits a year at our three health

          6  centers in Manhattan, Brooklyn, and the Bronx.  As a

          7  community- based safety net provided, we have always

          8  offered services regardless of a client's ability to

          9  pay.  In 2002, 31 percent of all our clients were

         10  covered by Medicaid, while 25 percent had no

         11  insurance of any kind and were eligible to receive

         12  services on a sliding fee scale.

         13                 These numbers do not reflect the

         14  projected increase for 2003 with many clients

         15  becoming eligible for the newly implemented Medicaid

         16  Expansion Programs, the Family Planning Benefit

         17  Program, and the Breast and Cervical Early Detection

         18  and Treatment Program.

         19                 Planned Parenthood also has five

         20  entitlement counselors on- site at our three

         21  centers, and these very dedicated staff assist

         22  roughly 2,500 women and their families each year

         23  directly enrolling in Medicaid, Child Health Plus,

         24  PCAP, Breast and Cervical Early Detection, and the

         25  new Medicaid Family Planning Benefit Program.  As
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          2  many of you who are left in the room know, that

          3  reproductive health care is primary care for women

          4  of reproductive age.

          5                 Reproductive health providers like

          6  PPNYC offer essential services that include annual

          7  GYN exams, screening for breast and cervical cancer,

          8  contraception, emergency contraception, testing and

          9  treatment for sexually transmitted infections, HIV

         10  testing and counseling, and surgical and medical

         11  abortion services. For many women the service that

         12  they receive at PPNYC and in other reproductive

         13  health care providers, are there only source of

         14  health care, or are the entry into the general

         15  health care system for other health services.

         16                 Women rely on us for preventive

         17  services, as well as in times of crisis.  Many of

         18  the clients that we see every day rely on Medicaid

         19  and other New York State Public Health Insurance

         20  Programs, in order to access these essential

         21  services.  The Governor's proposed cuts will have a

         22  profound impact on PPNYC, and most importantly on

         23  our clients.  Many of my colleagues have discussed

         24  the impacts specifically of the reduction and

         25  eligibility levels for adults, with children under
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          2  Family Health Plus, very specifically to not

          3  reiterate, we all know that without basic and

          4  ongoing health coverage, women and their families

          5  are more likely to delay or go without essential and

          6  preventive health care.  And this translates

          7  specifically from what we see costly, unintended

          8  pregnancies, STI's, as Margarita Lopez mentioned

          9  before with her reference to syphilis and the whole

         10  other array of STI's, and a host of preventable

         11  gynecological conditions.

         12                 The Governor has also proposed, as if

         13  this were not enough to shift children, age 16 to 18

         14  with incomes between 100 and 133 percent from Child

         15  Health Plus A, Children's Medicaid to CHP B. And

         16  specifically, because of the cliental that we see in

         17  PPNYC, we can talk about the impact that this will

         18  have on adolescents, since obviously we do not see

         19  very young children.

         20                 Unlike CHP A, CHP B is not an

         21  entitlement program. And it has limited funding.  As

         22  the number of children in the CHP B program

         23  increases there are fewer dollars available to cover

         24  each enrollee.  In addition, CHP A covers a host of

         25  services that are not covered under CHP B.

                                                            195

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  Adolescence covered under CHP B also have more

          3  limited access to reproductive health care.  The

          4  managed care model of CHP B locks adolescence as

          5  well as children into using only network providers,

          6  providers that may not have a relationship with,  or

          7  whom they do not feel comfortable with visiting for

          8  care. Whereas adolescence under CHP A or children's

          9  Medicaid has free access to reproductive health

         10  coverage, free access ensures that adolescence and

         11  other Medicaid beneficiaries can visit providers

         12  outside their managed care plan network.  This

         13  policy was specifically established to protect the

         14  time sensitive and confidential nature of

         15  reproductive health services.

         16                 We were, as also was mentioned very

         17  concerned that Administrative Road Blocks will lead

         18  to a disruption and coverage for children as they

         19  move or do not move from one program to the other.

         20  The Governor's proposal also to eliminate temporary

         21  eligibility to health care benefits under CHP B

         22  would deny adolescence timely access to vital health

         23  care services. Currently, children and adolescence

         24  in CHP B can access health care while their

         25  application is being processed, and while they or
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          2  their families are gathering all the required

          3  documentation. Applications and enrollment can be a

          4  long and tedious road that requires lengthy

          5  documentation.

          6                 Under the Governor's proposal

          7  adolescence enrolling in CHP B would remain

          8  uninsured in the limbo between screening and

          9  enrollment, delaying needed services.  Immediate

         10  access to reproductive health services is essential

         11  for young people in need of birth control, STI

         12  treatment, or other reproductive health care. In

         13  fact, it is often the determining factor in

         14  receiving or not receiving the care that they need.

         15                 And finally, New York State has a

         16  long tradition of providing health care for the

         17  uninsured.  Important Medicaid expansion programs

         18  such as Family Health Plus, Prenatal Care and

         19  Assistance program, the Family Planning Benefit

         20  program, had provided reproductive health care

         21  benefits to thousands of New York State residents.

         22  However, today, one in four New York City residents

         23  remain uninsured which leads to critical public

         24  health and economic consequences.

         25                 Already New York State can
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          2  confidently estimate that out of three million

          3  uninsured men, women, and children, more than one-

          4  third of our fellow citizens are eligible, but not

          5  enrolled in public health programs such as Medicaid

          6  and Family Health Plus. With the proposed cuts the

          7  number of "current eligibles" remain uninsured will

          8  only increase.  Women who are uninsured will delay

          9  or go without public health services resulting,

         10  again, in unintended pregnancies and the other

         11  sequelae.  Treatment of the uninsured has

         12  historically fallen into safety net community- based

         13  providers and public hospitals that do not turn

         14  clients away based on their inability to pay.

         15                 With the Governor's proposed

         16  reductions in coverage and in payments to providers,

         17  our safety net community will feel an even greater

         18  strain.  Fewer and fewer providers will be able to

         19  provide services as more and more New Yorkers need

         20  them.  We will face an increase in the demand for

         21  services, and an increase in the number of visits

         22  for which we cannot be reimbursed.  When one safety

         23  net provider suffers cuts, we all bleed.  Further,

         24  when providers are hardest hit, it just does not

         25  effect those who rely on public insurance, these
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          2  cuts will result in decreased access to care,

          3  decrease quality of care, and a poor quality of life

          4  for all New Yorkers regardless of insurance status.

          5                 I would like to thank, again, the

          6  members of the City Council for their leadership and

          7  commitment on this issue. And again, we urge you,

          8  and we will be there with you every inch of the way

          9  to demand the restoration of all the proposed cuts

         10  to the Medicaid programs, specifically including

         11  maintaining Family Health Plus at 150 percent of the

         12  federal poverty level, eliminating the transfer of

         13  children and adolescence from CHP A to CHP B,

         14  protecting temporary eligibility under CHP B and

         15  restoring funding to safety net providers.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 MS. ROSS:  Good afternoon.  My name

         18  is Renee Ross, and I am the Director of Policy for

         19  the New York AIDS Coalition. We represent

         20  approximately 200 HIV/AIDS service providers across

         21  New York State, with the majority of them being

         22  located in New York City.

         23                 Before I begin I would like to thank

         24  Chairwoman Christine Quinn and Chairwoman Margarita

         25  Lopez for their continued support to HIV/AIDS-
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          2  related issues in New York City.  And in particular

          3  at NYAC we are looking at HIV and AIDS in relation

          4  to other health care concerns.  And so this is why

          5  we came here today to testify in regard to Medicaid,

          6  and also for the Article VI funds.  So as members of

          7  this Committee are aware, there are more individuals

          8  with HIV and AIDS in New York City than any other

          9  city in the nation.

         10                 At the Community Planning Leadership

         11  Summit in March, the Mayor stated that this is

         12  totally unacceptable.  We can, we must and we will

         13  do better, but as of March 31st, 2002, there were

         14  75,228 New Yorkers diagnosed and reported to be

         15  living with AIDS.  And at minimum an additional

         16  25,000 are positive, but are unaware of their HIV

         17  status.  Accumulative total of 133,000, 171 New

         18  Yorkers have been diagnosed with AIDS, since AIDS

         19  reporting began in 1985.  And despite the severity

         20  of the HIV/AIDS epidemic in New York City, Governor

         21  Pataki has proposed cuts that will impact provision

         22  of health care prevention and services for adults

         23  and children impacted by HIV and AIDS, mental

         24  disabilities and other illnesses.

         25                 In addition, funding for infant
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          2  mortality and HIV/AIDS specifically targeted for

          3  communities of color are being jeopardized.  NYAC is

          4  opposed to Pataki's $2 billion cuts to the Medicaid

          5  Program and the amendment to Article VI of the

          6  public health law.

          7                 As many people have already spoken

          8  about, Medicaid provides health care prescriptions

          9  for under- served and poor populations.  But it also

         10  provides for 55 percent of care for individuals

         11  living with HIV/AIDS in the United States.  The cuts

         12  proposed by the Governor will harm over a three

         13  million New Yorkers, generally, who rely on Medicaid

         14  for there health care. But specifically it will

         15  apply to 65,000 people living with HIV/AIDS in New

         16  York City.  It is reprehensible that the Governor

         17  would consider closing the budget gap on the backs

         18  of the poor and under- served who utilize Medicaid.

         19                 The effects of the proposed amendment

         20  to Article VI of the New York State Public Health

         21  Law, limiting the matching funds received by cities

         22  and counties for the public health activities have

         23  also been reflected in Bloomberg's proposed

         24  Executive Budget so that with the changes proposed

         25  by the Governor, we are going to see them here, if
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          2  they go through.

          3                 The cuts to the Department of Health

          4  and Mental Hygiene were clearly stated by the

          5  Commission, we are specifically interested in

          6  looking at the reduction of HIV/AIDS testing by

          7  2000, and that is considering the fact that we do

          8  not even know how many people are already positive.

          9  And with the Mayor's continued iteration that he

         10  believes that this crisis that has to be addressed,

         11  and we want to be the national model for treatment

         12  and services, and I do not know how this could be

         13  possible with the types of cuts that Pataki has

         14  proposed.

         15                 We are also concerned about the Child

         16  Health Clinics, and the fact that 12 are going to be

         17  closed, and the three that are under current

         18  renovation will not be opened again.

         19                 We are also interested in looking at

         20  the fact that the funding for communities of color,

         21  and HIV/AIDS initiative, and the infant mortality

         22  initiative are at higher risk for being left out as

         23  a result of the Article VI.

         24                 So NYAC recommends basically that the

         25  Advocacy be stepped up on all levels, we are talking
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          2  about the lives of individuals who utilize the

          3  health care system in New York City, not just those

          4  infected by HIV/AIDS, but by other diseases.  And

          5  without being able to utilize Medicaid, and without

          6  the provision of services that come under Article

          7  VI, their health is really going to be in peril.

          8                 We want to ensure that these proposed

          9  cuts are not in the final budget, and we have been

         10  working in cooperation of a number of different

         11  groups in New York City, on advocacy efforts to

         12  ensure these cuts do not occur.

         13                 We would also like to assist the City

         14  Council in any way we can to work in cooperation

         15  with you, to oppose these cuts. I want to thank you

         16  for your time, and just wanted to let you know that

         17  NYAC is here to work with you, and we will continue

         18  to be advocating against these budget cuts until the

         19  fight is over. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And we may see

         21  you tomorrow, we may not, but we all definitely will

         22  see you on Wednesday, at the Brooklyn Bridge March.

         23                 We have a stated meeting that day, so

         24  the members might not see you on the Brooklyn side,

         25  but we will definitely see you on this side.
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          2                 MS. ROSS:  Okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And you, we saw

          4  last week at the NARAL Brunch.

          5                 MR. JAFFE:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

          7                 MR. JAFFE:  My name is Robert Jaffe,

          8  I am the Deputy Director at NARAL/NY, and I want to

          9  thank you folks for giving us the time to share with

         10  you some concerns about the Medicaid budget and

         11  Governor Pataki's Proposed Executive Budget for this

         12  fiscal year.  I also admire you for not, apparently,

         13  having a morsel of food pass through you mouth

         14  during these many hours of testimony.             I

         15  want to address one aspect of the Medicaid program

         16  that I think sometimes gets lost, which is that

         17  Medicaid is essentially a women's health program.

         18  More than one out of ten American women rely on

         19  Medicaid.  Medicaid is made up of women

         20  disproportionately of adults, 70 percent of the

         21  recipients are female, and Medicaid is the largest

         22  payer of Family Planning Care in the United States.

         23  It pays for more than 40 percent of the births here

         24  in New York.  So Medicaid is a crucial program for

         25  women's health, and we, and a number of other  - -
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          2  70 percent of the adult women, I am sorry, of adults

          3  in the Medicaid Program are female, nationally that

          4  is.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  What was the

          6  statistic you just said about the percentage of

          7  births?

          8                 MR. JAFFE:  It is slightly more than

          9  40 percent of all births.  I think that is New York,

         10  actually.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So Medicaid pays

         12  for 40 percent of all the births in New York.

         13                 MR. JAFFE:  New York State.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  New York State,

         15  okay, thank you.

         16                 MR. JAFFE:  And we are working along

         17  with Planned Parenthood of New York City, and a

         18  number of organizations on the national level to

         19  attempt to reframe the debate around Medicaid in the

         20  context of women's health, and think it is

         21  important, both politically as well as substantively

         22  to discuss the issue in the context of women's

         23  health needs.

         24                 You folks in a superb report, I

         25  think, succinctly and thoughtfully went through the
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          2  problems with the Governor's proposed budget, and I

          3  think today, you heard in painstaking detail the

          4  pain that the Governor's budget would cause.  I do

          5  not want to focus on that, because I think it would

          6  be repetitive and given the time, brevity would be

          7  appreciated, I think.  But I want to draw the

          8  attention of the City Council to one change being

          9  sought by the Governor that has gotten little

         10  attention, but would have serious implications for

         11  New Yorkers.

         12                 As you know, New York State, like

         13  many states has aggressively sought to move Medicaid

         14  enrollees into Managed Care arrangements, more than

         15  one out of two New Yorkers currently are in Medicaid

         16  Managed Care.  And the pathways that consumers must

         17  navigate in getting there care, changes dramatically

         18  when they enter into a Medicaid HMO.

         19                 Today, both the City of New York and

         20  the State play a central roll in designing Medicaid

         21  Managed Care rules and ensuring compliance with

         22  Medicaid HMOs and meeting a range of requirements,

         23  including acting properly during enrollment

         24  processes, ensuring adequate availability of

         25  providers, and in dealing with consumer grievances.
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          2  And today Medicaid HMOs contract with the City of

          3  New York to operate within the five boroughs, and

          4  this contracting authority gives the City necessary

          5  influence to shape the behavior of Medicaid HMOs.

          6                 Buried in the Governor's budget

          7  bills, there is a provision to transfer that

          8  contracting authority from the City of New York to

          9  the State.  So essentially the State would be the

         10  body that would contract with each of the Medicaid

         11  HMOs operating in the City, and while this is being

         12  hailed of a way as simplifying the process of

         13  contracting, and making it easier on localities in

         14  terms of not having to deal with the nitty gritty

         15  details of the contracting process, we think that it

         16  will potentially eliminate, and absolutely would

         17  reduce the City's ability to affect Medicaid HMO

         18  behavior here in New York City.

         19                 The City pay, as your report notes,

         20  $4 billion or 15 percent of the City's tax levy

         21  dollars go into the Medicaid program.  So New York

         22  City has a responsibility not only morally, but also

         23  financially in ensuring that Medicaid Managed Care

         24  enrollees are properly protected.  Seeding the

         25  authority to contract would undermine the City's
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          2  roll, and would lessen your ability, and I think the

          3  City's Health Department's ability to ensure that

          4  Medicaid HMOs are operating in a way that is

          5  consistent with the quality concerns that we would

          6  all share.  And I urge the City Council to express

          7  their opposition to this, as soon as possible, given

          8  that it is on the table currently.  And while we

          9  have not heard that either house is ready to embrace

         10  it, I think there is a danger in the final days of

         11  negotiations around the budget that we could lose an

         12  important protection that currently exists.

         13                 Just one last point that I would like

         14  to raise.  I did in a previous job a lot of work

         15  around Welfare Reform and was up in Albany, and did

         16  work in D.C. Around the 1996, so- called, welfare

         17  reform.  And I think one of the things we learned

         18  from that is that changes can happen before laws and

         19  budgets get passed.  And many of the changes that

         20  occurred in New York City prior to any law passing

         21  up in Albany or in D.C., were the kind of

         22  administrative procedures that were changed, that

         23  really created obstacles for people getting on

         24  welfare.  And I think that there is a real danger

         25  that in the midst of budget fights and important
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          2  efforts to safeguard our Medicaid budget, we will

          3  watch a slow and steady process of eroding people's

          4  access to actually getting on Medicaid. Paperwork

          5  will be slowed down in its processing, people will

          6  be forced to go through various hoops.  And I urge

          7  the City Council to monitor closely the process

          8  during this time period, because a very easy and

          9  effective way for both the City and the State to

         10  control Medicaid costs would just be to make it much

         11  harder for people to actually get on the rolls.

         12                 So thank you, you folks have been

         13  absolutely extraordinary in your defense of

         14  Medicaid, not only in your report, but in your

         15  continued advocacy.  And NARAL/NY hopes to work with

         16  you now, and in the near future in making sure that

         17  our Medicaid Program is a secure one.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you, all

         20  three of you.  I think the perspective as it relates

         21  to HIV/AIDS and also women's health and reproductive

         22  issues, is a very important one that you are all

         23  right.  It does not necessarily always make into the

         24  beginning sort of speak, or the initial or the front

         25  part of the Medicaid debate.   So I think it is
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          2  important for you guys to raise that and remind all

          3  of us.  And some of the statistics you raised, I

          4  think are going to be really helpful in the rest of

          5  this year's battle.  But what we certainly know is

          6  that there will be more battles, so that will be

          7  very useful.

          8                 And Judith is going to grab you after

          9  the hearing is over, so we can talk about the issue

         10  about control and what the best way for us to get

         11  our message up to Albany.

         12                 MR. JAFFE:  Right.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you, all.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  In the Medicaid

         15  proposals that you see, it is not any particular

         16  proposal that is geared to prevent reproductive

         17  rights, right?  Do you understand my question?

         18  Because you know what they do, you know, Republicans

         19  utilize this time in order to implement the policy

         20  against the womens right to choose.  Then you do not

         21  see that in here?

         22                 MS. BERGER:  Well there is the direct

         23  answer and the indirect answer, right?  I mean, that

         24  if you basically erode people's access to

         25  reproductive health care, you, in a sense, are

                                                            210

          1  HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH, STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

          2  clearly affecting their ability to chose, and that

          3  you are clear about.  There are, specifically in

          4  what we are addressing today, there is not an avert

          5  agenda.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  That is my

          7  question.

          8  MS. BERGER:  There is not an avert, because as was,

          9  you know, as you heard today, the impact really of

         10  all of this proposal just crosses sort of gender

         11  lines and race lines, and you know, all kinds of

         12  lines, and goes beyond the question just a

         13  reproductive choice.

         14  CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I see the disbalance (sic) on

         15  the effect of these cuts on the disabled community

         16  very clear.  That is there.  But I just wanted to

         17  make sure that there is not a particular thing that

         18  is put in here?

         19                 MS. BERGER:  But I think as Bob

         20  mentioned, but because women are so

         21  disproportionately the sort of recipients of

         22  Medicaid coverage, that if, when you talk about what

         23  the impacts are on whom, you disproportionately

         24  affect women greater than you do, and women of

         25  reproductive age, sort fall in that category.  So
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          2  you are, in a sense, disproportionately affect

          3  women's ability to control their reproductive

          4  choices, because they are disproporationately

          5  eligible for, and actually on Medicaid.  And so many

          6  of the programs, as Catherine Abate mentioned, Bob

          7  mentioned, again, that Family Planning being, you

          8  know, heavily supported by Medicaid in so many of

          9  the clients that we see, if they do not have

         10  Medicaid, we are enrolling them, you know, directly

         11  at our centers in particular.  So, you know, you

         12  sort of impact on that, and then you impact client's

         13  ability to really make those very basic choices

         14  about --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I am clear on

         16  that, I know that.

         17                 MS. BERGER:  Yes, yes, and I am clear

         18  about what you are asking, yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Discriminatory

         20  practice against women, everywhere, always.

         21                 MS. BERGER:  Yes, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But in this case

         23  it is seeing special that you have seen?

         24                 MS. BERGER:  Not in addition to it.

         25                 MR. JAFFE: Although I think you ask a
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          2  wonderful question, because on a federal level the

          3  President's Block Grant proposal would have  a

          4  detrimental effect in terms of women's health,

          5  because one of the things the President proposes is

          6  to basically for one- third of the country's

          7  Medicaid enrollees, which would include one- third

          8  of our population, so called optional enrollees.

          9  They would have no guarantee to benefit, which

         10  include family planning services.  So you can

         11  imagine in many states where there are hostile

         12  governors and legislatures to women's rights, that

         13  there would be folks who would say, oh, great, this

         14  is a way for us to attack Family Planning Services

         15  by eliminating the right to Family Planning Care for

         16  one- third of the current 12 million women who

         17  received Medicaid benefits.

         18                 So, I think there is an insidious

         19  anti- choice element to the President's proposal.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Well what is new

         21  in America, right?

         22                 MR. JAFFE:  Exactly.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  You know the one

         24   --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Like he suddenly
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          2  like women, it is a miracle that he is married with

          3  a woman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well, we will not

          5  go there.

          6                 MS. BERGER:   Just a final thing.

          7  Just I wanted to say, now, of course, even though it

          8  is dinner time, whatever, you have got all of our

          9  juices moving here, but the one thing that I did not

         10  even want to go into was, with this movement out of

         11  Children's Medicaid proposed movement, out of

         12  Children's Medicaid into CHP B, which is this

         13  Managed Care Plan.

         14                 The way that adolescents access

         15  reproductive health care, and in particular, this is

         16  near and dear to Bob and my heart, access, for

         17  example, Fidelis, for members who were in Fidelis,

         18  who were in CHP B, the only way that they can access

         19  reproductive health care is through a very

         20  convoluted third party road, so-to-speak.

         21                 Well, actually, that if you have more

         22  adolescence who are going into CHP B, which is the

         23  managed care plan, and then as a ciliary more

         24  proportionately going into Fidelis, you are very

         25  dramatically effecting young adolescence ability to
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          2  access reproductive health care, sort of a side

          3  affect.

          4                 MR. JAFFE:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you, guys.

          6                 (Hearing adjourned at 6:47 p.m.)
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